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SECTION |. INTRODUCTION

Since its establishment in 1939, the King County Housing Authority (KCHA) has played a key role
in providing affordable housing options for the residents of the Puget Sound region. Serving
those with the greatest need is our primary mission and our programs ensure that diverse
populations — homeless families, elderly and disabled households, immigrants and refugees, the
working poor — all benefit from KCHA’s programs. Nationally recognized for its innovative
programs, KCHA has consistently achieved designation as a HUD “High Performer” under
evaluations of its Public Housing and Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher programs.

As the County’s largest provider of affordable housing, KCHA works diligently to ensure the
long-term financial and physical viability of its housing inventory and respond to regional
housing needs. Following this mission however, in an environment characterized by multi-year
reductions in federal funding, escalating costs to maintain an aging inventory and an increasing
gap between the availability of affordable housing and the number of low-income families in
need of assistance, has become increasingly challenging.

In 2003, seeking a long-term solution to ongoing reductions in support for federal housing
programs, KCHA entered the Department of Housing and Urban Development’s (HUD’s) Moving
to Work (MTW) demonstration program. One of fewer than 30 high-performing agencies
selected for the program, MTW participation provides KCHA a unique opportunity to break
away from overly restrictive federal housing program rules and constraints in favor of new
approaches to delivering affordable housing in our local communities. As an MTW agency,
KCHA’s Public Housing Operating, Capital and Section 8 program resources are combined in a
single block-grant with full funding flexibility. KCHA may use the MTW block-grant to fund a
wide array of affordable housing initiatives, including but not limited to, general operation of
the Public Housing or Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher programs, capital improvements, site
acquisition and development, case management and supportive services and other approaches
to the provision of housing services to low-income households without being limited by the
program constraints of Sections 8 and 9 of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937.

As mandated by Congress, the MTW demonstration encourages KCHA to develop new
approaches in the delivery of housing services in order to address the following program
objectives:

d Increase housing choices for low-income families;
d Help KCHA clients become increasingly self-sufficient;

ad Ensure the cost effectiveness of KCHA operations.

4|Page



Through participation in the MTW demonstration, KCHA works to develop and apply innovative
and sustainable solutions that respond to the specific housing needs and markets in the greater
Puget Sound area. Preserving and increasing the supply of affordable housing is vital to
ensuring that the County’s increasing population of extremely low-income households - those
in poverty, on the brink of homelessness or without access to necessary support services - have
a safe, secure place to call home. In collaboration with local governments and non-profit
organizations, MTW program flexibility has allowed KCHA to expand efforts to address the
region’s critical shortfall of affordable housing and to strengthen its role as the safety net for
homeless and special needs populations. Major accomplishments under the program include:

O An almost 18 percent increase in the number of households served. In King County’s
tight rental market over the past five years, KCHA’s ability to grow the size of its
programs to assist an additional 1,800 households has been essential in fulfilling
regional goals outlined in the County’s 10-Year Plan to End Homelessness.

U Expansion of programs to reach “hard-to-house” populations. Through new
partnerships with local public and behavioral health care systems, KCHA is ensuring that
the County’s most at-risk populations - chronically homeless and mentally-ill households
- have access to permanent, supportive service-enriched housing in which they can
stabilize and grow.

U Use of a locally designed Project-based program to provide transitional housing to
homeless families with children. In conjunction with the Bill and Melinda Gates
Foundation, United Way, and local community service partners, KCHA’s transitional
housing integrates housing with case management, support services and access upon
graduation to public housing to help get families back on the road to self-sufficiency.

0 Operations are more efficient and streamlined. Savings produced from major
programming changes, such as the “Easy Rent” program and the restructuring of Section
8 HQS inspection protocols, are allowing KCHA to realign staffing and direct resources
where they are most needed.

O Creative financing to address the backlog of unmet capital needs in KCHA’s Public
Housing inventory. In 2008 alone, KCHA leveraged more than $30 million for the
redevelopment and upgrading of its most dilapidated structures - ensuring that these
units remain viable affordable housing resources over the long-term.

O Increased safety and security and improved environmental sustainability in our Public
Housing inventory. MTW funding flexibility has assisted KCHA efforts to ensure all
senior/disabled building are fully sprinklered, a sufficient number of units are accessible
and usable by disabled households and conservation measures are implemented and
installed - reducing water consumption more than 40 percent.

O Expanded client housing choice through a replacement housing program that has
shifted federally subsidized units from neighborhoods of concentrated poverty to the
County’s affluent eastside communities, a new transfer policy that facilitates transfers
between programs to accommodate individual family needs and a Section 8 payment
standard that is calibrated to reflect costs in distinct submarkets of the region.

Absent the regulatory relief and financial flexibility offered through the MTW program, KCHA’s
ability to address these multi-faceted housing challenges would be extremely limited. That’s
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why in early 2009, after nearly two years of negotiations, KCHA executed a revised MTW
Contract with HUD. The Restated MTW Agreement secures KCHA’s participation in the Moving
to Work program through 2018.

Under its revised MTW Agreement, KCHA continues to be required to submit an MTW Annual
Plan to HUD prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. Prepared in HUD’s newly prescribed
format, this is KCHA’s sixth MTW Annual Plan, covering the fiscal year beginning January 1,
2010 and ending December 31, 2010. It is intended as a roadmap of both ongoing MTW
initiatives previously approved by HUD and new initiatives proposed for development and
implementation during the next fiscal year. As detailed, during FY 2010 KCHA is committed to
continued use of MTW program flexibility to build partnerships and develop programs that
address the multiple housing needs of the Puget Sound region. Building upon previously
implemented and ongoing activities outlined in this MTW Plan, KCHA’s focus during the next
fiscal year will center upon:

O Implementing comprehensive rent reform policies that provide families with
incentives to attain employment and increase economic self-sufficiency. In late FY
2009 and early 2010, it’s anticipated that policies for Phase Il of KCHA’s Rent Reform
initiative approved by HUD in FY 2008 will be finalized. Actual implementation of
approved program modifications will begin during FY 2010, allowing working and work-
able households to benefit from streamlined income, rent, subsidy and utility
calculations that encourage economic growth, asset building and employment
retention.

O Accelerating efforts to move families along the path to economic self-sufficiency.
During FY 2010, in tandem with Phase Il Rent Reform, KCHA’s new Resident Opportunity
Plan is expected to be in “full swing”. The 5-year pilot program, developed in
partnership with the YWCA, Bellevue College, Hopelink and Washington State’s
Department of Employment Security, will provide up to 100 households with intensive
wrap-around services so they can acquire the skills needed to increase income and
successfully graduate from federally assisted housing.

O Increasing resources to address the multi-faceted needs of our most vulnerable
populations — chronically mentally ill individuals who cycle between living on the
street, our jail systems and hospital emergency rooms. Removing barriers to housing
access and ensuring permanent supportive housing for this “at risk” population is a
critical component of efforts to address the goals of King County’s 10-Year Plan to End
Homelessness.

O Expanding our reach to assist high-need, homeless families. During FY 2010, in
partnership with the Washington Families Fund and King County, KCHA will establish a
supportive housing program that marries the provision of affordable housing with
intensive support services to assist households to move out of shelters and up and out
of poverty. Expanding upon the Family Unification Program model, KCHA’s 5-year
program will engage and strengthen families as they actively work toward increasing
self-sufficiency through counseling, education, training and sustained employment.

U Implementing innovative policies that use MTW reserves to encourage lease
compliance, fund resident incentives and promote successful graduation from KCHA
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subsidized housing programs. Using a “cost-benefit” approach, KCHA will develop
financial incentives and disincentives that promote mutually beneficial resident
behavior.

O Ensuring cost effective operation of housing programs through streamlining and lean
engineering. During FY 2010, KCHA will seek to implement program and policy changes
that eliminate redundant forms and business processes, encourage data sharing among
government agencies and simplify verification of income, assets and family
circumstances. Policy changes, such as those to modify HQS inspection protocols will
significantly reduce administrative expenses without adversely affecting the quality of
housing services delivered by KCHA.

O Using MTW resources to leverage other government and private investments to
improve the quality and expand the supply of affordable housing in the Puget Sound
region. Through innovative financing and flexible use of the MTW block grant, KCHA will
continue efforts to upgrade its existing housing inventory to ensure its viability over the
long-term. New bidding and contracting approaches and partnerships with
weatherization and renewable energy funding sources will be explored. In addition,
KCHA will continue to seek site acquisition and development opportunities in an effort
to increase housing choices available to low-income residents of King County.

O Continuing to improve the geographic mobility of low-income households and
increase housing choice through programs and policies that reduce barriers to access
to KCHA subsidized housing. During FY 2010, KCHA will continue to monitor the rental
“climate” in each sub-market to ensure Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher participants
have access to low-poverty neighborhoods where they would have otherwise been
priced out of the rental market. Section 8 project-basing approaches will continue to
promote broad geographic choice. At the same time, KCHA’s open-door transfer policy
will provide flexible support across traditional program lines — allowing families to
access the subsidy program most suitable to their individual needs and circumstances.

KCHA is committed to open and clear communication with residents, the Resident Advisory
Committee, community stakeholders and the public in the development of each MTW
Annual Plan. As required under the terms of its MTW Agreement, copies of this draft Plan
were made publicly available for a period of no less than 30 days. On September 9, 2009,
following the public notice period, a Public Hearing was held to review plan components
and receive community and resident comments and feedback. A compilation of comments
received, together with KCHA’s response and/or modifications incorporated in this FY 2010
MTW Plan are attached in Section VIII and were reviewed by KCHA’s Board of
Commissioners prior to their approval of the draft Plan on October 7™ 2009.
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SECTION Il. GENERAL HOUSING AUTHORITY OPERATING
INFORMATION

A. Housing Stock Information

INVENTORY BREAKDOWN for FY 2010
(Public Housing, HCV, Other-HUD and Local programs)

Inventory at Anticipated Anticipated Projected
PraT Fiscal Year FY 2010 FY 2010 Inventory
g Begin: Inventory Inventory FYE 2010:
Jan. 1, 2010 Additions Removals Dec. 31, 2010
Public Housing: MTW 2617 13 165 2465
Public Housing: non-MTW 0 0 0 0
Total PH Inventory 2617 13 165 2465
HCV: General MTW* 5861* 0 87 5774%*
HCV: Project-based MTW 1129 87 0 1216
HCV: Local MTW 275 0 0 275
Total MTW Vouchers 7265* 87 87 7265*
Other MTW: Sponsor-based program 180 10 0 190
Total Other-MTW 180 10 0 190
HCV: VASH, non-MTW 105 50 0 155
HCV: Mainstream, non-MTW 350 0 0 350
HCV: Designated, non-MTW 100 0 0 100
HCV: Certain Development, non-MTW 100 0 0 100
HCV: FUP-2009, non-MTW 100 0 0 100
HCV: Enhanced, non-MTW 125 0 0 125
Total non-MTW Vouchers 880 50 0 930
Other HUD: Sec 8 New Construction 174 0 0 174
Other HUD: Preservation 119 0 0 119
Other, non-HUD : LOCAL 132 0 0 132
Total OTHER programs 425 0 0 425

Total Housing Stock 11,367* 11,275*

*Does not include 2,363 HCV port-ins anticipated at FYB — KCHA projects an additional 121 households will port to its jurisdiction during FY
2010 resulting in a total of 2,484 port-ins at the end of 2010. Also does not include the addition of vouchers awarded through competitive
grants during FY 2010. As outlined in this MTW Plan, KCHA intends to respond to NOFA announcements for increased funding opportunities as
made available during FY 2010.
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O Description of Planned Significant Capital Expenditures:

During FY 2010, KCHA plans to expend more than $23 million to complete necessary capital
improvements to its Public Housing communities. In addition, KCHA anticipates expending
more than S$30 million through major redevelopment efforts previously initiated to
complete capital improvements at the Springwood Apartments (now Birch Creek) and the
HOPE VI reconstruction of Park Lake Homes Site Il. Funding of planned projects is
anticipated from a variety of sources, such as the Public Housing Capital and RHF funds,
accumulated MTW reserves, formulaic and competitive grants awarded under the American
Reinvestment and Recovery Act and the leveraging of private capital into Public Housing
developments through innovative financing strategies. Major capital projects and related
FY 2010 expenditures include:

e ADA Upgrade Project - $4,123,408. To ensure compliance with Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act KCHA will modify 70 housing units and their related common
areas to current ADA standards. Upgrades at these sites will insure that at least 5%
of KCHA’s public housing inventory is fully accessible to persons with disabilities.
Targeted Public Housing developments include Northridge |, Lake House, Casa
Juanita, Valli Kee, Cascade Homes, Southridge, Eastridge, Briarwood, Yardley Arms,
Wayland Arms, Wellswood, Juanita Court, Boulevard Manor, Kings Court, Ballinger
Homes, Brittany Park, Riverton Terrace and Pacific Court.

e Building Envelope Upgrades - $9,680,187. This project is part of a larger “green
retrofit” initiative to substantially increase energy efficiency and the environmental
sustainability of KCHA’s Public Housing properties. Planned exterior upgrades are
designed to reduce energy costs to the benefit of both KCHA and its residents.
Targeted developments include Boulevard Manor, Evergreen Court, Kings Court,
Riverton Terrace, Northridge | & Il, Cascade Homes, Eastside Terrace, Briarwood,
Federal Way Houses and Avondale Manor.

e Community Facility Project - $1,785,000. This initiative will improve and expand
meeting and community space to support youth and family self-sufficiency programs
in KCHA’s family developments in order to enhance educational and life outcomes
for public housing youth and increase community safety and security. The first
phase of the project will provide expanded, remodeled or new community facilities
at the following targeted Public Housing family developments: Eastside Terrace, Valli
Kee Homes, Burndale and Firwood Circle. Possible second phase sites include:
College Place, Kirkwood Terrace, Juanita Trace, Green Leaf, Wellswood and
Avondale Manor.

e Green River Homes Renovation/Reconstruction Project - $5,000,000. One of
KCHA'’s oldest Public Housing developments, Green River Homes requires significant

reinvestment that cannot be provided under current capital grant funding levels.
Funding will be provided from a variety of sources, including tax credit equity.

9|Page



Planned renovations will transform the 60-unit site from an aging, physically
distressed, and deteriorating development to a modern, well designed rental
community — positively impacting the quality of life for its residents as well as
significantly strengthening the surrounding neighborhood.

U New Public Housing units to be added during the year by development:

In 2003, through the award of a $35 million HOPE VI grant, KCHA began the complete
redevelopment of Park Lake I, a 569-unit public housing development located in White
Center — one of King County’s most impoverished neighborhoods. Once KCHA’s oldest and
largest development, Park Lake | is being replaced by a new mixed-income community
known as Greenbridge. The redeveloped site includes extensive on-site community
services, including a new elementary school, early learning center, library and renovated
community center. The redeveloped site will contain up to 1,000 homes, including 320
units serving extremely low-income households. By the end of FY 2009, construction of
Salmon Creek, an 87-unit development that includes 50 Public Housing units inter-mixed
with 9 Project-based and 28 Low-income Housing Tax Credit units, is anticipated to be
complete and units fully occupied.

During FY 2010, construction of the community’s Eastbridge development is projected to be
complete. The 90-unit site will include a mix of Public Housing, Project-based Section 8 and
Work-force housing as follows:

Pro;ect.—based Tax Credit Mkt Rate / Common
Section 8 Units

Unit Size Public Housing

1 -Bedroom
2 - Bedroom
3 - Bedroom
4 — Bedroom
5 - Bedroom

Total

In accordance with design specifications, 5 percent of the Eastbridge units will be “fully
accessible” and 20 percent will be “adaptable” to accessibility standards.

With the completion of Eastbridge, a total of 448 rental units —including 180 Public Housing
units and 120 Project-based Section 8 rental units — will have been built and occupied at the
Greenbridge site.

U Number of Public Housing units to be removed from inventory during the FY: 165 units

As detailed in its FY 2008 MTW Annual Report, KCHA has been awarded a HOPE VI
Revitalization grant for the redevelopment of Park Lake Homes Il in White Center. Built in
the early 1960s, this 165-unit Public Housing development requires significant investment
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to address extensive infrastructure needs and replace the current obsolete housing
structures. As redevelopment of the 31-acre parcel progresses, KCHA will demolish all 165
units to make way for some 300 new rental and for-sale housing that will create a new
mixed-income community. In addition to workforce rental and affordable and market rate
homeownership opportunities, the site will include 165 new rental units affordable to
Public Housing residents. Demolition is anticipated to commence in late FY 2009 and
continue into 2010. Although it is anticipated the 165 public housing units will be replaced
on site with federally subsidized units, during the demolition and reconstruction phase of
the HOPE VI project these units will temporarily be deleted from inventory.

B. Leasing Information

HOUSEHOLDS UNDER LEASE for FY 2010
(Public Housing, HCV, Other-HUD and Local programs)

Households Projected Households
Program at Fiscal Year Begin: at Fiscal Year End:
January 1, 2010 December 31, 2010
Public Housing: MTW 2402 2425
Public Housing: non-MTW 0 0
Total PH Inventory 2402 2425
HCV: General MTW * 8224 8258
HCV: Project-based MTW 1129 1129
HCV: Local MTW 275 275
Total MTW Vouchers 9628 9662
Other-MTW: Sponsor-based program 145 190
Total Other-MTW 145 190
HCV: VASH, non-MTW 60 120
HCV: Mainstream, non-MTW 350 350
HCV: Designated, non-MTW 10 100
HCV: Certain Development, non-MTW 10 100
HCV: FUP-2009, non-MTW 10 100
HCV: Enhanced, non-MTW 125 125
Total non-MTW Vouchers 565 895
Other HUD: Sec 8 New Construction 174 174
Other HUD: Preservation 119 119
Other, non-HUD : LOCAL 132 132
Total OTHER programs 425 425

Total Housing Stock 13,165

*Includes 2,363 HCV port-ins anticipated at FYB and 2,484 projected under KCHA’s program at FYE 2010.
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O Description of anticipated issues relating to any potential difficulties in leasing units

KCHA staff works proactively to keep unit turnover time within its Public Housing inventory at
an absolute minimum — maintaining an overall occupancy rate of over 98.5 percent. In
addition, as FY 2010 approached, with the exception of vouchers awarded within the last six
months, KCHA’s Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher program lease-up rate remained above 100
percent.

During FY 2009, KCHA received a number of new vouchers targeted to special needs
populations that are expected to fully lease-up in FY 2010. As addressed elsewhere in this Plan,
in FY 2010, KCHA is committed to targeting assistance to “hard-to-house” households and to
expand programs that eliminate barriers to housing access for chronically homeless and
mentally-ill households - increasing housing choice for this highly vulnerable population. While
every effort will be made to meet established lease-up benchmarks for KCHA’s assisted
inventory, the continued targeting of households who will require intensive assistance in
securing landlord approvals may slow leasing outcomes.

O Number of Project-based vouchers in use at the start of the Plan year

As shown within the “Leased Unit” analysis above, KCHA anticipates that 1,129 Project-based
vouchers will be in use at the start of Fiscal Year 2010. Additional Housing Choice Vouchers
may be project-based during FY 2010 in conjunction with new and on-going MTW activities and
KCHA'’s locally developed Project-based operating policies.

C. Waiting List Information

O Description of anticipated changes in the waiting lists (site-based; community-wide; HCV;
merged)

KCHA operates separate waiting lists for its Public Housing, Section 8 and Project-based
programs. Generally, applications for the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher program are
accepted during specified dates only. At the end of the designated time period, the waiting
list is closed and KCHA assigns a limited number of applicants (typically 2,500) to the Section
8 waiting list through random “lottery” number assignment. Eligible applicants from the
pool of 2,500 are selected for program participation according to their assigned lottery
number. In addition to the lottery process for its general voucher pool, KCHA maintains
separate waiting lists for vouchers awarded and targeted to HUD mandated priority
populations. Applicants for these special program vouchers (such as those available under
the VASH and Mainstream programs) may apply year-round. At this time, KCHA does not
anticipate any changes in waiting list design or in the configuration of Section 8 Housing
Choice Voucher waiting list protocols.

12|Page



KCHA’s Public Housing program currently operates under a Site-based, Regional and Set-
aside waiting list system as well as a set of local preferences. Applicants may choose to
apply for up to two (2) Site-based, or two (2) Regional waiting lists. Site-based waiting lists
allow applicants to choose specific developments (up to two) in which they wish to reside.
The Regional waiting list, used to fill vacant units in each of KCHA’s three (3) regions, allows
applicants to be considered for tenancy at any development in the selected region(s).
Regional lists allow applicants who may have an urgent need for assistance faster entry into
KCHA’s housing programs. With the exception of Pacific Court, every third vacancy in
KCHA’s Public Housing developments is prioritized for formerly homeless families
graduating from the region’s transitional housing system. During FY 2010, the Housing
Authority will continue to monitor the current waiting list system. Changes may be
implemented during FY 2010 to address any identified areas of concern, modify preferences
and priority assignment and/or to increase housing access and choice among the low-
income households in the region.

The Project-based waiting list operates in similar fashion to the Public Housing waiting list
and is managed out of KCHA’s Central Applications office. Applicants can apply to Site-
based or Regional waiting lists. During FY 2010, KCHA anticipates possible changes in
program administration that will allow direct Owner referrals to vacant units when KCHA
has been unable to locate a suitable applicant to fill the vacancy. Additional changes in
waiting list preferences and priorities may be implemented during FY 2010 to streamline
program administration and improve cost efficiency.

Description of anticipated changes in the number of families on the waiting list(s) and/or
opening closing of the waiting lists

KCHA’s Public Housing waiting list currently includes more than 7,700 applicants seeking
assistance, up nearly 60 percent over the course of the Housing Authority’'s MTW
participation. With demand for affordable housing far outpacing supply, it is anticipated
the number of households seeking assistance through KCHA’s Public Housing and Project-
based programs will continue to escalate. Currently KCHA has no plan to curb access to
either program through closure of its Site-based or Regional waiting lists.

The Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher waiting list has been closed since May 2007,
following an advertised opening and lottery assignment as described above. At that time,
KCHA received nearly 10,000 completed applications, of which 2,500 successful applicants
were assigned to the HCV waiting list. Currently, of the 2,500 households added to the
waiting list in 2007, approximately 500 families remain. KCHA will continue to assign these
households vouchers under the program as funding becomes available. A review of current
voucher turnover rates and internal commitments for HCV resources indicates the Section 8
waiting list may again be opened for limited time by the end of FY 2010.
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SECTION lIl. Non-MTW RELATED HOUSING AUTHORITY
INFORMATION (Optional)

A. Planned Sources and Uses of other HUD or Federal Funds
(excluding Hope VI)

KCHA elects not to include this OPTIONAL information.

B. Description of non-MTW activities proposed

KCHA elects not to include this OPTIONAL information.
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SECTION IV.

Long-Term MTW PLAN (Optional)

Over the term of the MTW Demonstration Program KCHA intends to use the block grant and
regulatory flexibility provided by this initiative to support the Authority’s overarching strategic
goals for the Puget Sound region. Approaches will evolve as regional priorities, demographics
and housing markets shift. One of the strengths of the MTW concept is that it enables the
Authority to reshape the use of federal resources as necessary to respond to these changes.

Basic strategic priorities for the Authority include the following:

Q

Continue to strengthen the physical, operational, financial and environmental

sustainability of the portfolio of over 8,000
affordable housing units that we own or control.

Expand the number of units in the region
affordable to households earning below 30
percent of Area Median Income (AMI) through
both development and preservation.

Provide expanded geographic choice for low-
income households, including disabled and elderly
households with mobility impairments, providing
our clients with the opportunity to live in
neighborhoods with high achieving schools, ready
access to quality services and mass transit and
adjacent to the workplace.

Close coordination of efforts with the region’s
public and behavioral healthcare and human
services systems to end homelessness through the
development of an adequate supply of supportive
housing for chronically homeless and special needs
populations.

On-going “place-centered” revitalization of King
County’s low income neighborhoods, involving
both a focus on housing and on the wide array of
other physical improvements, services and
partnerships that create strong, healthy
communities.

Working with the County, regional transit agencies
and suburban cities, promote the integration of

In 2007, partnering with the
United Way and local support
service providers, KCHA utilized
MTW  program flexibility to
launch the South County Pilot.
The program, targeted to assist
up to 25 chronically homeless and
mentally-ill households, is
designed to provide the services
and support needed to move
participants away from life on the
streets. Following a Housing First
Model, the program design
eliminated significant barriers to
occupancy faced by this highly
transient population. The
program’s success has since led
to its expansion to assisting 155
households and laid the
framework for KCHA’s acquisition
of Pacific Court. The 30-unit
Public Housing development
opened in 2009 and is dedicated
to serving up to 49 chronically
mentally-ill individuals through
provision of a permanent
supportive housing environment.
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new affordable housing into regional growth corridors aligned with mass transit nodes
and infrastructure development.

KCHA’s Resident Opportunity
Program (ROP) is a prime
example of steps the Housing
Authority is taking to help
families achieve economic
independence.  The 5-year
pilot program will begin
enrolling residents in late FY
2009. Targeted to assist 100
households, the ROP links
KCHA'’s housing resources with
case management and
support services to assist
families in building the skills
needed to boost employment
and successfully graduate
from subsidized housing.

to ensure
effective use of Federal

O Expand partnerships with Public Health, Headstart
programs, school districts, after-school providers, community
colleges and the philanthropic community to eliminate the
achievement gap for the low-income households we serve
and significantly improve educational and life outcomes for

youth.

O Promote the economic self-sufficiency of our
participating households by providing support in addressing
barriers to employment and access to training and education

programs with the intent
of reducing length of
stay, where appropriate,
in subsidized housing.

U Continue to
develop institutional
capacity and efficiencies
at the Housing Authority
efficient,
resources. Continue to

expand KCHA’s non-federally subsidized programs in

order to support

ensure the financial

sustainability of Authority initiatives.

Installation of energy saving
measures in the Public Housing
inventory has reduced water
consumption more than 40
percent. At the same time,
KCHA has increasingly applied
green engineering techniques
to new construction and
rehabilitation projects across
its portfolio. The Birch Creek
Youth Recreation Center is a
clear example of how effective
planning can lead to future
savings. The project — a model
for sustainable design — earned
a Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design (LEED)
Silver Certification from the
U.S. Green Building Council.
Home to after-school
recreational and educational
programs for upwards of 700
children, the building uses 20
percent less energy than
similar facilities.
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SECTION V. PROPOSED FY 2010 MTW Activities - HUD Approval
Requested

Table V.1, shown below, lists a summary of planned new initiatives for FY 2010 proposed by the
Housing Authority for FY 2010. In accordance with MTW Plan format, detail regarding each of
the activities summarized below is shown immediately following this table.

TABLE V.1: Proposed Activities Table

Activity # Activity Name
Supportive housing for high need homeless families

Resident Satisfaction Survey

Streamlining of Public Housing and Section 8 Forms and
Data Processing

Using MTW Reserves to fund Resident Incentives

Modified HQS inspection process for Public Housing and
Section 8

Simplify verification process for Section 8 and Public
Housing

30-Day Referral for Project-based Units

Revision to the Interim Review process - Public Housing
and Section 8

Limit on number of moves by a Section 8 participant
family

Implement a Maximum Asset Threshold for Public Housing
and Section 8 households

Offer incentive payments to Section 8 families ready to
leave the program
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PROPOSED FY 2010 MTW Activities

Activity #1:  Supportive housing for high need homeless families

a.

Description of MTW activity

KCHA intends to begin a permanent supportive housing demonstration program for
high need homeless families living in emergency shelters. In partnership with other
participants in King County’s Ten Year Plan to End Homelessness, KCHA will make
available a small number of vouchers that will be paired with intensive service
funding. Through the region’s annual “Combined Funders” NOFA process, an
experienced service provider will be competitively selected to administer this
program and provide services.

This program will utilize an innovative new assessment tool being developed by King
County to identify high need homeless families living in shelters who could benefit
from a permanent supportive housing program that combines rental subsidies and
wrap-around services. The program will pair five years of rental subsidies with
support service funding of up to $12,000 annually, per household. Services will be
designed to meet the needs of homeless families with multiple barriers who may be
at risk of losing their children. KCHA intends to use Family Unification Program (FUP)
vouchers to provide the rental subsidy and may use MTW authority to project-base
these vouchers.

MTW Statutory Objective

The proposed MTW activity achieves the objectives of increasing housing choice and
assisting families with children in becoming more self-sufficient.

Anticipated Impacts

The demonstration program will reduce the number of homeless families living in
our shelter system and address a goal of the County’s Ten Year Plan to End
Homelessness. In addition, it will assist these families in achieving housing stability
and becoming more self-sufficient. KCHA anticipates the program design will lead to
increased “shopper success” rates as families enter the program and decrease the
failure rate of these families when compared to other FUP/DV program participants.
As such, though there will be some initial increase in administrative burden to KCHA
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staff at the time of implementation this expected increase in the housing success is
expected to decrease KCHA staff burdens over the long term.

d. Baseline and Benchmarks

The baselines for this program include:

* Total # of high need homeless families housed by KCHA

* # of households with earned income upon program entry

* Annual # of negative program exits for standard FUP participants
* Shopping success rate of standard FUP/DV participants

The proposed benchmarks for this program are:

o Full lease-up (a total of 20 “high need” homeless families) within 18 months
of program implementation

o« Years 2 - 5: 75% of households have maintained housing for one year or
longer

e Years2-5: 10% increase in the number of families with earned income
o 95% shopping success rate among participating families

« 25% reduction in negative program exits as compared to standard FUP/DV
participants over the 5 year program term

e. Data Collection Metrics and Products

Data will be collected from the following:

o KCHA’s administrative data system (MST)
« Reports from partner service agency

Metrics will include:

o # of high need families assisted under the program
« Length of residency for participating families
« # of households with earned income

« % of households who successfully lease a unit within 6 months compared to
standard FUP/DV households

« # of negative program exits for target group compared to standard FUP/DV
households
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f. Authorization Cited

MTW Restated and Amended Agreement: Attachment D, items C.1.b and E.1

g. Agency Required Documentation

Not applicable

Activity #2: Resident Satisfaction Survey

a.

Description of MTW activity

KCHA intends to utilize MTW funds to implement a survey process that measures
the effectiveness of Public Housing and Section 8 program operations, level of client
satisfaction and provides clear feedback that will assist in future direction and
programmatic change.

Under this initiative, during 2010 KCHA intends to utilize MTW resources to contract
with an outside company to design and administer a survey distribution/data
collection process to the following sub-groups:

e Public Housing residents
e Section 8 program participants
e Section 8 landlords

Future expansion of the survey may include collection of feedback from KCHA
community partners and support service agencies. Use of an outside contractor will
ensure data is collected using an “arms length” approach and is intended to allow
greater distribution of surveys and increased response rates than garnered through
standard surveys currently supported by HUD. For KCHA’s Public Housing program,
the survey instrument will replace the current (and any future) Resident Assessment
and Satisfaction Survey (RASS) component of HUD’s standard RASS/PHAS reporting
system.

MTW Statutory Objective

The proposed MTW activity will reduce costs and achieve greater cost effectiveness
in Federal expenditures as it will allow KCHA the ability to target locally relevant
issues in order to gather information that can improve performance at the local
level. At the same time, use of KCHA’s internal survey, in lieu of the standardized
RASS survey, reduces administration and reporting requirements at the national
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level, lessens the intrusiveness into our resident’s daily lives, and has the potential
to provide meaningful insight into the effectiveness of KCHA’s program and property
management services.

Anticipated Impacts

The results from the RSS will allow KCHA to tailor its services and programs to
resident and landlord preferences. At the same time, a locally developed survey,
distributed to a significant population of residents and/or landlords (rather than
HUD’s minimal standard based on program size), is expected to result in higher
resident response rates. KCHA anticipates that higher response rates will provide a
clearer picture of how KCHA is perceived among its participants and landlords. This
will allow KCHA management to more readily pinpoint areas of concern — allowing
KCHA to efficiently address problems and maintain high levels of customer service
satisfaction.

Baseline and Benchmarks

As shown below, the Section 8 program’s baseline for this activity is zero, as a
survey instrument does not currently exist. For KCHA’s Public Housing operation,
the baseline is derived from previous RASS results, as reported under HUD’s WASS
system for FY 2008 which indicated:

Total KCHA Overall
Program Population Response Satisfaction
Surveyed Rate Target

Public Housing

Section 8 Participants

Section 8 Landlords

The proposed benchmarks include:

Total KCHA Overall
Program Population Response Satisfaction
Surveyed Rate Target

Public Housing

Section 8 Participants

Section 8 Landlords
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Data Collection Metrics & Products

Data will be collected through the use of an outside contractor, who will be
responsible for distribution, marketing and compilation of survey responses.

Metrics include:

e # of surveys distributed (per program/target group)
e % of surveys returned (per program/target group)

e % of surveys returned indicating a positive response to overall satisfaction
with program operations

Data collected will be compared to previous results, disseminated to staff for
training purposes and utilized to inform the direction of current and future program
activities.

Authorization Cited

MTW Restated and Amended Agreement: Attachment C, item B.1.b

Agency Required Documentation

Not applicable

Activity #3: Streamlining of Public Housing and Section 8 HCV Forms and Data Processing

a.

Description of MTW activity

To meet one of the central goals of the MTW demonstration, KCHA seeks to increase
its cost-effectiveness through streamlined use of forms and data processing. In FY
2010, KCHA will complete a review of forms used and processing linked to the
application and waiting list system such as those to verify and document data and
determine program eligibility. KCHA will also review forms and processes utilized to
document and verify data reported by current program participants in order to
identify how additional savings could result from changes in forms and processes
utilized during continued occupancy. Processing will be streamlined through this
activity as KCHA exercises its ability to implement new guidelines and processes in
lieu of HUD requirements. Under this initiative, KCHA may choose to eliminate a
number of HUD forms — replacing them with new, streamlined documents that
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continue to ensure program integrity while conforming to KCHA’s MTW modified
documentation requirements.

MTW Statutory Objective

The proposed activity increases administrative efficiency and cost savings by
reducing administrative red tape — meeting the MTW statutory objective to reduce
cost and achieve greater cost effectiveness in federal expenditures.

Anticipated Impacts

By streamlining this process, KCHA will increase staff productivity and reduce total
administrative costs relative to intake and continued occupancy. Although not a
targeted goal of the initiative, KCHA also anticipates streamlined processing may
lead to increased understanding of program requirements.

Baseline and Benchmarks

The baselines for this activity include:

» Staff hours spent on paperwork processing

* # of forms needed to process and track applications for housing programs and
maintain occupancy eligibility information of assisted households

The benchmarks to measure performance and progress include:

* 10% reduction in staff time spent on paperwork processing

* 10% reduction in forms used in the application process and to maintain
occupancy eligibility of assisted households

Data Collection Metrics & Products

Data will be collected from the following:

* KCHA established baseline for time spent processing forms through interviews of
staff responsible for administering the Public Housing and Section 8 programs

* KCHA database and forms catalog — analyzing current total number of forms
before and after any changes
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Metrics will include:

* Comparison of staff hours spent on current processes pre- and post
implementation of the streamlined processes

* Comparison/count of forms used pre- and post implementation of streamlined
processes and costs associated with their use

f. Authorization Cited

MTW Restated and Amended Agreement: Attachment C, item C.4 (Public Housing)
and item D.3.b (Section 8)

g. Agency Required Documentation

Not applicable

Activity #4: Using MTW reserves to fund Resident Incentives

a. Description of MTW activity

KCHA proposes to use MTW funds to provide incentives to residents as an
innovative means of increasing compliance with lease and program requirements.
For example, KCHA often experiences significant obstacles in moving over-housed
residents to appropriate sized units due to their reluctance to relocate to a smaller
unit and/or site, even though their lease would require them to do so. An over-
housed tenant who refuses to move to an appropriate unit when available is subject
to lease termination. Regardless, the resident will often avail themselves of every
opportunity to delay the eventual transfer — whether through repeated requests for
reasonable accommodation or by using the legal process as a delaying mechanism.
KCHA expense in handling this situation is significant — involving increased staff time,
unit turnover time and legal expenses. Thus, in FY 2010 KCHA will pilot this initiative
by developing policies that encourage resident cooperation with established
occupancy policies. Using a risk/reward approach, “over-housed” tenants will
receive a small monetary incentive to move to the first unit available. At the same
time, tenants who refuse the available unit will face strict lease enforcement and
monetary penalty.

KCHA will utilize the results of this initial pilot to determine the viability for

expansion during FY 2010 and beyond to other areas. For example, if results
indicate the approach leads to favorable outcomes, KCHA may consider offering

24|Page



residents a small monetary reward for not owning a car or choosing to park off-site
at developments where parking is limited.

b. MTW Statutory Objective

The proposed MTW activity achieves greater cost effectiveness and reduces
administrative burdens.

c. Anticipated Impacts
KCHA anticipates that offering a resident incentive in this manner will reduce
program administration through reductions in staff time to process
requests/complaints/paperwork and legal expenses. An ancillary impact may be an

increase in resident satisfaction levels as residents feel more in control of their
environment.

d. Baseline and Benchmarks

The baselines for this activity include:

Baselines will be attributed to the individual targeted administrative policy for which
the incentive is directed. For example:

« Total costs to process/track over-housed transfers in prior year
« # of over-housed families who accepted the first available unit in prior year
The proposed benchmarks are:

Benchmarks will be attributed to the individual targeted administrative policy for
which the incentive is directed. For example:

« 10% reduction in costs dedicated to processing transfers for over-housed
residents

e 25% increase in number of over-housed households who accept the first
available unit

e. Data Collection Metrics & Products

Data Collection and Metrics will be attributed to the individual targeted
administrative policy for which the incentive is directed. For example:
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Data collection for an incentive to over-housed families to accept the first available
unit will include the following sources:

* Quarterly Transfer Report detailing transfers completed and staff hours
dedicated to processing transfers for over-housed households

* KCHA financial reports detailing fees charged and incentives paid

Metrics used to analyze impact of providing an incentive to over-housed families
who accept the first available unit will include:

* The total # of over-housed households who accept the first available unit, vs.
those who do not

* The staff hours and costs utilized to assign an over-housed household to an
appropriate sized unit

f. Authorization Cited

MTW Restated and Amended Agreement: Attachment C, item B.1.b

g. Agency Required Documentation

Not applicable

Activity #5: Modified Section 8 and Public Housing HQS Inspection process

a.

Description of MTW activity

In FY 2010, KCHA intends to adopt modified Housing Quality Standards (HQS)
inspection protocols for units leased under its Section 8 and Public Housing
subsidy programs. Through a risk-based approach, KCHA seeks to modify
policies in a manner that reduces the number and frequency of inspections
completed, without having an adverse impact on the quality or condition of units
leased. Current policy revisions under consideration include:

e Random sampling of units selected for inspection each year. (Section 8
program only) For owners with twenty or more units under lease in the
same complex and a two-year history of excellent HQS performance,
KCHA may select a random sample of units to be inspected each year. If
all units in the inspected sample meet HQS standards, the owner will be
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able to self-certify that remaining units meet the same standard and no
further inspections will be performed in that year. If units in the sample
fail to meet HQS standards the owner will have 30 days in which to make
the necessary repairs and the units will be re-inspected in accordance
with existing policy. If all the repairs are completed, the owner can self-
certify that the remaining units meet the same standards and no further
inspections will be performed in that year.

e Altering the frequency of inspections required. (Public Housing and
Section 8) Using a biennial inspections system KCHA would continue to
complete an initial inspection as participants move-in to the subsidized
unit. Absent requests or need for special inspections, KCHA will consider
modifying HUD regulations to allow all or segments of units to undergo
their next inspection up to two years following the client’s move-in date.
To further increase savings, current participants may be rolled into a
biennial system based on their most recent HQS inspection results.

e Use of inspections from qualified outside entities to certify unit
condition. Increasingly, units subsidized under the Section 8 and Public
Housing program undergo multiple inspections by varying agencies
throughout the course of the year. For example, mixed finance units —in
which Public Housing is supported with Tax Credit financing, are dually
inspected by KCHA staff and the Tax Credit entity each year. In most
cases, outside entities operating in KCHA properties utilize inspection
standards at least equal to that of KCHA. Under this initiative, KCHA will
seek to reduce the frequency of inspections through modified policies
that allow another entity’s inspection record to serve as documentation
that the unit meets KCHA’s established HQS requirements.

b. MTW Statutory Objective

The proposed MTW activity reduces administrative burden and achieves greater
cost effectiveness by reducing the number of inspections to be done annually.

c. Anticipated Impacts

KCHA anticipates savings in staff time, travel and administrative expenses.
Reduced site inspections also benefit tenants and owners as they are less
intrusive and require a lower time commitment from owners and tenants. As a
result, modifications could result in increased satisfaction with program
operations. KCHA does not anticipate that the modification will have an adverse
impact upon the quality of units under the program or cause an increase in the
number or percent of units that fail to meet HQS requirements. Rather, KCHA
anticipates that some of the time savings created by reducing the number of

27|Page



inspections would be allocated to educating the owners and tenants of how they
can keep their units in compliance — this should result in improving the quality
and pass rate of units in the program. However, overall quality of KCHA’s unit
inventory will be included as a program measurement to allow quick program
modification if such an adverse impact does occur.

d. Baseline and Benchmarks
The baselines for this activity are:

* #of inspections completed annually

* Cost to inspect all units in the subject group: staff hrs, travel,
administrative expenses

* Overall quality of inventory
The proposed benchmarks include:

* 20% reduction in inspection costs
* 30% reduction in inspections completed under the program
* 0% changes in the overall quality of inventory

e. Data Collection Metrics & Products

Data will be collected by program staff through reports that track the number
and type of inspections and those passing/failing for major and minor items.

Metrics will include:

e #of inspections completed (by program)
e S costto KCHA to complete HQS inspections (by program)
e Assessment of overall quality of units

Comparison will be made to 2009 baseline data.

f. Authorization Cited

MTW Restated and Amended Agreement: Attachment C, item D.5

g. Agency Required Documentation

Not applicable
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Activity #6: Simplify Verification Process for Section 8 and Public Housing

a.

b.

C.

Description of MTW activity

To meet one of the central goals of the MTW demonstration, KCHA seeks to
increase its cost-effectiveness by streamlining the tenant and applicant
verification process. The current method for verification requires virtually every
income and allowance source to be third-party verified, requiring a mailing
directly to the verifying entity. This is an expensive and time-consuming process
that invites discrepancies, adds little value to the accuracy of the resulting
information, and has limited effect on the calculation of housing assistance. The
time spent to follow-up and track third-party verification requests is significant.
Yet, the end result is often no more reliable than information documents that
tenant could provide directly to KCHA or through other forms of verification. In
addition, the third-party verification process is intrusive for the participants as
other parties are unnecessarily made aware of the tenant or applicant’s
participation in the Section 8 program through the process. The advent of
alternate check and balance systems at KCHA’s disposal, such as HUD’s
Electronic Income Verification (EIV) system, which allows for the validation of
tenant reported income, makes the need to follow strict third-party verification
procedures obsolete. As a result, during FY 2010 KCHA will review and
implement alternate verification strategies for its Public Housing and Section 8
operations that protect the integrity of the program, while significantly reducing
overall administrative expense.

MTW Statutory Objective

The proposed activity increases administrative efficiency and cost savings.

Anticipated Impacts

By streamlining this process, KCHA will increase staff productivity, reduce total
administrative costs of the verification processes, and make its programs less
intrusive for the participants.

Baseline and Benchmarks

The baselines for this activity include:

* KCHA costs incurred verifying incomes through third-party sources: staff
hours and administrative expenses
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* Information on processing times to complete initial, interim and periodic
recertification of tenant information

* Annual # of fraud cases identified
The benchmarks for this activity include:

* 10% decrease in processing time for re-certifications, resulting from reduced
need to request and wait for responses from third-party sources

* 10% reduction in costs associated with collection of third party verifications
* 0% increase in findings of fraud and/or misrepresentation

Data Collection Metrics & Products
Data will be collected from the following:

» Staff interviews to calculate time spent processing verifications and to
complete certification reviews

* HUD’s EIV system and/or Quality Control audits showing received income
that was not previously reported (income threshold report)

* Quality control audits comparing independent third-party sources with
tenant-provided documentation and/or upfront verification systems

* KCHA reports and database used to track reviews completed — including
those resulting in loss recovery
Metrics will include:

* # Staff hours spent on the activity under the current process versus the
proposed process

* Annual administrative costs - mailing expenses, printing, etc. - for activity
under the current process versus the proposed process

* #of incidents of fraud discovered through EIV and Quality Control audits
Authorization Cited
MTW Restated and Amended Agreement: Attachment C, item C.4 (Public Housing)
and item D.1.c (Section 8)
Agency Required Documentation

Not applicable
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Activity #7: 30-Day Referral for Project-based Units

a. Description of MTW activity

KCHA proposes to allow direct owner referrals of applicants after 30 days of
unsuccessful attempts by KCHA staff to fill a vacant Project-based unit. Typically,
for certain Project-based units, numerous applicants from the Project-based
waiting list are contacted before at least one interested applicant is submitted to
the owner. To reduce program administrative costs, shorten lease-up time for
Project-based units and improve owner satisfaction, KCHA will fill vacant units
through direct owner referral after KCHA has attempted for at least 30 days to find
a suitable applicant to fill the vacant unit. Applicants placed in the Project-based
unit by the owner must be otherwise qualified to participate in the program. Final
Rule requirements that owners provide written documentation of their reason for
rejection of any legitimate referral from KCHA would still apply.

b. MTW Statutory Objective

The proposed MTW activity will reduce administrative burden and achieve greater
cost effectiveness by reducing staff time and expense spent locating a suitable and
interested applicant on the Project-based waiting list to fill a vacant unit.

c. Anticipated Impacts

The activity will reduce costs associated with administration of the Project-based
program by reducing extensive search efforts to a more reasonable level and
reducing the time needed to fill vacant units. In addition, KCHA anticipates that
owner satisfaction with the program will improve, meaning less time spent by staff
and supervisors dealing with complaint calls and visits and an increased likelihood
that the owner will continue offering their units to low-income households over the
long-term, thereby increasing housing choice.

d. Baseline and Benchmarks
The baselines for this activity are:

* # of days spent to fill a vacant project-based unit
* Administrative costs to fill a vacant project-based unit
* # of owner refusals to accept KCHA referred applicants
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The proposed benchmarks are:

* 5% reduction in staff hours associated with filling Project-based units.
* 10% reduction in average days to fill vacancies
* 0% increase in owner refusal to accept KCHA referred applicants

Data Collection Metrics & Products

Data will be collected from the following:

* Project-based Vacancy Log which tracks the start and end dates of vacancies
processing time

* Wait list outreach records — recording owner referrals and acceptance

* Staff interviews to report time spent to fill vacant project-based units

Metrics will include:

* Staff hrs/min to fill project-based unit vacancy — current vs. following
implementation

* # of days to fill project-based vacancy
* Change in # of owner refusals to accept KCHA referred client

Authorization Cited

MTW Restated and Amended Agreement: Attachment C, item D.4 and Attachment
D, itemE

Agency Required Documentation

Not applicable

Activity #8: Revision to Interim Review Process — Public Housing and Section 8 Programs

a.

Description of MTW activity

KCHA proposes to streamline its current interim review process. Currently an
interim review is performed whenever a client reports a decrease in income or has
an increase in income if on a zero or credit rent. Unfortunately, even within this
limited scope, the list of interim reviews processed annually is extensive. At the
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same time, the current policy limits the Housing Authority’s ability to increase rent
between recertifications which can increase the number of residents who do not pay
rent commensurate with current income. Options for potential policy changes
include but are not limited to:

* Limiting the circumstances under which interim decreases in rent will be
completed — either by requiring an income decrease above an established
threshold or restricting the number of interim decreases available to a
household over time

* Requiring completion of interim reviews for increases in income when the
income increase exceeds an established threshold

* Requiring an interim review for any increase in income when a previous
interim decrease has been completed

MTW Statutory Objective
The proposed MTW activity achieves greater cost effectiveness by picking up

additional income while still limiting staff time allocated to performing interim
reviews.

Anticipated Impacts
By revising this process, KCHA will increase staff productivity, reduce housing

assistance costs to the Housing Authority, and make its programs less intrusive for
the participants since fewer changes in rent will occur.

Baseline and Benchmarks
The baselines for this activity are:

* Total # of interim reviews performed each year - by those that resulted in
increased rent and decreased rent

* Total annual cost to the KCHA to complete interim reviews
The proposed benchmarks are:

* 5% reduction Housing Authority costs to complete interim reviews
* 5% reduction in the number of interim reviews conducted annually

Data Collection Metrics & Products

Data will be collected from the following:
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* KCHA database and staff log sheets listing number of interims reviews completed
* Check runs detailing housing assistance paid
* Staff interviews detailing time needed to complete interim reviews

Metrics will include:

* Staff hours to complete interim reviews vs. time spent under the proposed
interim review policies

* Annual administrative costs attributed to completion of interim reviews
* Annual change in rent /HAP as a result of interim review processing

Authorization Cited

MTW Restated and Amended Agreement: Attachment C, item 4 (Public Housing)
and item D.1.c (Section 8)

Agency Required Documentation

A hardship policy will be developed for those who have changes that significantly
impact their ability to remain in their current housing.

Activity #9: Limit on number of moves by a Section 8 participant family

a.

Description of MTW activity

KCHA proposes to limit the number of moves a family can make to one every two
years. Currently families can move once a year and many take advantage of this
flexibility despite undue financial and social burdens each time they move. KCHA
staff believes a limit on the number of moves would provide a more stable
environment for the clients and their families, while also saving the costs associated
with moving from unit to unit. Hardship policies will be developed to allow for more
frequent moves in such cases as unusually high rent costs, domestic violence,
problems with the units, or changes in family income or composition.

This change is not expected to impact tenant rent and would not require
development of a hardship policy. Regardless, KCHA will develop a hardship policy
in concert with this change to ensure that households with documented urgent need
(such as victims of domestic violence, families residing in units that have become
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uninhabitable, etc.) continue to be eligible to move to a new unit with Section 8
assistance.

MTW Statutory Objective
The proposed MTW activity achieves a decrease in administrative burden while

assisting families to become more self-sufficient through creation of a more stable
housing environment.

Anticipated Impacts

By limiting the number of moves a family can make, KCHA anticipates a decrease in
the amount of administrative time and expense attributed to processing HAP
contracts and associated paperwork required when a family moves to a new unit
under the program.  Staff also believes families who remain in their units may

develop ties to the neighborhood creating a more stable environment for their
family.

Baseline and Benchmarks
The baselines for this activity are:

* Total # of moves processed each year by the Housing Authority
* Staff hours spent processing “movers” on the program

The proposed benchmarks are:

* 30% reduction in the number of moves processed by the Housing Authority
* 25% reduction in staff hours processing “movers” on the program

Data Collection Metrics & Products
Data will be collected from the following:

* Staff daily log sheets listing number of mover vouchers issued

* Staff interviews to determine time needed to assist households and process
“movers” on the program

Metrics will include:

* Total hours spent processing movers
e #t of households who move to a new Section 8 unit
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Authorization Cited

MTW Restated and Amended Agreement: Attachment C, item D.1.b

Agency Required Documentation

Not applicable

Activity #10: Implement a Maximum Asset Threshold for Public Housing and Section 8

a.

households

Description of MTW activity

KCHA proposes to establish a maximum asset threshold of $100,000 for initial and
continued occupancy in its Public Housing and Section 8 programs. In addition,
KCHA may develop policies that deny eligibility to current homeowners who are not
participants in any homeownership program sponsored by KCHA. Currently,
regulations do not limit the total asset amount that may be held by an applicant or
participant. In addition, current regulations allow homeowners to remain eligible
for housing assistance — even though they could choose to reside in their own unit.
Realistically, this allows families with significant assets to receive housing assistance
when they have sufficient resources to support self-sufficiency. KCHA may establish
policies under this initiative that exempt certain groups, such as elderly and disabled
households, from established asset limits where determined appropriate.

MTW Statutory Objective

The proposed MTW activity achieves greater housing choice for Public Housing
Section 8 participants by ensuring eligibility for KCHA Public Housing and Section 8
assistance is limited to those most in need.

Anticipated Impacts

KCHA anticipates it may see a slight decrease in income and rent and/or increase in
HAP as a result of this change, along with a slight decrease in administrative
expense; however amounts are expected to be negligible. KCHA anticipates little
impact upon applicants or residents as the number of households expected to be
impacted is minimal.
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d. Baseline and Benchmarks
The baseline for this activity is:
* The # of (non-exempt) families in occupancy and on KCHA’s waiting list with
assets above established threshold
The proposed benchmarks are:

* 100% of applicants on KCHA’s waiting list and in occupancy (not exempted from
established limits) have assets below established thresholds.

e. Data Collection Metrics & Products
Data will be collected from the following:
* KCHA’s applicant and tenant database
Metrics will include:

* # of applicants and program participants with assets below the established
thresholds

f. Authorization Cited

MTW Restated and Amended Agreement: Attachment C, item C.2 (Public Housing)
and item D.3.b (Section 8)

g. Agency Required Documentation

Not applicable

Activity #11: Offer incentive payment to Section 8 families ready to leave the program

a. Description of MTW activity

Currently KCHA has about 140 Section 8 program participant households who
receive less than $100 in monthly Housing Assistance Payments (HAP). This activity
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will utilize MTW resources to fund a cash incentive for households among this group
who elect to give up their Housing Choice Voucher in lieu of continued program
participation. Providing households a bonus to take the next step toward self-
sufficiency helps ensure KCHA’s scarce resources are available to those most in
need. For every voucher relinquished, KCHA is able to help another family from the
Section 8 waiting list. At the same time, the incentive payment provides a “safety
net” to assist the household with moving or other expenses that may occur as they
transition to market rate housing.

MTW Statutory Objective
The proposed MTW activity promotes greater self-sufficiency for Section 8

participants by encouraging graduation from subsidized housing into the private
market.

Anticipated Impacts

KCHA anticipates this activity will increase the number of positive graduates from
the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher program by encouraging households to take
the next step toward self-sufficiency. However, increased graduation of upper
income households may impact the overall KCHA total HAP payments and funding

availability as graduating low-HAP families will be replaced with lower income
households requiring greater HAP assistance.

Baseline and Benchmarks

The baselines for this activity are:
» # of vouchers turned by households receiving $100 or less HAP annually
The proposed benchmarks are:

* 20% increase in number of vouchers turned annually by households receiving
$100 or less HAP

Data Collection Metrics & Products

Data will be collected from the following:

* KCHA’s Section 8 HCV program database
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Metrics will include:

* # of families annually that leave the Section 8 program when HAP assistance is
$100 or less before and after program implementation.

f. Authorization Cited

MTW Restated and Amended Agreement: Attachment C, item B.1.b

g. Agency Required Documentation

Not applicable
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SECTION VL.

Ongoing MTW ACTIVITIES: HUD Approval Previously Granted

Section VI: Ongoing MTW ACTIVITIES - HUD Approval Previously Granted

MTW Activity Name

MTW Initiative Description

MTW Statutory
Obijective

Use banked PH ACC to turn-on Public Housing

Implemented - purchase of Pacific Court
(30 units) and Pepper Tree (30 units)

Acquire NEW Public Housing subsidy in units Increase housing choices 2008 completed during FY09

Allow double subsidy

between programs

(pbs8/ph/s8) in limited

circumstances to allow Increase landlord participation, reduce impact on Review initiated in FY 2009 - will carry

transition to new program PH program when tenants transfer Increase housing choice 2008 forward to FY 2010

Block Grant non-mainstream Expand KCHA's MTW block grant to include all Reduce costs and achieve

vouchers non--Mainstream program vouchers greater cost effectiveness 2006 Implemented
Establishes specific policies relating to Reduce costs and achieve

Childcare Policy - PH designated Childcare units @ Greenbridge. greater cost effectiveness 2008 Implemented
Pilot program - utilizes MTW reserves to
provide emergency financial assistance to Reduce costs and achieve

Client Assistance program qualified residents greater cost effectiveness 2008 Implemented
Additional changes to accommodate combined
program approach in relation to NIA
development: eligibility for 2 bdrm units; income Reduce costs and achieve

Combined program eligibility cap @ 50%; Tenant selection greater cost effectiveness 2008 Implemented
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MTW Activity Name

MTW Initiative Description

Changes to increase exemptions, streamline
system of tracking compliance with community

MTW Statutory
Objective

Reduce costs and achieve

Status

7 | Community Service Policy service requirements for PH households greater cost effectiveness 2007 Implemented
Expands the definition of Homeless to include
Definition of Homeless for overcrowded households entering transitional
8 Section 8 programs program Increase housing choice 2004 Implemented
Consider changes that redefine who is Reduce costs and achieve Review/ policy development initiated, will
9 Definition of Live-in Attendant considered a "Live-in Attendant” greater cost effectiveness 2009 carry forward to 2010
Streamlines current HUD requirements to track
Develop a local PH Asset budget expenses and income down to the AMP Reduce costs and achieve
10 | Mgmt Funding model level greater cost effectiveness 2007 Implemented
Streamline income and rent policies for elderly
and disabled households. Move to triennial
recertifications; rent based on 28.3% of gross
Easy Rent Policy for Elderly income, automatic SocSec COLA adjustment
and Disabled Households annually; deductions eliminated except medical Reduce costs and achieve Implemented - initial analysis included in
11 | living on a Fixed Income when expenses exceed $3,000 greater cost effectiveness 2008 FY 2008 MTW Report
Delays application of any decrease in the KCHA
Effective dates of Payment approved Payment Standard until the next Reduce costs and achieve
12 | Standard decrease Annual Review date greater cost effectiveness 2005 Implemented
Implemented - may consider
Use of MTW program and single fund flexibility Reduce costs and achieve modification of contract term in FY 2010
13 | Esco development to develop and operate our own ESCO greater cost effectiveness 2004 or future years
Explore possible changes to increase incentives Reduce costs and achieve Under review, held for inclusion of Public
for resident participation, income growth and greater cost effectiveness; Housing expansion in 2009; changes to
14 | FSS Program modifications decrease costs of program management. Increase housing choice 2008 be proposed late 2009-2010
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MTW Activity Name

Sponsor-based Housing

P
H

MTW Initiative Description

Pilot programs - Uses MTW Block Grant to fund
a Local Sponsor-based program - provides
housing funds to service provider who sub-

MTW Statutory
Objective

Increase housing choices;
Increase self sufficiency of

Status

Implemented in 2007 with 25 unit pilot -
Program expanded in FY 2009 to assist
up to 155 households: Additional
expansion in 2010 and future years
anticipated as need and resources

15 | program leases to targeted household targeted population 2007 identified.
Consider policy that would cap the income
Income Eligibility - maximum residents may have and still be eligible for KCHA Delayed due to time constraints; may be
16 | income limits X programs Increase housing choice 2008 brought forward in 2010
Excludes payments made to a landlord by a
state agency (DSHS) on behalf of a tenant from Reduce costs and achieve
Income Exclusion - State income and rent calculation under the Section 8 greater cost effectiveness;
17 | payments made to a Landlord program Increase housing choice 2004 Implemented
Income verification Allows Section 8 participants for whom $0 HAP Reduce costs and achieve
18 | requirements - $0 HAP is paid to self-certify their annual income greater cost effectiveness 2004 Implemented
Moves the Section 8 program rent cap to 40% of
Gross Rent, up from the 40% of adjusted rent
19 | Increase the Rent Cap standard Increase Housing Choice 2005 Implemented
Current regs conflict with Tax Credit renewal
Lease term for PH Units with terms which required lease to be no more than 1 Reduce costs and achieve
20 | Tax Credit overlay X year. greater cost effectiveness 2008 Implemented
Increase housing choices;
Reduce costs and achieve
21 | Non-Smoking Building Policy X Policy / site development underway greater cost effectiveness 2008 Implemented
Reduce costs and achieve
Occupancy requirements of Allows tenants to remain in occupancy when greater cost effectiveness;
22 | Section 8 households family size exceeds standards by 1 member Increase housing choice 2004 Implemented
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MTW Activity Name

Payment Standards to 120%
FMR w/ RA allowance above

P
H

MTW Initiative Description

Allows Payment Standards up to 120% of FMR
for HCV program (and above 120% for
Reasonable Accommodation) w/o prior HUD

MTW Statutory
Objective

Increase housing choices;
Reduce costs and achieve

Status

Implemented - modified following review

23 | Range approval greater cost effectiveness 2007 of outcomes/impact, see item below
This initiative will decouple payment standards
from Fair Mkt Rents, allowing the HA to establish
24 | Payment Standard Changes standards that fit neighborhood conditions Increase housing choices 2008 Implemented
Implemented - as shown below:
Increase housing choices; additional changes may be implemented
Develop a local project based program that Reduce costs and achieve in FY 2010 and beyond as determined
25 | PBS8 Local Program streamlines contract and program management greater cost effectiveness 2004 necessary by KCHA
Allows the project sponsor to manage the Implemented - modified in FY2005 to
PBS8 Local program: wait waiting list rather than the Housing Authority, as Reduce costs and achieve allow KCHA to solicits applications
26 | list management determined appropriate by KCHA. greater cost effectiveness 2004 directly from service providers
Modifies PBS8 regs that require a general
Section 8 voucher to be available at the end of
PBS8 participation. Replaces offer of a voucher Increase housing choices;
PBS8 Local program: exit with priority access to KCHA's Public Housing Reduce costs and achieve
27 | vouchers program greater cost effectiveness 2004 Implemented
PBS8 Local program: Consider ability to expand use of PH Reduce costs and achieve
28 | Preferences preferences to all PB programs greater cost effectiveness 2008 Pending implementation in FY 2009
Implemented - modified in 2005 to allow
KCHA to assign subsidy to projects
Allows KCHA to allocate PBS8 subsidy non- Increase housing choices; financed through conduit financing
PBS8 Local program: competitively to KCHA controlled units and Reduce costs and achieve program with a minimum contract term of
29 | Allocation of assistance transitional housing greater cost effectiveness 2004 20 yrs
Consider possible changes to lengthen the
PBS8 Local program: allowable term of the Section 8 project based Delayed due to time constraints; may be
30 | Contract term contract Increase housing choice 2009 brought forward in 2010
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MTW Activity Name

PBS8 Local program: PH
rules for PBS8 vouchers
outside a mixed finance

MTW Initiative Description

In connection with Springwood redevelopment
without a mixed-finance approach; current policy
requires use of PBS8 regs, will require waiver to
allow default to PH policy (similar to use at

MTW Statutory
Objective

Reduce costs and achieve

Status

31 | setting Greenbridge) greater cost effectiveness 2008 Implemented
PBS8 Local program: Project Reduce costs and achieve
32 | Based Applications Streamline Applications greater cost effectiveness 2008 Pending implementation in FY 2009
Allows KCHA to prioritize assignment of PB
assistance to units located in low-poverty census
PBS8 Local program: site tracts, including those with poverty rates below
assignment and 20% (15% for families with children and off-site
33 | deconcentration HOPE VI replacement units) Increase housing choice 2004 Implemented
Waives the 25% cap on the number of units in a
development that can be project-based for Implemented - modified in FY 2008 to
PBS8 Local program: unit transitional, supportive or elderly housing allow KCHA to exceed cap when used to
34 | caps per development programs and/or sites with fewer than 20 units Increase housing choice 2004 redevelop PH units
In progress, considering impact of
pending PHAS reporting requirements
Develop locally relevant performance standards Reduce costs and achieve will affect HA's desire to move this
35 | Performance Standards and benchmarks to evaluate the MTW Program greater cost effectiveness 2008 initiative forward
Project-based Local program: Allows PBS8 subsidy to conform to operating Implemented - modified in FY2008 to
combined program rules of other government subsidy program Reduce costs and achieve include redeveloped sites outside a
36 | management when used in mixed finance setting greater cost effectiveness 2005 "mixed-finance" approach
Project-based Local program: Allows KCHA to offer contract terms longer than Reduce costs and achieve Implemented - may be modified in FY
37 | contract term 5 years; greater cost effectiveness 2004 2010 or future years
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MTW Activity Name

Project-based Local program:

MTW Initiative Description

Modifies the types of housing accepted under a
PBS8 contract - allows shared housing,

MTW Statutory
Objective

Increase housing choices;
Reduce costs and achieve

Status

Implemented - FY 2005 modification to
define Existing Housing to housing that
could meet HQS within 180 days adds
manufactured homes, transitional
housing and hi-rise buildings as eligible
housing; FY 2009 expansion to include

38 | eligible unit types excludes Rehab category of units from eligibility greater cost effectiveness 2004 cooperative housing
Project-based Local program: Allows KCHA to modify the HAP contract to Reduce costs and achieve
39 | HAP contracts ensure consistency with MTW changes greater cost effectiveness 2004 Implemented - modified in FY 2009
Assigns standard HCV Payment standards to Implemented - modified in FY2005 to cap
Project-based Local program: the program, but allows modification with Exec. Reduce costs and achieve rents at the Payment Standard for LIHTC
40 | Payment Standards Director approval where appropriate/necessary greater cost effectiveness 2004 units, rather than the Tax Credit rent
Allows KCHA to complete subsidy layering and
Project-based Local program: environmental reviews in-house - in cooperation Reduce costs and achieve
41 | program administration with local responsible entity greater cost effectiveness 2004 Implemented
Modifies inspection rules to require owners to
conduct their own construction/rehab
inspections; allows the management entity to
complete initial inspections (rather than KCHA); Implemented - modified in FY2009 to
Project-based Local program: implements inspection sampling at annual Reduce costs and achieve allow KCHA to inspect units at contract
42 | unit inspections review greater cost effectiveness 2004 execution rather than proposal date
Project-based Local program: Allows participants in wrong-sized units to
43 | unit size remain in place and pay higher rent if needed Increase housing choice 2005 Implemented - modified in 2009
Allows KCHA to determine Rent
Project-based Local program: Reasonableness for units using same process
Rent Reasonableness as Tenant-based program - does not require 3rd Reduce costs and achieve
44 | determinations party appraisals greater cost effectiveness 2004 Implemented
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MTW Activity Name

Project-based Local program:

MTW Initiative Description

Allows KCHA to assign PBS8 subsidy to a
limited number of "demonstration" projects not
qualifying under standard policy, but which serve

MTW Statutory
Objective

Increase housing choices;
Reduce costs and achieve

Status

45 | subsidy assignment an important public purpose greater cost effectiveness 2004 Implemented
Allow Public Housing program to restrict
eligibility of single persons households who do
not otherwise qualify as elderly, near-elderly, Reduce costs and achieve
46 | Public Housing Eligibility disabled, or displaced greater cost effectiveness 2008 Implemented
Implement a streamlined waiting list system for
Public Housing that combines Site-based, Increase housing choices;
Public Housing Site-based Regional and Set-aside waiting lists; streamlines | Reduce costs and achieve Implemented - possible modification in
47 | and Regional waiting lists implementation rules greater cost effectiveness 2004 FY 2010 or future plan years
Allows applicants with income below 30% of AMI | Reduce costs and achieve
Public Housing Waiting List to qualify for a housing preference without greater cost effectiveness;
48 | Preferences independent verification by KCHA Increase housing choice 2004 Implemented
Allow KCHA to maintain utilization above 100%
during year without impact on funding; current
Remove Cap on Voucher allocation formulas require avg utilization at or
49 | Distribution below 100% Increase housing choices 2007 Implemented
Develop a revised rent policy for working and
work-able households that encourages self-
sufficiency and income progression and Encourage employment and
Rent Policy Phase Il - increases positive graduation from subsidized economic self-sufficiency;
Working and Work-able housing while increasing administrative Reduce costs and achieve Policy development in progress -
50 | Households efficiency and cost effectiveness greater cost effectiveness; 2008 implementation anticipated in 2009
Rent Reasonableness - Allows KCHA to complete Rent Reasonableness
reduction in frequency of determinations only when a Section 8 Landlord Reduce costs and achieve
51 | tests has asked for an increase in the contract rent greater cost effectiveness 2004 Implemented
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MTW Activity Name

Rent Reasonableness at

MTW Initiative Description

Allows KCHA staff to perform Rent Reasonable

MTW Statutory
Objective

Reduce costs and achieve

Status

52 | KCHA owned units inspections of KCHA owned properties greater cost effectiveness 2004 Implemented
Give incentives that assist in ROP finalized development in July 2009 -
Develop a local FSS program pilot that obtaining employment and program targets 50 households in E. King
Resident Opportunity Plan empowers residents to increase income and becoming economically self- County Park Lake Homes Site Il (Seola
53 | (ROP) successfully graduate from housing subsidy sufficient 2007 Gardens)
Increase income - encourage
Resident Service Stipends - employment; Reduce costs
increase amount of exclusion Allow residents to retain earnings up to $500 and achieve greater cost
54 | allowed without inclusion in rent calculation effectiveness 2008 Implemented
Streamline verification of assets by changing
definition to include only assets valued above Reduce costs and achieve
$50,000; Income of assets below threshold is greater cost effectiveness; Implemented - modification proposed for
Revised definition and excluded from income calculation; Tenant Increase economic self- FY 2009 to revise / eliminate treatment of
55 | treatment of Asset Income allowed to self-certify valued below $50,000. sufficiency 2008 imputed income and disposal costs
Financial Assistance funded through MTW
reserves, Modified rules to meet local
circumstances: eligibility to allow use for PH Increase housing choice;
residents with an HCV; mini income Increase economic self-
requirement; min savings prior to entry, not sufficiency and encourage Complete - program exceeded goal to
56 | ROSS Grant Homeownership limited to first time homebuyers, etc employment 2004 assist 30 households over 3-year term
Increase Housing Choice for residents by
developing a policy that allows residents to
transfer among KCHA programs - promotes Increase housing choice; Implemented - modification proposed for
efficient use of KCHA housing resources to meet | Reduce costs and achieve FY 2009 following review of first year
57 | Open-door Transfer Policy client needs through streamlined access greater cost effectiveness 2007 results
Increase program efficiency by removing
eligibility for those currently on a Federal Reduce costs and achieve
58 | Section 8 Applicant Eligibility Subsidy program greater cost effectiveness 2007 Implemented
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MTW Activity Name

Section 8 Single, non-

P
H

MTW Initiative Description

Restrict eligibility of single person households
who are neither elderly or disabled or near-

MTW Statutory
Objective

Reduce costs and achieve

Status

59 | disabled household eligibility elderly greater cost effectiveness 2009 Implemented
Ability to release HAP with minor fail @ annual
HQS Inspection Standards: inspection and owner agreement to repair within Reduce costs and achieve
60 | Minor Fails @ Annual 30 days greater cost effectiveness 2004 Implemented
Ability to release HAP with minor fail @ initial
HQS Inspection Standards: inspection and owner agreement to repair within Reduce costs and achieve
61 | Minor Fails @ Move-in 30 days greater cost effectiveness 2007 Implemented
Increase efficiency of operation through
reduction in repeated visits to the same property
annually; Annual inspections completed within
8-20 months of initial inspection and annually
HQS Inspection Standards: thereafter to allow inspections to be grouped Reduce costs and achieve
62 | Unit clustering according to location/property greater cost effectiveness 2006 Implemented
HQS Inspection Standards: Allows KCHA staff, rather than a 3rd party entity,
inspection of KCHA owned to complete HQS inspection of KCHA owned Reduce costs and achieve
63 | properties properties greater cost effectiveness 2004 Implemented
HQS Inspection Standards: Allows HQS unit inspections 8-20 months Reduce costs and achieve
64 | Unit Clustering following the date of initial inspection greater cost effectiveness 2007 Implemented
Allows annual HQS inspections under the
HQS Inspection Standards: Section 8 program to be completed within 120 Reduce costs and achieve
65 | date of annual inspections days of annual date greater cost effectiveness 2004 Implemented
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MTW Activity Name

Section 8 requirements to
provide- proper notice to

P
H

MTW Initiative Description

Requires participants to provide notice to move
by the 20th of the month in order to have the

MTW Statutory
Objective

Reduce costs and achieve

Status

66 | move paperwork processed that month greater cost effectiveness 2004 Implemented
Section 8 program participants are allowed to
Self-certification of DSHS co- self-certify $50 or less received as pass through Reduce costs and achieve
66 | pay from DSHS childcare subsidy greater cost effectiveness 2004 Implemented
Self-certification of family Allows applicants to self-certify membership in Reduce costs and achieve
67 | membership X the household at the time of admission greater cost effectiveness 2004 Implemented
Reduce costs and achieve
Self-certification of Housing Applicants with income below 75% of 30% of greater cost effectiveness;
68 | Preference AMI allowed to self-certify housing preference Increase housing choice 2004 Implemented
Modified SSN verification/documentation to Implemented - however, PIC reporting
Social Security Number household members 18 and older - rather than Reduce costs and achieve currently limits cost savings of this
69 | Verifications X the regulatory requirement of age 6 greater cost effectiveness 2004 initiative
Escalate use of Section 8 to address number of Reduce costs and achieve Implemented - Modification in FY 2009
70 | Transfer Policy X households who are over-housed greater cost effectiveness 2008 pending
Develop alternate protocols for establishing and
applying Utility Allowances for PH and S8 Reduce costs and achieve In progress in conjunction with Phase 2
71 | Utility Allowances - PH - S8 X households greater cost effectiveness 2008 rent reform
Decrease expenses and staff time in re-verifying Reduce costs and achieve
72 | Verification Expiration dates X information - set outside limit at 180 days greater cost effectiveness 2008 Implemented
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SECTION VII. SOURCES and USES of FUNDING*

A. Sources and Uses of MTW Funds

As an MTW Block Grant agency, KCHA combines all Public Housing Operations and Capital
resources into a single fund with full funding flexibility. The tables below, presented in the
format required under KCHA’s MTW Agreement with HUD, detail KCHA’s anticipated
sources and uses of funds for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2010 and ending
December 31, 2010.*

Sources of MTW funds Planned Amount
HCV block grant S 84,048,000
Public Housing subsidy S 8,372,000
Public Housing rental income S 5,637,000
Public Housing non-rental income S 135,000
Public Housing Capital Fund S 4,100,000
Interest income S 590,000
Total | S 102,882,000

Uses of MTW funds Planned Amount
HCV Program Operations S 71,488,000
Sponsor-based Program Operations S 1,600,000
Public Housing Program Operations S 9,419,000
Public Housing Rehabilitation S 7,000,000
Resident Service Activities S 1,878,000
Site and Facility Utilities S 2,277,000
Provision/Acquisition of New Affordable Housing S 6,403,000
Debt Repayment S 256,000
Computer System Upgrade — FY 2010 installation S 1,700,000
MTW Program Administration S 503,000
Misc. Development Costs S 260,000
Other Misc. Operations S 98,000
Total | S 102,882,000

* please note: Amounts shown are estimated for CY 2010 as actual amounts cannot be precisely
established until HUD funding levels for the year have been finalized.
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Sources and Uses of State and Local Funds

Sources of State/Local funds

‘ Planned Amount

City of Bellevue CDBG Grant S 442,944
King County CDBG Grant S 350,000
Washington State Dept of Commerce S 2,659,472
Puget Sound Energy S 1,088,000
Total | $ 4,540,416 |

Uses of State/Local funds ‘ Planned Amount

Agency-managed housing operations

S 1,058,636

Home Repair & Weatherization

S 3,481,780

Total | $ 4,540,416

Sources and Uses of Central Office Cost Center Funds

Sources of COCC funds ‘ Planned Amount

Public Housing Management Fee S 1,652,000
Public Housing Bookkeeping Fee S 713,000
Public Housing Asset Management Fee S 1,156,000
CFP Management Fee S 350,000
HCV Management Fee S 1,403,000
HCV Bookkeeping Fee S 877,000
Regional Maintenance charges S 2,326,000
Grant Income - CFP S 1,875000
Investment income-operating S 328,000
Conduit loan fees S 148,000
Misc income S 3,000
Cash transfers from locally-owned properties S 2,697,000
Incoming payments on note receivable S 61,000
Total [$ 13,589,000
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D.

Uses of COCC funds ‘ Planned Amount

Administrative Salaries S 5,053,000
Administrative Benefits S 1,515,000
Supplies & Equipment S 360,000
Professional Services S 690,000
Travel & Training S 331,000
Communications S 344,000
Insurance S 38,000
Other Administrative Expenses S 263,000
Maintenance salaries S 1,319,000
Maintenance benefits S 472,000
Utilities S 73,000
Other Facility Expenses S 80,000
Computer System S 2,500,000
Other capital purchases S 220,000
Transfer to vehicle replacement fund S 25,000
Debt Service Payment on CO Building S 116,000

Total | $ 13,399,000

Changes in Cost Allocations from 1937 Act Regulations

To date, changes from 1937 Act Regulations have not been implemented.

Uses of Single Fund Flexibility

KCHA has utilized funding flexibility of the MTW Block grant across traditional lines to
fund a number of MTW activities outlined in this and prior Annual Plans and Reports.
The following is a listing of major activities in which single-fund budget authority has
assisted KCHA in the development of innovative programs to meet the housing needs of
the local jurisdiction:

O KCHA’s Sponsor-based (formerly known as the Provider-based) program
implemented in 2007 enables more than 150 households to access safe, secure
housing with wrap-around supportive services designed to break the cycle of
homelessness;
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O Programs to assist homeless families attain housing stability and self sufficiency
through access to transitional housing resources;

O KCHA’s new Resident Opportunity Plan (ROP), approved for implementation by
the Board of Commissioners in 2009 will help up to 100 households gain the
tools needed to move up and out of subsidized housing;

O Redevelopment of distressed Public Housing, such as Birch Creek (formerly
Springwood Apartments). To date, Single-fund flexibility of the MTW program
has enabled KCHA to take proactive steps to preserve more than 1,000 units of
affordable housing resources for low-income households over the long-term.

O Acquisition and preservation of affordable housing resources throughout the
Puget Sound region. In early 2009, KCHA utilized MTW's single-fund flexibility to
support acquisition of Pepper Tree (in Shoreline) and Pacific Court (in Tukwila) -
providing an additional 62 units of affordable housing for extremely low-income
residents of King County. The flexibility provided through the use of MTW block
grant financing — and the ability to provide short and long-term financial
assistance to encourage investment in affordable housing development —is a key
component of KCHA’s strategy in addressing the needs of the local community.

F. MTW Reserve Balance (Optional)

KCHA elects not to include this OPTIONAL information.
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SECTION VIll. ADMINISTRATIVE

A. Required Resolution, Forms and Certifications

U Comments received regarding MTW Annual Plan Components

v’ Please see Pages 55 - 58

U Board Resolution approving the FY 2010 Annual Plan

v’ Please see Pages 59 - 60

O PHA Certification of Compliance with MTW Plan requirements

v’ Please see Page 61 - 62

U Other HUD Information Required by HUD — Attached as Appendices and
submitted as a separate .pdf file

Appendix A: Audit Report in compliance with OMB Circular A-133
Appendix B: Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (HUD SF-LLL)
Appendix C: Drug-Free Housing Certification (HUD 50070)
Appendix D: Certification of Payments to Influence Federal
Transactions (HUD 50071)

Appendix E: Capital Fund P&E Reports for open fund years

AN NN

B. Description of any Planned or Ongoing Agency Evaluations of the MTW
Demonstration

Although KCHA is taking active steps to measure outcomes and the local impact of
activities made possible through participation in the MTW demonstration, we have
not enlisted any outside source to complete a full evaluation of the MTW program.
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Sharon Bosteder

Group/Agency

RAC - Valli Kee (PH)

FY 2010 MTW Annul Plan

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Comment Received

Likes that the Plan has been written so it is easy to
understand. Must take a lot of work and wanted HA to
know it's really appreciated.

Terry Stewart

RAC - Section 8 HCV

Likes what she reads. It's good that KCHA is working to
help homeless families. Likes the way information is
explained - it makes sense and is easy to understand

KCHA Response

Thank you.

Lillie Clinton

RAC - Wellswood (PH)

Asked whether the KCHA would consider a program for
single persons with income between $2,000 and $1,000 a
month.

David Madison

RAC - Section 8 HCV

Thinks that there will be sudden spike in single men (over
50) who will need to find housing; many are struggling.

KCHA's limited resources are first directed to support programs
that assist the County’s most at risk populations: frail elderly and
disabled households and families with children. Unfortunately, the
demand among these targeted groups is significant and KCHA has
been unable to allocate funding to provide assistance for other low
income households.

Steven Martinez

RAC - Section 8 HCV

"been homeless, can relate" - thinks its great KCHA is
taking care of homeless families and individuals; It also
would be good to have some type of assistance to help
with deposits when people move

KCHA does not have a program to assist with deposits when
people move. Rather, residents in need of "one-time" assistance
are directed to one of the many support service agencies in the
region with programs designed for this purpose.

Lillie Clinton

RAC - Wellswood (PH)

What about homeownership? Is there anything we are
doing there?

While KCHA’s HOPE VI developments are targeting 20% of
homeownership opportunities to households with income below
80% of the AMI, the Housing Authority does not currently operate
a homeownership program and the Plan does not include a
component to add one in the next year. During FY 2010, KCHA
efforts will focus on improving incomes and self-sufficiency - laying
the ground work that may help residents attain homeownership in
the future.
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Group/Agency

FY 2010 MTW Annul Plan

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Comment Received

KCHA Response

Is there any drawback to mixing funding sources between

KCHA carefully manages its programs - to date, we have not
experienced any drawback in the ability to move funding between

this changes would have and what the savings would be -
also, stressed that any change would need to ensure
protection for those who need to move.

Tamara Brown

Solid Ground

Re: Limiting mid-year moves - agrees that stability in
the housing unit is good and could be a benefit to families

Terry McLarkey RAC - Casa Juanita (PH) programs like KCHA does with the MTW program? programs. Rather,. this fle'xibility aII.o.ws us to direct funding where
it is needed most, increasing our ability to respond to local needs
and circumstances efficiently..

Questioned KCHA initiative to limit mid-year moves by
Section 8 families - is KCHA considering a year lease
term?; what if the tenant is "sideways" with the landlord
Nick Straley Columbia Legal Services and needs to move? Interested in how much of animpact | KCHA recognizes that any policy changes must allow for a resident

move where unique circumstances of hardship exist. To ensure a
full understanding of potential impacts of policy implementation,
KCHA will ensure that policy development will not move forward
without significant opportunity for resident and community input
and feedback.

Nick Straley

Columbia Legal Services

Re: Initiative 14 - Proposal to create a short-term
program for 50% - 80% households. Is there a real crying
need to assist families up to 80% of medial income (refers
to proposed Short-term HCV program)? As opposed to
programs for those who have chronic problems, does not
think this would be a good use of funds

Megan Altimore

Hopelink

Re: Initiative 14 -Proposal to create a short-term
program for 50% - 80% households. question of whether
program will look at pre-risk indicators to loosing housing
- program could be effective if this was considered - could
help eliminate future displacement - however, as with
group - concerned over the income level targeted

In light of the concerns raised, KCHA has determined that this item
will not move forward in FY 2010 and has removed it from the final
draft presented for Board approval.
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Group/Agency

FY 2010 MTW Annul Plan

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Comment Received

Re: Initiative 14 - Proposal to create a short-term
program for 50% - 80% households. thinks other dollars

KCHA Response

In light of the concerns raised, KCHA has determined that this item

Tamara Brown Solid Ground are available or will be soon in similar way - so this may will not move forward in FY 2010 and has removed it from the final
not be a good step - KCHA should look at other funding draft presented for Board approval.
pools like rapid re-housing and THOR program
Current policy changes under review would replace the current
Public Housing flat rent system. Regarding immigrants being
Re: Proposed Phase Il Rent Policy - Will flat rents accepted: further conversation revealed that a question regarding
. 5 . : . ; o . B .
Abdullah Hassan ReWA continue (PH)? A lot of immigrants are moving from Ohio | Section 8 participants who wish to "port-in" to Washington state.

aren't being accepted - why? Seems they are going to
Everett because rents in KC are too high

Rent levels in King County may be considered too high by their
originating agency. These households may be settling in Everett
in order to obtain a unit priced within rent restrictions set by their
originating PHA.

Nick Straley

Columbia Legal Services

What is the experience with Easy Rent? How is it
impacting residents, Property Managers?

Overall, both KCHA and resident response with the Easy Rent
policy have been favorable. Tenants report that the system is
easier to understand, while staff time has been freed up allowing
increased focus on residents and property management issues.
KCHA continues to train staff to ensure that the policy is
understood and properly administered. An analysis of the
program's impact will be included in KCHA's FY 2009 MTW Report
which will be completed in March 2010.
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Tamara Brown

Group/Agency

Solid Ground

FY 2010 MTW Annul Plan

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Comment Received

Re: Proposed Phase Il Rent Policy - Minimum Rent of
$25: When clients don't pay rent it doesn’t seem to help
them very much - wonders whether not charging any rent
and using credit rents (like KCHA does now) actually is a
dis-service to residents; Agrees with THOR program
approach that requires a $25 payment - but wonders how
this could affect a disabled person who lost income.

Nick Straley

Columbia Legal Services

Re: Does having a different format for Phase 1 and 2
households cause concern? - Per Nick, as long as there is
flexibility around format he did not think so. If the policy
leads to more evictions, terminations or homelessness
then recommendation is don't do it.

KCHA Response

No direct response needed. KCHA continues to review a variety of
Phase Il Rent Initiative options and will consider these comments
in conjunction with further policy development. Additional
opportunities for community and stakeholder feedback will be
provided before new rent policies are finalized.
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OMB Control Number: 2577.0216
Expiration Date: 12/31/2011

Annual Moving to Work Plan U.S. Depariment of Housing and Urban Development
Certifications of Compliance Office of Public and Indian Heusing

Certifications of Compliance with Regulations
Board Resclution to Accompany the Annual Moving to Work Plan

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the Public Housing Agency (PHA) listed below, as its
Chairman or other authorized PHA official if there is no Board of Commissioners, | approve the
submission of the Annual Moving to Work Plan for the PHA fiscal year beginning _January 1, 2010 ,
hereinafter referred to as "the Plan", of which this document is apart and make the following
certifications and agreements with the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) in
connection with the submission of the Plan and implementation thereof:

1. The PHA published a notice that a hearing would be held, that the Plan and all information relevant to the
public hearing was available for public inspection for at least 30 days, that there were no less than 15 days
between the public hearing and the approval of the Plan by the Board of Commissioners, and that the
PHA conducted a public hearing to discuss the Plan and invited public comment.

2. The Agency took into consideration public and resident comment hefore approval of the Plan by the
Board of Commissioners or Board of Directors in order to incorporate any public comments into the
Annual MTW Plan;

3. The PHA will carry out the Plan in conformity with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Fair Housing
Act, section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and title Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990.

4, The PHA will affirmatively further fair housing by examining their programs or proposed programs,
identify any impediments 1o fair housing choice within those programs, address those impediments in a
reasonable fashion in view of the resources available and work with local jurisdictions to implement any
of the jurisdiction's initiatives to affirmatively further fair housing that require the PHA's involvement and
maintain records reflecting these analyses and actions.

5. The PHA will comply with the prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of age pursuant to the Age
Discrimination Act of 1975,

6. The PHA will comply with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 and 24 CFR Part 41, Policies and
Procedures for the Enforcement of Standards and Requirements for Accessibility by the Physically
Handicapped.

7. The PHA will comply with the requirements of section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of
1968, Employment Opportunities for Low-or Very-Low Income Persons, and with its implementing
regufation at 24 CFR Part

8.  The PHA will comply with tequirements with regard to a drug free workplace required by 24 CFR Part 24,
Subpart F.

9. The PHA will comply with requirements with regard to compliance with restrictions on lobbying required
by 24 CFR Part 87, together with disclosure forms i required by this Part, and with restrictions on
payments to influence Federal Transactions, in accordance with the Byrd Amendment and implementing
regulations at 49 CFR Part 24.

10. The PHA will comply with acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance
and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24 as
applicable,
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12.

13.

14.

15.
16.

17.

18.

OMB Control Number: 2577-0216
Expiration Date: 12/31/2011

The PHA will take appropriate affirmative action to award contracts to minority and women's business
enterprises under 24 CFR 5.105( a}.

The PHA wilt provide HUD or the responsible entity any documentation that the Department needs to
carty out its review under the National Environmental Policy Act and other related authorities in
accordance with 24 CFR Part 58.

With respect to public housing the PHA will comply with Davis-Bacon or HUD determined wage rate
requirements under section 12 of the United States Housing Act of 1937 and the Contract Work Hours
and Safety Standards Act.

The PHA will keep records in accordance with 24 CFR 85.20 and facilitate an effective audit to determine
compliance with program requirements,

The PHA will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act and 24 CFR Part 35,

The PHA will comply with the policies, guidelines, and requirements of OMB Circular No. A-87 (Cost
Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal Governments) and 24 CFR Part 85 (Administrative
Reguirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State, Local and Federally Recognized Indian
Tribal Governments.).

The PHA will undertake only activities and programs covered by the Plan in a manner consistent with its
Plan and will utilize covered grant funds only for activities that are approvable under the Moving 1o Work
Agreement and Statement of Authorizations and included in its Plan.

All attachments to the Plan have been and will continue to be available at all times and all lacations that
the Plan is available for pubiic inspection. All required supporting documents have been made available
for public inspection along with the Plan and additional requirements at the primary business office of the
PHA and at all other times and locations identified by the PHA in its Plan and will continue to be made
available at least at the primary business office of the PHA.

PHA Name PHA Number/HA Code

| hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the
accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate, Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and
statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties. {18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31
U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

/Iﬁ'/\cw Hollard- Youne C/I arr.

Name of Authorized Officidl 7 Title

~

Signature

Date /

Ml 4 ro /7/09
e / 7/ ’/
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We are issuing this report in order fo provide information on the Housing Authority’s financial.
condition.

Sincerely,

BRIAN SONNTAG, CGFM
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Federal Summary

King County Housing Authority
July 1, 2007 through December 31, 2008

The results of our audit of the King County Housing Authority are summarized below in
accordance with U.S, Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An unqualified opinion was issued on the financial statements of the business-type activities and
the aggregate discretely presented component units.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:

® Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

® Material Weaknesses: We identified no significant deficiencies that we consider to be
material weaknesses.

We noted no instances of noncompliance that were material fo the financial statements of the
Housing Authority.

FEDERAL AWARDS

Internal Control Over Major Programs:

® Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of
infernal control over major federal programs that we consider to be significant
deficiencies.

° Material Weaknesses: We identified no significant deficiencies that we consider to be

material weaknesses.

We issued an unqualified opinion on the Housing Authority's compliance with requirements
applicable to its major federal programs.

We reported no findings that are required to be disclosed under OMB Circular A-133.

Washington State Auditor's Office
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identification of Major Programs:
The following were major programs during the period under audit:

CFDA No. Program Title

14.850 Public and Indian Housing
14.871 Housing Choice Vouchers
14.881 Moving to Work Demonstration Program

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as prescribed
by OMB Circular A-133, was $3,000,000.

The Housing Authority qualified as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular A-133.

Washington State Auditor's Office
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards

King County Housing Authority
July 1, 2008 through December 31, 2008

Board of Commissioners
King County Housing Authority
Tukwila, Washington

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate
discretely presented component units of the King County Housing Authority, King County,
Washington, as of and for the 18 months ended December 31, 2008, which collectively
comprise the Housing Authority’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon

dated September 4, 2009. Our report was modified fo include a reference to other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroiler General of the United States. Other auditors
audited the financial statemenis of the discretely presented component units. Those financial
statements were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Housing Authority’s internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing Authority’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing Authority's
internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect misstatemenis on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control
deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the Housing Authority's
ability to initiate, authorize, record, process or report financial data reliably in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a
misstatement of the Housing Authority's financial statements that is more than inconsequential
will not be prevented or detected by the Housing Authority's internal control,

Washington State Auditor's Office
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A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements
wiil not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control.

Qur consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and wouid not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above.

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Housing Authority’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of the Housing Authority's
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we dc not express such an
opinion.

The results of our fests disciosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended for the information and use of management, the Board of
Commissioners, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. However, this report is a
matter of public record and its distribution is not fimited. it also serves fo disseminate
information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess government operations.

BRIAN SONNTAG, CGFM
STATE AUDITOR

September 4, 2009

Washington State Auditor's Office
4



Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance
with Requirements Applicable to each Major
Program and Internal Control over Compliance
in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

King County Housing Authority
July 1, 2007 through December 31, 2008

Board of Commissioners
King County Housing Authority
Tukwila, Washington

COMPLIANCE

We have audited the compliance of the King County Housing Authority, King County,
Washington, with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Circufar A-133 Compiiance Supplement that are applicable to
its major federal programs for the 18 months ended December 31, 2008. The Housing
Authority’s major federal programs are identified in the Federal Summary. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its major federal programs
is the responsibility of the Housing Authority’s management. Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on the Housing Authority’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to the financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroiler General of the United
States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audifs of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profif
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that couid have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the Housing Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination
on the Housing Authority's compliance with those requirements.

in our opinion, the Housing Authority complied, in all material respects, with the requirements

referred to above that are applicable to its major federal programs for the 18 months ended
December 31, 2008,

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

The management of the Housing Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and

Washington State Auditor's Office
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grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the
Housing Authority's internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compiiance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Housing Authority's infernal coniroi over compliance.

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or
operation of a conirol does not aliow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of
compiiance requirement of a federal program on a fimely basis. A significant deficiency is a
control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s
ability to administer a federal program such that there is a more than remote likelihood that
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in a more than remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevenied or detected by the entity's internal
control.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and wouid not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internai
contro! that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above.

This report is intended for the information of management, the Board of Commissioners, federal
awarding agencies and pass-through enfities. However, this report is a matter of public record
and its distribution is not limited. It also serves to disseminate information to the public as a
reporting tool to help citizens assess government operations.

BRIAN SONNTAG, CGFM
STATE AUDITOR

September 4, 2009

Washington State Auditor's Office
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independent Auditor’s Report on Financial
Statements

King County Housing Authority
July 1, 2007 through December 31, 2008

Board of Commissioners
King County Housing Authority
Tukwila, Washington

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the
aggregate discretely presented component units of the King County Housing Authority, King
County, Washington, as of and for the 18 months ended December 31, 2008, which coliectively
comprise the Housing Authority's basic financial statemenis as listed on page 9. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Housing Authority's management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did
not audit the financial statements of the tax credit partnerships identified in Note 7, which
represent 100 percent of the assets, net assets, revenues and expenses of the aggregate
discretely presented component units of the Housing Authority. Those financial statements
were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished fo us, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the tax credit partnerships, is based
solely on the reports of other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statemenis are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the
discretely presented component units were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards. An audit inciudes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as weli as evaiuating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of the other
auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements
referred fo above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
business-type activities and the aggregate discretely presented component units of the King
County Housing Authority, as of December 31, 2008, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the 18 months then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report on our
consideration of the Housing Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compiiance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, confracts and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal

Washington State Auditor's Office
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control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the internal confrol over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
should be considered in assessing the resuits of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 10 through 16 is not a required part of the
basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation
of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and
express no opinion on it.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Housing Authority’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profif Organizations. This schedule is not a required part of the basic
financiaf statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statements for The Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A are
also presented for purposes of additional analysis. These statements are not a required part of
the basic financial statements. Such suppiemental information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

The Property Listing is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary
information presented for the purposes of additional analysis. Such information has not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statenments and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

BRIAN SONNTAG, CGFM
STATE AUDITOR

September 4, 2009
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Financial Section

King County Housing Authority
July 1, 2007 through December 31, 2008

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Management's Discussion and Analysis — 2008

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balance Sheet - 2008

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets — 2008
Statement of Cash Flows — 2008

Notes fo Financial Statemenis — 2008

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Notes — 2008

Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A — Balance Sheet — 2008

Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A — Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - 2008

Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A — Statement of Cash Flows —
2008

Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A — Notes to the Financial
Statements — 2008

Property Listing — 2008
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSES

This first section of the annual financial report presents a discussion and analysis of King County Housing
Authority’s (KCHA) financial performance during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, If should be read
in conjunction with the Authority’s financial statements, which immediately follow this section.

KCHA administers a broad range of federally and locally financed housing programs serving an area of over
2,134 square miles, covering all of King County outside of the cities of Seattle and Renton. The King County
Housing Authority owns or manages 8,396 units of housing and provides rental subsidies to over 7,600
additional households. The majority of KCHA’s program participants have incomes below 20% of area
median income. KCHA'’s inventory includes 2,539 units of public housing in King County and in the ity of
Olympia, which lies outside of King County. In addition, KCHA manages two public housing sites with 80
units via contract in the City of Sedro-Woolley,

The financial performance discussed in the following analyses does not include tax credit partnerships. The
tax credit partnerships, with 20 sites and 2,599 units, are owned by separate limited partnerships/corporations
with the Authority acting as general partner/managing member. The tax credit properties are fee managed by
outside private property management firms with the exception of Harrison House, Valley Park, and Egis,
which are managed by KCHA’s Housing Management department. Because of the different corporate
structure of the partnerships, their operations are not carried directly on the books of the Authority but are
listed as component units on the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Net Assets and are detailed in Note 7. With those exceptions, neither these units, nor their financial data,
are included in the analysis and financial reports that follow.

FISCAL YEAR 2008 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The Authority continues to be a Moving to Work (MTW) Public Housing agency, allowing for certain
financial flexibilities and empowering the Authority to waive certain parts of Section 8 and 9 of the
Housing Act of 1937,

e The Authority changed fiscal years from a June 30 year end to December 31 resulting in a special 18-
month reporting period running from July 1, 2007 until December 31, 2008. Accordingly, all
operating data will be substantially higher than Fiscal Year 2067, which was a traditional 12-month
period.

¢ Total assets of the Authority exceeded total liabilities at December 31, 2068 by $317 million.

¢ Total change in net assets for Fiscal Year 2008 was $70.4 millicn and includes $13.3 million in capital
grants contributions.

& Restricted MTW reserves rose by $29.0 million during the year.

e QOperating expenses were $174.4 million and include $91.1 million in housing assistance payments
made to landlords, or 53% of operating expenses.

e A 520 million Hope Vi grant was received from the Department of Housing and Urban Development
for the rehabilitation of the Park Lake I1 public housing site.

s Several significant rehabilitation projects were undertaken or continued during the year including
Greenbridge, Egis and Springwood. A mobile home park, Wonderland Estates, was purchased to
preserve housing affordability for dozens of low-income seniors,

Washington Stale Auditor's Office
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The operations of the Authority consist of proprietary funds, which are designed to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with external financial requirements. The measurement focus for proprietary fand accounting is
similar to that used in the privaie sector.

Many of the funds maintained by the Authority are required by the federal Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD). Others are used to enhance accountability and control.

AUTHORITY-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Authority-wide financial statements are designed to be corporate-like in that all business type activities are
consolidated into cohumnar format, presenting totals by category for the entire Authority.

These statements include a Balance Sheet. The Balance Sheet reports all financial and capital resources for the
Authority. The Balance Sheet is presented in the format where assets equal liabilities plus “net assets”,
formerly known as equity. Assets and Habilities are presented in order of liguidity, and are classified as
“current” {generally, those assets convertible into cash within one year), and “non-current”,

The Balance Sheet presents information about the net avaiiable liquid (non-capital) assets, net of liabilities, for
the entire Authority. Net assets are reported in three broad categories:

Net Assets, Invested in Capital Assets. Net of Related Debt: This componeni of net assets consists of all
capital assets, reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, morigages, notes or other borrowings
that are attributable to the acquisition, copstruction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted Net Assets: This component of net assets consists of restricted asseis when constrainis are
placed on the asset by external forces such as creditors (e.g. debt covenants), grantors, contribuiors, laws,
regulations, etc., net of any offsetting, associated liabilities. Restrictions on assets imposed voluntarily by
KCHA do not result in restricted net assets.

Unrestricted Net Assets: This component of net assets consists of net assets that do not meet the definition
of “Net Assets Invested in Capital Assets, Net of related Debt”, or “Restricted Net Assets”.

The Authority-wide financial statements also include a Starement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net

Assets (similar to an income statement). This statement includes operating revenues, such as rental income,
operating expenses such as administrative, utilities, and maintenance, and depreciation, and non-operating
revenue and expenses, such as grant revenue, investment income and interest expense. The focus of the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets is the “Change in Net Assets” which is similar to
Net Income or Loss.

Finally, a Statement of Cash Flows is included, which discloses net cash provided by, or used for operating
activities, non-capital financing activities, capital and related financing activities, and investing activities.

Washington State Auditor's Office
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY

Condensed Balance Sheet:

Table A-1 presents the Authority’s Condensed Balancg Sheet for Fiscal Years 2008 and 2007. The purpose of
the statement is to provide a snapshot of the financial condition of the Authority at a certain point in time,
Presented are the assets, liabilities, and net assets of the Authority at the end of the fiscal vear. Supplementary

information is provided in the accompanying notes that further explain and support the data presented in table
A-1.

Current and other assets, excluding capital assets, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 total $419.5
million and are comprised of $115.6 million in cash, cash equivalents, and investments and $300.7 million in
accounts, notes and financing lease receivables. The $125 4 million inecrease from the prior fiscal year is due
primarily to 2 $29.0 million increase in MTW reserves and a $92.1 million increase in accounts, notes and
financing leases receivable. The increase in receivables derives primarily from additional notes and financing
leases received from a) bonds issued to the Soosette Creek LLC for $37.5 million, b} 2 $22.2 million financing
lease to Soosette Creek, and c) a variable-rate bond issued to the Egis Partnership which is due in full in 2009

Capital assets for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 are $236.8 million. Included in this category are
land and improvements, buildings and improvements, personal property, and construction-in-progress. The
$14.9 million net increase in capital assets from fiscal year 2008 is attributable to the purchase or construction
of $63.6 million additional capital assets, $44 million of which relate to the Greenbridge project, offset by
$38.7 million of net capital assets sold or disposed and $10.0 million of additional accumulated depreciation.
$30.5 million of net capital assets were sold under financing leases with $20.5 million pertaining to net assets
sold to Nia LLC, $6.5 million sold to the Seola LLC, and $3.5 million associated with the former Springwood
Apartments public housing development sold to Scosette Creek LI.C.

Total liabilities, excluding the non-current portion of long-term debt, totaled $64.8 million at December 31,
2008, an increase of $44.2 million from 2007, This increase consists primarily of the current portion of $22.6
million of a revenue bond related to the Egis tax credit partnership, The increase also consists of the addition
of a line of credit of $8.7 million related to the Wonderland Estates project and an $8.3 million line of eredit
related to the Egis tax credit parinership.

Total net assets increased by $70.3 million during fiscal year 2008. Net assets represent the Authority’s
equity, a portion of which is restricted for certain uses,  The $5.4 million decrease in restricted net assets
resulted primarily from the disbursements of $8.3 million line-of-credit proceeds obtained for the Egis
properties’ rehabilitation and the disbursement of $2.8 million from Nia bond reserves to fund construction,
offset by the addition of $7 million of bond reserves to fund future Eastbridge construction. The $75.6 million
increase in unrestricted net assets resulted primarily from a $39.8 million increase in unrestricted cash and
investments and the $38.3 million increase in receivables, less & $1.3 million increase in non-capital asset
related debt incurred on behalf of the tax credit properties,
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Table A-1, Condensed Balance Sheat U

FY 2608 FY 2067
Assets;
Current and other assets $ 419,495,569 $ 254,061,962
Capital assets 236,816,310 221,966,058
Total Assets 3 656,311,879 $ 516,028,020
Eiabilities:
Current and other habilities 8 64,819,139 b 20,572,289
Long-term debt, net of current 274460316 248,773,563
Total Liabilities 339279455 269,345,852
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 88,311,880 88,219,031
Restricted 21,809,650 27,196,858
Unrestricted 206,910,853 131,266,279
Total Net Assets 317032423 246,682,168
Liabilities and Net Assets $ 656,311,879 $ 516,828,629

(1) Component units are not included.

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Met Assets:

The purpose of the “Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets” is to present the
revenues earned by the Authority (both operating and non-operating) and the expenses incurred (operating and
non-operating), and any other revenues, expenses, gains and losses received or spent by the Authority. Table
A-2 represents the Authority’s Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets for

fiscal years 2008 and 2007:

Table A-2, Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expense, angd Changes in Net Assets ®

FY 2008 @ FY 2667

Operating Revenues $ 60,166,754 $ 34,891,264
Nonoperating revenues 188,966,609 123,583,677

Totai Revenues 249,133,363 158,475,241
Operating expenses 174,397,565 108,997,410
Nonoperating expenses 17,683,435 11,678,723

Total Expenses 192,081,000 120,676,133
Excess or deficiency before contributions 37,052,362 37,799,108
Capital grant contributions 13,297,893 10,827,050
Change in Net Assets 70,350,255 48,626,158
Beginning Net Assets 246,682,168 198,056,030
Ending Net Assets $317,032,423 $246,682,168

(1} Component units are not included.
{2)FY 2608 reflects an 18 month period.
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Revenues are classified as operating, non-operating or capital grant contributions. Table A-3 shows the
sources of revenues for fiscal years 2008 and 2007 as a percentage of all revenues. The overall relative
contribution for each revenue type remained relatively constant from fiscal year 2007 to fiscal year 2008 when
accounting for the subsequent period reflecting I8 months, although the steady decline in investment interest
rates has made the Authority more reliant on HUD subsidies.

Table A-3, Revenue Sources
{(Percentage by Category}
60.00% -
50.00%
40.00% s -
B FY 2007
30.00%
#FY 2008
20.00%
10.00% -
0.00% -
Investment Income Capital & Other HUD Subsidies Tenant Rentai
Grants Revenue

Operating expenses are amounts paid for providing housing services to the Authority’s tenants and
administering the various programs. Although total operating expenses for fiscal year 2008 were $174.4
million (refer to Table A-2), a $65.4 million increase compared to fiscal yvear 2007, most of this increase is due
to the 18-month Fiscal Year 2008 reporting period as compared to the 12-month 2007 Fiscal Year. Housing
assistance payments under the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program increased beyond that which was
attributable to the extra six months. $11.1 million of the HCV program increase was due to higher rental costs
in the Puget Sound area combined with the issuance of an additional 300 vouchers using KCHA’s Moving to
Work authority.

Table A-4 demonstrates that the mix of operating expenses as a percentage of total expenses has remained
relatively static from Fiscal Year 2007 to 2008.

Table A-4, Operating Expenses
IPercentage by Category)
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00% i FY 2007
i FY 2008
20.06%
10.00% --
0.00% -+ - —
Administrative Tenant Services Maintenance Utilities Housing Depreciation
[ Cther Assistance
Payments
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CAPITAL ASSETS, NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

During fiscal year 2008, capital assets increased a net amount of $15 miilion. $53.5 million of capital assets
were purchased, representing primarily $44 million construction-in-process associated with the Greenbridge
development project. Capital asset additions were partially offset by $38.7 million of net capital asset
disposals. The capital asset dispogals were primarily composed of $30.5 million of net capital assets sold under
financing leases with $20.5 million pertaining to net assets sold to the NIA LLC and $6.5 million pertaining to
net assets sold to the Seola LLC. Information about the Authority’s capital assets is further presented in the
financial statements Note 4 — Capital Asseis.

Table A-5, Capital Assets, net of Accumulated Depreciation

FY 2048 FY 2007

Land - Non Depreciable $53,817,742 $45,508,201
Land Improvements 20,870,992 22,046,553
Eand 74,688,734 67,554,794
Buikiings and Improvements 200,517,396 205,259,631
Furnire, Equipment & Machinery 3,342,380 3,085,734
Construction m Progress 61,797,871 47,176,127

340,346,581 323,080,286
Total accumulated depreciation {103,530,271) (101,114,228}
Net Capital Assets $236,816,310 $221,966,058

LONG TERM DEBT & OTHER MONCURRENT LIABILITIES

The Authority has issued various forms of debt for the purpose of acquiring and rehabilitating projects located
throughout King County. At fiscal year-end, the Authority had $297 miilion in net long-term bonds and notes
outstanding (as shown in table A-6) which represents a $48 million increase over the prior fiscal year-end
balance. The increase is mainly atfributable to additional financing acquired to fund the Soosette Creek
redevelopment. Information about the Authority’s debt is further presented in the financial statements Note 5 -
Long Term Debt Obligations. Included in the other noncurrent labilities category are payments in lieu of
taxes, and deferred revenues,

Table A-6, Long Term Debt & CGther Noncurrent Liabilities

FY 2608 FY 2007
Long-term, net of current portion $274,460,316 $248,773,563
Other noncurrent liabilities 2,540,950 4,236,456
Teotal long-term debt & other noncurrent Habilities $277,0601,266 $253,010,019
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AFFECTING THE AUTHORITY’S FUTURE

The Authority receives the bulk of its operational funding from the federal Department of Housing and Urban
Development which, like all federal agencies, continues to experience budget constraints. Although KCHA’s
Moving to Work authority gives it substantial financial flexibility, future funding continues to depend upon
Congressional appropriations.

The current recession, the worst in several decades, has severely impacted the ability of the Authority to gain
access to funding sources for many of its rehabilitation projects. The tightening credit market, along with the
difficulty of getting Low Income Housing Tax Credit program equity partners, has created a challenge that will
require creative financing strategies.

The Authority continues to plan to convert the ownership structure on certain public housing complexes from
Authority-owned to ownership by parinerships under the Low Income Housing Tax program. The financing
generated through federal income tax credits that flows to the project in the form of partnership equity
contributions helps fund the redevelopment and major renovation activities.

In early 2009, the Authority signed a new 10-year Moving to Work agreement with HUD. This agreement will
allow KCHA to retain its financial flexibilities and be well-positioned for the future.

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, cusfomers, and investors and creditors with
a peneral overview of the Housing Authority’s finances and to demonstrate KCHA’s accountability for ifs
resources. Any questions abeout this report, or requests for additional information, should be directed to the
Director of Finance of the King County Housing Authority,
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31, 2008

COMPONENT
AUTHORITY UNITS
ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 92,115,656 $ 3,711,058
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 16,718,697 36,295,791
Receivabies, net 68,640,507 600,336
Restricted investments 1,960,054 20,012,338
Cther current asseis 471,454 536,343
Total Current Assets 179,806,368 61,155,866
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted cash and cash eguivalents 5 518,627 $ -
Restricted investments 4,347,318 -
Land, buildings and equipment, net 236,816,310 324227731
Noncurrent receivables 232,049,755 -
Other noncusrent assets 2.673,502 3,661,742
Total Noncurrent Assets 476405,511 327889473
TOTAL ASSETS § 656,311,879 $  389,045339
TIABLOITIES and NET ASSETS:
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current portion of long term debt $ 52,940,181 $ 3,224,226
Other cumrent hiabilifies 9,338,009 16,574,417
Total Carrent Liabilities 62,278,189 13,798,643
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Long-term debi, net of current 274,460,316 295,505,502
Other noncurrent Habilities 2,540,950 5,561,937
Total Long-Term Liabilities 277,001,266 301,067,439
TOTAL LIABILITIES 335,279 455 314,860,082
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital agsets, net of related debt 88,311,880 25,498,003
Restricted net assefs 21,809,690 36,295,791
Unrestricted net assets 206,910,853 12,385,463
TOTAL NET ASSETS 317032423 74,179,257
TOTALLIABILITIES and NET ASSETS § 656,311,879 $  385,045339

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the 18 Month Period Ended December 31, 2008

COMPONENT
AUTHORITY UNITS
OPERATING REVENUES
Tenant revenue $ 447223523 $ 23,380,394
Other revenue 15,943,231 688,265
Total Operating Revenues 60,166,754 24,069,159
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative 35,037,036 5,664573
Tenant services 4,979,629 -
Mamtenance 23,353,508 4,023,947
Utilities 8,023,983 2,891,468
Housing assistance payments 91,062,119 -
Depreciation 9,980,606 8,223,460
Other expenses 1,960,684 1,611,273
Total Operating Expenses 174,397,565 22,414,721
Operating Income (Loss} (114,230,811 1,654,438
NONCOPERA TING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
HUD subsidies and grant revenue 134,453,734 -
Other govemment granis 16,186,175 310,000
Investrment mcome 19,172,243 1,058,974
Interest expense (17,683,435) (9,031,252}
Net gain on disposal of capital assets 19,154,457 {261,317}
Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 171,283,173 (7,923,595)
INCOME (LOSS) before contributions 57,052,362 (6,269,157)
Capital grant contributions 13,297,893 27467179
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS b3 70,350,255 $ 21,198,022
Total Net Assets -- beginning 246,682,168 52,981,235
Total Net Assets -- ending % 317,032,423 $ 74,179,257

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the 18 Month Period Ended December 31, 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts fromienants
Payments to employees
Payments to supplicrs of goods and services
Payments to landlords
Payments received from (made to) other housing autherities
Other receipts (payments)
Net cash provided by (used in) opermting activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Reeeipts from HUD
Receipts fromother govemments
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWSFROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital grant contrbutions
Capital contributions
Purchase of capitalassets
Net proceeds capital asset disposal
Proceeds fromissuance of capital debt
Principat payments on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Other receipts (payments}
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Net sale (purchasc) of investments
Investment in notes and financing keases
Payments received on notes and financing leases
Investmeni income - notes and financing feases
Investment income ~ other
Gther receipts (payments)
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net Ircrease in Cash and Cash Bquivalents
Cash and cash equivalents -- beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents -- end of the vear

Reconcilintion of operating incon (loss} to net cash
provided {used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss}

Adjustiment to reconcile operating income Lo net cash:
Depreciation expense

Change in assets and Eabilities:
Receivables and other assels
Accounts and other payables

Net cash provided by (wsed in) operating activities

$

$

8

AUTHORITY

44920331
(25,368,409)
(46,705,144
(86,253,412}

1,793,16%)

13,555,135

{102,644,662)

130,951,623
16,692,586
156,644,208

13,297,893
{63,555,334)
120,562,013
(49,319,272
(18,224,660}

{1,434219)

1,326,410

436,223
{65,481.811) &)
5288,195 b)
8,063,539
6,073,847
23,559,268
{21,160,738)
34,165,223
75,187,756
109,352,979

{114,230,811)
9,980,606

854,882
750,661

(102,644,662)

COMPONENT
UNITS

$ 22,989,363
(3.354.616)
(23,675,692}

461,453

(29794923

27,521,679
(51,508,977
(4,343)

61,622,001
(10.912,354)
(5,802,821
(891,074)

20,024,111

(9,648,880)

1,058,974

{8, 385,506)

8,454,713
31,552,136

§ 40,006,849

1,654,438

8,223,460

(695,042)

(12,162,348
$ (2,979492)

Non-gash transactions that would have been reported in the capital and investing sections if the transactions had involved a cash exchange.

a) Excludes $37 million af notes and financing leases received in exchange for capital assets -~ $24 million from Soosette Creck

and $12.7 million from the Greenbridge Foundation, Nia. Also excludes $96 million of notes received as payment on

Jfinancing leases receivable.

b) Excludes 34 million of lease payments finaneed through the issiance of notes.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2008

The following notes arc an integral part of the financial statements of the Housing Authority of the County of
King.

NOTE i - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in conformity with generaily accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The significant accounting policies are described below.

a) THE AUTHORITY

The Housing Authority of the County of King (the “Authority”} was created in 1939 as a municipal
corporation under the provisions of the State Housing Authorities Law (RCW 35382) and the Housing
Cooperation Law (RCW 35.83) in response to the Federal Housing Act of 1937, The Act created the United
States Housing Authority, empowering it to make loans and annual contributions fo local public housing
agencies to assist in the development, acquisition and administration of low rent projects, The programs
authorized under the Act, as amended, are now administered by the Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD). The Authority is not a component unit of King County.

The Authority operates in all of King County, except within the cities of Seattle and Renton, and in the city of
Clympia. The Authority also serves as the management agent for the Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-
Woolley in Skagit County. Of the State’s 39 counties, King County ranks eleventh in geographicai size and
first in population. The County is the financial, economic and industrial center of the entire Pacific Northwest
region. The Authority’s jurisdiction encompasses an arca of over 2,100 square miles and a population
estimated at 1.7 million representing almost 30% of the state’s total population, The Authority has its ceniral
office in Tukwila. A five-member Board of Commissioners appointed for five-year terms by the Metrapolitan-
King County Council governs the Authority. The Authority’s commissioners serve without pay.

The Authority has been granted a broad range of powers to provide housing assistance to low-income
households. The nationally recognized definition of a low-income family is a household eamning less than 80
percent of the area’s median income, adjusted for family size. The Authority administers federaily and locally
financed housing programs that serve a variety of housing needs including the following:

FEDERALLY ASSISTED HOUSING PROGRAMS

Low Rent Public Housing —The Authority owns, operates or maintains 50 housing projects consisting of 2,507
units of public housing of which 1,097 units are for the low-income eiderly and disabled. The properties were
acquired through bonds and notes guaranteed by HUD and through grants from HUD. Revenues consist of
rents and other fees collected from tenants and an operating subsidy received from HUD, Typically residents
pay 30% of their adjusted income in rents. Tweo thirds of public housing residents earn less than 20% of the
area median income, with almost 80% having some form of entitiement payment as their main source of
income. The Authority’s subsidy is received under an Annual Contributions Contract to offset the cost of
operating the units. HUD also provides funds to maintain and improve the public housing projects under the
Capital Fund Program. Historically, all additions to land, structures and equipment of public housing are
accomplished through these capital grant funds,

Tenant Based Housing Cheice Vouchers—-The Authority provides rental assistance payments to approximately
7,319 households who live in private rental housing. Funded by HUD pursuant to Section 8 of the U.S.
Housing Act, this program allows participating families and individuals to choose their own housing with the
use of a housing voucher, Generally the participant pays no more than 30% of mcome towards rent and the
Authority pays the remainder. The Authority targets this program to the elderly, disabled households and
families that are homeless or at the risk of homelessness. Program participants average 15% of area median
income.
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Project Based Section 8 Housing - The Authority owns seven developments with 446 units subsidized under
the Section 8 program. Under this program, subsidies attach to qualifying housing units rather than to
qualifying individuals or families. The Authority buili three of these projects comprising 174 units under the
Section 8 New Construction program. The Authority purchased the other four projects comprising 272 units
under the Preservation Program to prevent loss of affordability upon their sale by private owners.

UNASSISTED LOCALLY FINANCED HOUSING PROGRAMS

Tax-Exempt Bond Financed -~ The Authority owns 14 apartment complexes totaling 2,087 units through the
issuance of tax-exempt bonds. These properties receive no operating subsidy from the Federal government or
any other State or local source. The Authority acquired the properties in order to place selected housing
developments within the public domain so that rents could be maintained as low as possible over time.
Typically these units have a broad mix of residents with the majority having income below 80% of area
median.

Homeownership - The Authority owns three mobile home parks located in South King County comprising 430
manufactured home sites. Under this program, the residents own their manufactured homes and pay rent to the
Authority for the land on which the home sits.

Tax Credit - In 1994, the Authority began partnering with limited parinerships and lmited Hability
corporations (hereafter referred to as “partnerships™) to acquire and develop additional affordable housing (see
Note 7). The Authority is general partner/managing member (hereafter referred to as “general partner”™) in 20
partnerships representing 30 housing complexes comprising 2,299 units.

Miscellaneous Local Programs - The Authority has an inventory of 14 different housing developments
comprising 165 units of housing. The units are generally leased to non-profit service providers for the benefit
of the economically disadvantaged, developmentally disabled, transitional, homeless and other groups who
have traditionally experienced barriers in finding housing.

OTHER PROGRAMS

Housing Repair and Weatherization. - The Authority receives foderal and state money to provide housing
rehabilitation loans and weatherization grants to low-income homeowners and renters. The Authority has been
adminisiering these types of programs since 1975. In fiscal year 2007, the Authority assisted 630 homes with
structural upgrades, air quality improvements and energy efficiencies.

Human Service Programs -- The Authority serves a wide variety of people with special needs such as the
elderly, the physically and developmentally disabled, the homeless and the mentally ill. The Authority
provides resident focused programs in its developments by working in partnership with nearly 20 different
agencies that provide human services programs including job/education training and self-sufficiency programs,
For example, Head Start classrooms operate at two sites, Boys and Girls Club programs operate at six sites,
and three career/computer centers are iocated in the Authority’s developments. Counseling, educational,
recreational, nutrition and transportation services are provided by community-based organizations like the
YWCA, Senior Services, and Hopelink. These contracted services are partially funded using federal grants,
which the Authority receives in a competitive process for periods of one to three years.

DEVELOPMENT

HOPE VI Redevelopment Project — The Authority was awarded a $35 million HOPE V1 grant in November
2001 to revitalize Park Lake Homes public housing development in the unincorporated King County
neighborhood of White Center, The project, named Greenbridge to symbolize the vision and character of the
new community, will provide quality housing and homeownership opportunities for a diverse mixture of
residents and newcomers. This quality new housing will include a range of housing types to suit seniors,
adults with disabilities, large families, low- to moderate-income renters and firsttime homebuyers and
comprise 180 public housing vnits, 120 project based Section § units, 148 work-force units, and 479 for-sale-
lots.  As of june 30, 2007, the first housing development, Seola Crossing, was fully operational having
achieved End of Initial Operating Period (EIOP) status during the year. Work is underway on the second
development, Nia, which is being constructed to house the senior and young disabled population, Construction
on two additional housing developments, Salmon Creek and Eastbridge, is planned to begin early in fiscal year
2009.
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Springwood Redevelopment — Springwood Apartments is the Authority’s largest remaining public housing
complex containing 324 units of public housing. The site needs significant rehabilitation. To finance the
upgrades, the site has been sold to the Scosette Creek LLC. Equity contributions from the LLC, bond
proceeds, and ofher financing vehicles will be used to fund the major remodel which is planned to begin early
in fiscal year 2009, Approval for disposition of the uniis has been obtained from HUD. During 2008, the
complex was renamed “Birch Creek”. Rehabilitation is well underway with some families returning to their
units,

b} BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Accounting records are maintained according to the proprietary fund model that is similar to private business
enterprises.  The Authority applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB)
pronouncements and all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting
Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements
conflict with or coniradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. As allowed by GASB
reporting standards, the Authority has elected not to apply FASB Statements and Imterpretations, APB
opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins of the Committee of Accounting Procedures issued after
November 30, 1989.

¢) ACCOUNTS ORGANIZED BY FUNDS

The accounts of the Authority are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise iis assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenues and expenditures, Each fund is, with
limited exceptions, an independent fund and is restricted by contract or regulation from assisting or being
assisted financially by any other fund. A list of developments is provided in Appendix A. The Authority
administers the Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley. Iis financial statements are audited
separately and are not combined with the Authority’s statements.

d) USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

e} COMPONENT UNITS

The Authority serves as general pariner in several parinerships (see Note 7). These partnerships constitute
component unifs of the Authority as defined by GASB Statement 14 because they are separate legal entities
and subject to the Authority’s will and financial accountability. As the general partner/managing member, the
Authority has issued bonds and other debt instruments to finance the purchase and renovation of rental housing
on behalf of the partnerships. The Authority also oversees the day-to-day operation of these properties.

For Federal tax purposes, all of the partnerships have a calendar year-end, Each partnership is audited
separately. Copies of the audited statements can be obtained by contacting the Authority.

D REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Authority are tenant
revenues. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The basis for recognition of revenues and expenses is the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned. Expenses are recorded when incurred. Revenue from operating subsidies and grants is classified
as non-operating revenue. Revenue from capital grants is classified as capital grant contributions.
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g} CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash consists of Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurable deposits with original maturities
of less than three months. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash. Investments include deposits with original maturities exceeding three
months, and securities and other assets held by trustees. Most assets held by trustees are restricted for specific
uses including capital additions and improvements and debt service. Restricted accounts at December 31,
2008 include the following:

RESTRICTED
Cash & Cash
Equivalents Investments Total
Capital improvements $ 12,573,440 $ 272,076 $ 12,845,516
Debt service $ 538,051 § 5292582 $ 5,830,633
Tenant security deposits $ 1,239,684 § - $ 1,239,684
(Other § 2,886,149 3 742,714 $ 3,628,863
$ 17,237,324 $ 6,307,372 $ 23,544,696

W RECEIVABLES

Receivables consist primarily of rents due from tenants, cost reimbursements due from grantors, and loans and
accrued interest due from the tax credit properties. Annually, tenant receivables are analyzed and the
allowance for doubtful accounts adjusted. Other receivable allowances are established for uncertain
collectibles. No allowances existed at December 31 other than the allowance for tenant accounts receivable,

i} INVENTORIES

Inventory consists of supplies purchased primarily for use in maintenance of the rental units. The perpeiual
method is used to account for inventory. As such, purchases are recorded inte the inventory account and, as
items are used, the inventory account is reduced and the expense account is charged. Periodically throughout
the year, physical counts are taken of all supplies on hand and the inventory records are adjusted. The
weighted average method is used to value the inventory.

j)  CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost in the land, structures, and equipment accounts and at appraised
fair market value at date of receipt if contributed. The Authority defines capital assets as tangible items with
an initial individual cost of at least $5,000 if the item is equipment and $100,000 if the item is real property or
a capital improvement. Capital assets are depreciated using the siraight-line method with depreciation
commencing in the acquisition year and ceasing in the disposal year. Capital project costs clearly associated
with the acquisition, development, and construction of a real estate project, including indirect costs and
interest, are capitalized as a cost of that project. As such, all costs directly assoctated with the Greenbridge
redevelopment project have been capitalized, including $800,182 in interest for fiscal year 2008. See Note 4
for the capital asset components and balances at December 31, 2008 and fiscal year activity.

Depreciable lives for the capital asset categories follow:

Land no depreciation
Buildings and land improvements 12-60 years
Personal property 3-10 years
Construction-in-progress no depreciation
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Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when incurred. Management reviews land, structures, and
equipment for possible impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. If there is an indication of impairment, management prepares an estimate of future
cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. If these cash Alows are fess
than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognized {o write down the asset 1o its estimated
fair value. Preparation of estimated expected future cash flows is inherently subjective and is based on
management’s best estimate of assumptions concerning expected future conditions.

k) TAX LIABILITY

The Authority is by law exempt from all federal, state, and local taxes and assessments, Several developments
make a Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) based on contracts with local jurisdictions,

I}  COMPENSATED ABSENCES

K is the Authority’s policy to pay 100% of accumulated annual ieave when an employee ierminates
employment from the Authority. As such, the value of annual leave earned but not used at year-end is accrued.
Sick leave does not vest and is only paid to those separating from the Authority as retirees as defined by the
state pension system. Because the amount of such paymenis is difficult to estimate, an accrual is made only
when the actual payment amount is known.

m} INTERFUND ACCOUNTS

The Aunthority maintains a master paying and receiving accomt (King-Public Housing Fund). All cash receipts and
disbursements flow through this master account, except for disbursements to landlords under the Section 8§ Voucher
program, which flows through a separate checking account (Section 8 Fund). Interfund payables and receivables
{due to/from relationships) are created and vsed to account for ownership of the funds.

nj DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of interest rate swap agreements (See Note 6) is determined by dealer quote. These values represent
the estimated amount the Authority would receive or pay to f{erminate the agreements faking into congideration
current interest rates.

o) COMMITMENTS

The Authority has entered into varions long-term contracts for the development of the Greenbridge and other
housing projects. As of December 31, 2008, the Authority was obligated under these contracts to purchase
approximately $13.23 million of goods and services.

p} CHANGE IN FISCAL YEAR END

The Authority has changed its fiscal year end from June 30 to December 31. As a result, fiscal year 2008 reflects an
18 month period. The change in fiscal year end was initiated in order for the Authority’s fiscal year end to coincide
with that of its component units. It should be noted that the financial information presented in the financial
statements for the component units reflect a 12 month period for 2008 in contrast to the Authorizy’s 18 months,

NOTE 1 - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Authority is restricted in its cash deposits and investments to those allowed by RCW 35.82.070(6). In
general, deposits must be made with qualified financial institutions whose deposits are insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).
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Insurance and Collateralization

Deposits that are in excess of the $100,000 insured amount must be continuously and fully {100%) secured.
Coilateral, comprised of identifiable U.S. Government securities as prescribed by HUD, are pledged or set
aside to secure these deposits. The Public Deposit Protection Act in effect in the State of Washingion set up a
multiple financial institution collateral pool to insure public deposits. This protection is in the form of
securities pledged as collateral to the Public Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC) by all qualified
depositories. In 1994, the Authority received a waiver from HUD that enabled it to make deposits in excess of
$100,000 in a qualified public depository because HUD determined that there were “adequate safeguards
against the loss of Public Housing Authority funds,”

Interest Rate Risk

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the Authority’s
investment policy liraits the maximum maturity of an investment to not greater than three years. Exceptions
may be made for collateralization of repurchase agreements using investments not exceeding 30 years and for
the investment of reserve funds, which can be invested up to 30 years if matched fo an anticipated future cash
flow.

Credit Risk

The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), Washington State law, and the Authority’s
investment policy all limit the instruments in which the Authority may invest. Not all Authority funds have
the same restrictions. Following are some of the instruments in which any Authority funds, including Federal
funds, may be invested:

1} Direct obligations of the Federal government backed by the full faith and credit of the United States
ay U.S. Treasury Bills.
b) U.S. Treasury Notes and Bonds.
2} Obligations of Federal government agencies, such as;
a) Government National Morigage Association (GNMA) mortgage-backed securities.
by GNMA participation securities.
¢} Maritime Administration Bonds.
d) Small Business Administration Bonds.
3} Securities of Government Sponsored Agencies, such as:
a) Federal Home Loan Morigage Corporation (FHLMC) notes and bonds.
b) Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) notes and bonds.
¢} Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) notes and bonds.
d) Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) notes and bonds.
e) Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA) notes and bonds.
4y Demand and savings accounts.
5y Money Market Deposit accounts.
6} Certain mutual funds.

In addifion to the above, non-federal funds and federal funds subject to the Authority’s Moving To Work
Agreement with HUD may be invested in the following which are allowed by the State of Washington:

1} Banker’s acceptances purchased on the secondary market,

2y Commercial paper.

3y Bonds of the State of Washington or any local government of the State of Washington that have one of the
three highest credit ratings of a nationally recognized rating agency.

4) General obligation bonds of a state other than the State of Washington and general obligation bonds of a
local government of a state other than the State of Washington that have one of the three highest credit
ratings of a nationally recognized rating agency.

5) Utility revenues bonds or warrants of any city of town in the State of Washington.

6} Bonds or warrants of a local improvement district that is within the protection of the local improvement
guaranty fund law,
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Concentration of Credit Risk

The Authority diversifies ifs investments by security type and institation. The investment policy states: “With
the exception of U.S. Treasury securities, investment agreements for trustee held funds, and authorized pools,
no more than 15% of the Authority's total investment portfolio will be invested in a single security type or with
a single financial institution. There is no custodial credit risk for cash and investments.

Other Information:
The Authority has established arrangements with the Bank of America for safekeeping of investments.

Vakuation and Classification

Cash equivalents include deposits and investments that are readily convertible to cash. Instruments with an
original maturity date of over 3 months are classified as investments., Cash and investments held for the future
payment of long-term [iabilities are classified as non-current assets. Cash and investments legally or
contractually restricted as to use are classified as restricted.

Cash equivalents include an investment in a Local Government Investment Pool (the Pool). The Pool is not
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), but adheres to SEC Rule 2(a}(7) of the
Investment Company Act of 1940 that requires portfolio diversification, divestiture considerations and action
if the market value of the portfolio deviates more than .5 percent from the amortized costs. Government pools
that adhere to the SEC rule can report their investments at amortized costs if the remaining maturities of the
debt securities are 90 days or less. As of December 31, 2008, the pool had an average days-to-maturity of 63
days and therefore is reported at cost. Government securities are reported at fair value.

A summary of cash and investments at December 31, 2008 follows,

UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED TOTAL
CASH and CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Cash on hand g 8,177 k3 - % 8177
Depository accounis 77,850,297 1,239,684 75,089,081
Washington State Investment Pool 8,397 408 1,855,404 10,252 813
Westdeutsche Landesbank Collateralized
Repurchase Agreement, 5.27% 5,031,713 - 5,031,713

U.5. Treasury money market 828,060 104418567 11,269.928
Other money market - 3,700,368 3,700,368

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS § 92115656 $ 17237304 § 109352979

INVESTMENTS:
Certifieates of deposit, 3.25% to 5.06%, 11/9/2007 to
5/172017, 2.8 years weighted average maturity. $ - $ 795,725 $ 795,725

U.8. Treasury money market - 114,770 114,776
Repurchase agreement - 377497 377497
Private Debt Obligations:
Westdeutshe Landesbank Gironzentrale, 5.42%, 7/1/2028 - 2,269,308 2,269,308
Bank of America 6.1% 7/1/2028 - 1,022,033 1,022,033
GNMA pessthrough certificate, 6.25%, 9/15/2012 - 1,728,041 1,728,041

TOTAL INVESTMENTS - 6,307,372 6,307,372

TOTAL § 92115656 8 23544696 $ 115,660,352

NOTE 3 NOTE AND FINANCING LEASE RECEIVABLES

The notes and financing leases held by the Authority are primarily the result of the Authority’s transactions
with the tax credit partnerships. At December 31, 2008, all of the financing leases and developer fee notes, and
$167.2 million of the other notes were receivable from tax credit partnerships. The notes are received for fees
eamed by the Authority from developing the rental properties and for funds advanced to the parinerships to
purchase and rehabilitate the properties. The notes earn interest at varying rates up 8.5% per annum. The
Authority acquires financing leases when it purchases or deveiops rental properties then transfers substantially
all of the risks and benefits of ownership to the partnerships under financing lease. See Note 7 - Tax Credit
Partnerships, for further discussion of the Authority’s financial relationship with the partnerships,
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A summary of the notes and direct financing leases receivable at December 31, 2008 follows.

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Payments Balance Portion
Notes
Tax credit properties:
Peveloper fee notes $ 15,201,334 § 2200000 $§ (3407909 $ 9993485 | 8 1520161
Othernotes 79,503,446 91,186,538 (2,289,1531) 168 400,836 32,443 489
Total Notes 90,704,843 93,386,538 (5,697,059) 178,394,321 33,963,650
Financing Feases, net 102,286,950 34,915,122 (25,295,861) 111,906,211 28,764,387
NOTES & FINANCING
FEASES RECEIVABLE $ 192991783 § 128301660 § (30992921 $ 290,300,532 1 § 62,728,037

The sale of the Springwood Apariments to Soossette Creek LLC under a Low Income Housing Tax Credit
transaction resulted in the $2.2 million addition to the developer fee notes, a $45.7 million addition to the other
notes receivable and a $22.2 million net addition to the financing lease receivables, A net addition to other
notes receivable of $31.8 million resulted from notes related to the Egis Limited Partnership and the
redevelopment of the Egis property. Construction related to the Greenbridge/NIA project resulted in a $12.7
million addition to financing leases and a $6.5 million addition to other notes receivable. In addition, a lease
payment of $22.8 million was made on the Seola lease.

properties.
The maturity schedule for notes receivable follows.

FISCAL YEAR

2009

2016

2011

2012

2013

2014-2018

2019-2023

2024.2028

2029-2033

2034-2038

2039.2043

2044-2048

2049-2053

2054-2058

2059-2063
TOTAL

Unamortized original issue discount

NOTE RECEIVABLE BALANCE

** On amortizing notes.

See Note 7 for further information on the tax credit

PRINCIPAL  INTEREST ** TOTAL
$ 33963650 § 3829561 $ 37,793211
24,681,113 3,768,658 28,449,771
2,617,945 5,359,353 7977297
4,206,731 3,517,862 7,724,593
5,720,292 3,539,585 9,259,877
19,516,547 15,434,997 34,951,544
13,039475 11,873,178 24912,653
9,079,048 9,407,917 18,486,965
9,859,230 7,892,396 17,752,226
21,672,080 5,743,328 27415408
14,469,530 4,022,169 18,491,699
5,284,839 233,203 5,518,042
2,469,805 56484 2,526,289
4,049,900 492338 4,542,238
7,925,000 - 7.925,000
178,555,786 75,171,029 253,726,814
(161,466) (161,466)
$178394321  $ 75170029  $253,565348
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The maturity schedule for financing leases receivable follows:

FISCAL YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST ** TOTAL
2009 $ 28764387 $ 4,963,127 $ 33727514
2010 23,032,784 2225572 25,258,356
2011 909,838 2,177,054 3,086,852
2012 952045 2,124912 3,076,957
2013 1019414 2,068,647 3,088,061
2014-2018 6,048,028 9,372,656 15,420,684
2019-2023 9,537,255 6,953,345 16,490,600
2024-2028 26,271,407 4,231.234 30,502,641
2029-2033 6,678,099 1,174,493 7.852,592
2034-2038 1,172,633 452,928 1,625,561
2039-2043 906,003 129,557 1,035,560
2044-2048 6,626,755 32,964 6,659,719
2049-2053 254,235 21,608 275842
Totz! lease payments 112,172,883 35,928,007 148,100,980
Unamortized original issue discount {266,672) {266,672)
FINANCING LEASE RECEIVABLE $111,906,211 $ 35928007  $147,.834308

** Unearned interest.

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

The components and fiscal year activity of land, structures and equipment follow.

Begirming Disposals / Transfers Ending
Balances Additions Adjustments In (Out} Balances
NONDEPRECIABLE:
Land $ 4550821 § 9,593,925 § (1,284,384) § - § 53,817,742
Censtruction-in-progress:
Greenbridge Project 43,959,382 44.233,172 {30,055,678) - 58,136,876
Other 3216,745 5,045 982 (4,146,901) (1,354,831) 3,660,595
Total Nondepreciable 92,684,328 59,773,079 (25,486,963) (1,334,831 115,615,613
DEPRECIABLE:
Land improvements 22,046,593 - (1,175,601} - 20,870,992
Buildings 205,259,631 3,408,319 (9,479,386) 1,328,832 200,517,396
Equipment 3,089,734 373,936 (147,089) 25999 3,342,580
Total Depreciable 230,395,958 3,782,255 10,802,076) 1,354,831 224,730,968
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS: 323,080,286 63,555,334 (46,289,039) - 340,346,581
Accumuiated depreciation {161,114.228) {5,985,891) 7,569,848 - (103,530,271)
NET CAPITAL ASSETS $ 2219660358 § 53,569443 $§ {(38,719,i91) % - $ 236,816,310

Capital asset activity resulted primarily from transactions associated with the Greenbridge redevelopment
project, the purchase of Wonderland Estates and Pacific Court Apartments, and the sale of Springwood
Apartments to Soosette Creek LLC,
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Of the $53.5 million of additions to the capital assets, approximately 544 million was attributable to the
Greenbridge project construction in process. Other major additions to capital assets were primarily the
purchase of Wonderland Estates for $8.4 million and Pacific Court Apartments for $3.5 million.

The $38.7 million net capital asset disposal represents 1) $30.5 million of net capital assets sold under
financing leases with $20.5 million pertaining {o net assets sold to the Nia LLC and $6.5 million pertaining to
net assets sold to the Seola LLC and 2) a $3.5 million net capital asset disposal associated with the former
Springwood Apartments public housing development sold to Soosette Creek LLC.

NOTE 5 - LONG TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS

The Authority has issued various forms of debi for the purpose of acquiring and rehabilitating projects located
throughout King County. The debt is secured by revenue pledges and deeds of trust on property and
equipment. Compliance with all indentures has been met. During the year, revenue bonds were issued to help
finance the rehabilitation of Soosette Creek and construction of Greenbridge-Salmon Creek and Greenbridge-
Eastbridge Apts. Credit lines totaling 38.2 million were used as interim financing for Soosette Creek. The
components of outstanding debt at December 31, 2008 and the fiscal year activity are stated below.

Beginning Retirements/ Ending Current

Balance Additions Reclass Payments Ralance Portion
Revenue bonds  § 99185204 § 794200000 § (42500000 §  (4,568,726) § 169786477 | § 30,418,655
Demand bonds 87,225,000 - 4,250,000 (1,475,000) 90,000,000 1,033,906
Mortgage notes 5,200,803 - - (810,339) 4,399463 517,605
Financing lease 3,656,297 - - (1,151,231 2,505,066 234,418
Lines of credit 42,313,750 20,352,212 - (30,023,578} 52,642,384 20,727,541
Notes 18,567,702 250,000 - (10,750,596} 8,067,106 8,054
3 236,157,756 $ 100022212 3§ - 3 (28779471 § 327400497 | § 32940181
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Details of each issnance of jong-term obligations follow:

Fiscal Year Amount Interest Fiscal Year Amount Current
Issued [ssued Rates M aturity Outstanding Portion
Hevenue Bonds:
Tax Credit:
Somerset 2000 $ 3,605,000 5.00% 2018 h) 3,605,000 § 3,605,000
Cascadian 1995 8,385,000 4.00-6,50% 2028 6,259,150 225,000
Fairwood 1996 5,260,000  3.80-5.60% 2026 3,958,664 140,000
Woodridge Park 1995 4860600 4.50-6.33% 2026 3,655,720 130,600
Rurat Housing 1998 2,230,000  4.50-3,75% 2028 1,812,009 50,000
Laurelwood 1998 2,500,600 4.40-6.00% 2028 1,989,464 60,000
Windsor Heights 1999 10,650,000  4.00-5.40% 2029 8,590,548 250,600
Heritage Park 1999 4,950,000 4.15-5.60% 2030 4,090,015 110,000
Scmerset (Kv) 2000 2,535,000 4.80-6.80% 2031 2,199,355 50,000
Alpine Ridge 2000 2,875,000 4.25-6.40% 2031 2,440,423 60,000
Coloniai Gardens 1599 4950600 3.75-6.20% 2031 4,200,000 110,600
Seuthwood Sguare 2002 5,000,000 3.25-6.20% 2032 4,366,514 95,600
Somerset 2002 3,895,000 225-6.00% 2033 3,510,000 75,000
Eastwood Square 2002 4,000,000 535.5.45% 2041 3,770,000 43,600
Seola Crossing 1 2006 1,650,000 6.38% 2047 1,645,075 6,157
Seola Crossing 2 2006 5,050,000 6.38% 2047 5,034,925 18,843
Greenbridge - Nia 2007 3,000,000 541-5.87% 2037 3,000,000 -
Egis 2008 8,000,600 4.00% 2027 8,000,000 676,600
Egis 2008 22,550,000 1.60% 2009 22,550,000 22,550,000
Soosette Creek 2608 37.500,600  0.00-0.65% 2058 37,500,000 655,000
Total tax credit $ 143,445,000 $ 132,176,862 $ 28,905,000
Other:
Condos 1982 3 325000 5.25-7.35% 2010 b 60,000 & 30,000
Meadows 2006 1,570,989 4.61% 2010 1,393,666 63,971
Northiake House 1980 1,170,000 8.00% 2012 205,409 97,713
Spiritwood / Newport 1993 5,705,000  3.50-6.50% 2013 1,755,000 450,000
Central Office Building 2001 2,000,000  4.335-5.32% 2016 1,151,796 136,971
1998 Pool 1999 32,955,000 435-549% 2029 25,923,750 785,000
Greenbridge - Eastbridge Apts. 2008 7,120,000 5.65% 2029 7,120,000 -
Total other 3 50,845,989 $ 37609615 § 1513635
Total revenue bonds $ 194,290,989 5 169,786,477 § 30,418,655
Demand Bonds:
Tax Credit:
Overlake 2001 3 23,725,600 1.10-2.61% 2043 £ 23625000 $ 65,000
Total tax credit 3 23,725,000 $ 23625000 § 635,000
Cther:
2005 Pool 2005 3 46,290,000 2,36% 2035 $ 43775000 $ 868,906
(Greenbridge - Salmon Creek Redevelopmer 2008 4,250,600 1.10-2.61% 2048 4,230,600 -
Landmark 2003 18,500,000 1,00-2.56% 2043 18,350,000 160,000
Total other 3 69,040,000 3 66375000 § 968,906
Total demand bonds § 92,765,000 § 90,000,600 § 1,033,906
Morigage Notes:
Tax Credis:
Rural Housing 1998 § 1,350,949 7.25% 2033 $ 1,199,066 § 20,963
Total tax credit 3 1,350,949 3 1,199.066 % 20,963
Other:
Spiritwood 1993 918,829 3.00% 2609 17,503 17,503
Parkway 1995 446,523 8.30% 2010 54,003 50,583
Newport - 2 1993 707,400 6.50% 2012 205992 51,415
Spiritwood - 2 1993 5,000,200 6.50% 2012 1,456,010 363,421
Parkway - 2 1995 1,568,000 9.25% 2035 1,466,800 13,721
Total other 3 8,640,932 $ 3,200,397 § 496,642
T otal mortgage notes $ 9,991,801 $ 4399463 § 517,605
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Details of each issuance of long-term obligations — continued.

Fiscal Year Amount Interest  Fiscal Year Amount Current
Issued Issued Rates M aturity Outstanding Portion
Other:
ESCO 2005 3,500,000 3.90% 2018 2,505,066 234,418
Tofal financing leases 3 3,500,000 3 2,505,066 § 234,418
Lines of Credit;
Tax Credit:
Egis 2007 $ 8,300,000 4.90-551% 2609 $ 8,300,600 § 8,300,000
Sowsette Creek 2008 6,870,609 1.258% 2010 6,870,609 -
Soosette Creek 2008 1,367,422 1.86% 2010 1,367422 -
Total tax credit $ 16,538,032 $ 16,538,032 § 83000060
Other:
Meadows 2006 $ 1,447,845  4.35-1.26% 2008 3 1,447,845 % -
Enumclaw 2003 294,984 4.35-1.26% 2008 294,984 -
Greenbridge - LOC 2006 13,930,000 5.41% 2010 13,930,000 -
Pacific Court 2008 3,437,706 0.00% 2018 3,437,760 3,437,700
Wonderland Estates 2008 10,000,000 2.00% 2009 8,676,480 8,676,480
Greenbridge - Nia 2007 3,814,976 5.41-5.87% 2010 6,429,643 -
Buriers Park / Nerthwood 2007 3,688,549 4.41% 2014 1,887,696 313,361
Total other 3 36,614,053 $ 36,104,352 8 12427541
Total lines of credit 3 53,152,085 § 32,642,384 § 20,727,541
Notfes Pavable:
Tax Credit:
Somerset - Bellevue 2000 5 T00,0060 1.00% 2030 $ 700,000 $ -
Somerset 2001 400,000 1.00% 2032 375411 3,182
Eastwood Square 2002 600,000 6.95% 2041 573,695 4,872
Overlake -2, 3 2002 1,456,000 3.42% 2042 750,000 -
Greenbridge - Nia 2008 328,000 0.00% 2022 328,000 ~
Seola Crossing H 2008 250,000 538% 2058 250,000 -
Overiake - 4 2001 1,500,000 1.00% 2050 1,500,000 -
QOverlake - 5 2001 500,000 1.00% 2056 500,000 -
Southwood Square 2002 380,000 1.00% 2053 380,000 -
Toital tax credit 3 6,114,000 § 5,357,106 % 8,054
Other:
Enumclaw 2007 1,010,000 0.00-126% 2057 1,010,000 -
Enumclaw 2007 132,336 0.00-1.26% 2046 132,336 -
Ernumclaw 2007 467,664 1.00% 2046 467,664 -
Housing Choice Vouchers 2004 625,000 4.75% 14 - -
Hidden Village - Bellevue 1993 200,000 5.00% 2042 200,000 -
Spiritwood - Bellevue 1993 460,000 5.00% 2042 400,000 -
Hidden Viliage - State 1993 282,157 5.00% 2044 292,157 -
Spiritwood - State 1993 207,843 5.00% 2043 207,843 -
Greenbridge - HTF 2007 350,178 1.00% 2058 - -
Tatal other 3 3,685,178 $ 2,710,000 § -
Total notes payabic L_m_ij& b3 8,067,106 § 8,054
TOTAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS $ 363,899,153 3 327400497 § 52940,181
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The schedule of debt service payments follows;

Debt Service - Revenue Demand Mortgage  Financing Lines of
Tatal Bends Bonds Maotes Yease Credit MNotes Total
2009 $ 38,118,538 § 3,681,650 § 837389 § 320462 $21,705824 § 64,183 § 64,737,045
2010 12,737,552 2,284,623 771,433 327,945 32,812,045 64,221 48,997 818
2611 13,899,860 2,336,623 766,594 327,945 - 75,413 17,409,435
2012 12,368,873 2,344,623 750,772 327,943 - {13,930 15,906,143
2013 11,839,727 2,354,023 255942 327,945 - 113,936 14,892,167
2014 - 2018 60,095,095 11,923,113 1,279,712 1,354,118 - 766,828 75,418,865
2016 - 2023 51,768,878 13,188,113 1,279,712 - - 1,210,976 67,447,678
2024 - 2028 45,739,861 13,938,113 1,261,532 - - 998,645 61,938,150
20292033 20,156,335 14,958,113 1,099,755 - - 1,214,285 37,428,483
2034 - 2038 13,093,751 55,877,286 297,655 - - 835,592 76,104,285
2039 - 2043 3,318,784 34,914,913 - - - 1,533,156 39,766,852
2044 - 2048 1,565,737 1,005,060 - - “ 354,991 2,925,728
2049 - 2053 - - - - - 2,244,098 2,240,098
2054 - 2059 “ - - - - 1,315,960 1,315,960
284,702,992 158,809,789 8,600,496 2,995,361 54,517,868 16,902,203 520,528,708
Unamoritzed:
Original issue discoun (476,988) - - - - - (476,988)
Deferred defeasance (1,002,399) - - - N - (1,302,399)
Total $283,223.604 § 158,809,782 § 8,600,496 $2,995361 $54,517,868 $10.902.201 $515,049,320

The schedule of principal payments follows:

Debt Service « Revenue Bemand Mortgage  Financing Limes of
Principal Bonds Bonds MNotes Lease Credit Nates Totat
2009 § 30418655 $ 1,033,906 § 517,605 $§ 234418 $20,727541 % 8,054 § 52,540,181
2010 5,152,104 75,000 483,631 242,149 31,914,843 8,425 37,876,151
2011 4,896,933 130,000 512,897 251,762 - 8,819 5,800,411
2012 5,240,504 135,000 376,322 261,758 - 25,701 6,039,285
2013 5,084,215 145,000 47,723 272,150 - 19,026 5,568,114
2014 - 2018 30,103,454 875,000 305,920 1,242,829 - 261,959 32,789,162
2019 - 2023 29,955,000 2,140,000 458,715 - - 750,296 33,304,006
2024 - 2028 32,145,000 2,890,000 670,655 - - 535,401 36,241,055
2029 - 2033 14,275,000 3,910,000 830,324 - - 754,982 19,770,306
2034 - 2038 10,120,009 48,191,094 195,671 - - 565,627 59,072,391
2039 - 2043 2,480,000 29,470,000 - - - 1,403,010 33,353,010
2044 - 2048 1,395,000 1,005,000 - - - 287,869 2,687,869
2049 - 2053 - - - - - 2,177,943 2,177,943
2054 - 2059 - - - - - 1,260,000 1,260,060
171,265,865 90,000,000 4,399,463 2,505,066 32,642,384 8,067,106 328,879,885
Unarmortized:
Original issue discoun (476,988) - - - - - {476,988)
Deferred defeasance (1,002,399 - - - - - (1,002,399}
Total 8160786477 § 90,000,600 $ 4399463 323505,066 $52,642,384 $ 8,067,106 $327,400,497
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The schedule of interest payments follows:

Debt Service - Revenue Demand Mortgage Fipancing Lines of
Interest Bonds Bonds Notes Lease Credit Nates Total
2009 $ 7699883 F 2,647,744 $§ 319,784 5 95043 § 978282 § 56,129 § 11,796,864
2010 7,585,448 2,209,623 287,802 85,797 897,202 55,796 11,121,667
2011 9,002,928 2,209,623 253,697 76,183 - 66,594 11,609,024
2012 7,128,369 2,209,623 374,450 66,188 - 88,228 9,866,857
2013 6,755,512 2,200,623 208,219 55,795 - 94,904 9,324,053
2014 - 2018 29,991,641 11,048,113 973,792 111,289 - 504,869 42,629,703
2019 - 2023 21,813,878 11,048,113 820,996 - - 460,685 34,143,672
2024 - 2028 13,594,861 11,048,113 550,877 - - 463,245 23,697,095
2029 - 2033 5,881,335 11,048,113 260,432 - - 456,298 17,658,177
2034 - 2038 2,973,751 7,686,193 101,985 - - 269,965 11,031,894
2039 - 2043 838,784 5,444,913 - - - 130,146 6,413,842
2044 - 2048 170,737 - - - - 67,121 237,858
2049 - 2053 - - - - - 62,155 62,155
2054 - 2059 - - - - - 55,960 35,960
Total $113437,127 § 68,809,789 $ 4201033 § 490,295 § 1,875,484 § 2835095 $191,648,823

NOTE 6-DEMAND BONDS

The Authority had $85.66 million in outstanding variable rate demand bonds on two separate projects and one
8-project bond pool. The Landmark Apartments (Landmark) project had $18.275 million, the Village at
Overlake Station (Overlake) had $23.610 million, and the 2005 bond pool (comprised of the Carriage House,
Cottonwood, Newporter, Timberwood, Cove Bast, Woodside East, Aspen Ridge and Bellepark East projects)

had $43.775 million outstanding, respectively, at December 31, 2608. The bonds for each have the following
common characteristics:

¢  Credit enhancements have been obtained for each of the bond issuances. For Overlake and Landmark,
the credit enhancement is in the form of a Letter of Credit (LCC) and is equal o the outstanding bond
balance plus one interest payment, priced at .20% and 40% of the facility, respectively. For the 2005
Pool, the credit enhancement is in the form of a direct pay credit enhancement agreement issued by
the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation priced at .30% of the facility.

¢ The credit enhancements are intended to not only provide security to bondholders, but also to pay
periodic interest payments for which the Authority regularly reimburses the credit enhancement
providers.

¢ The Banc of America Securities LLC acts as remarketing agent, reselling at market rates any bonds
sold by bondholders. It has committed to repurchasing bonds for its own portfolio if the bonds cannot
be resold on the open market.

@ Inierest rates are recalculated weekly, based on the rate at which bonds can be remarketed.
The bonds are subject to an annual remarketing fee of .05% of the outstanding amount of the bonds or
$5,000 whichever is greater.
Underlying source of repayment for the bonds is the revenues produced by the respective properties,
In conjunction with the sale of these bonds, the Authority entered into interest rate swap agreements as
a cash flow hedge to reduce the volatility related to variable rate interest debt.

# Bonds are convertible to fixed rate at the Authority’s option.

The Landmark bonds mature in 2042. At December 31, 2008 the variable interest rate on the bonds was
1.20%. The Letter of Credit is renewable automatically in one-year increments until 2009 and supports the
variable rate bonds only, In 2009 the Authority will either convert all existing bonds to fixed or refinance the
project, Under the swap contract terms, the Authority pays a fixed rate of 3.88% and receives a variable rate
equal to 67% of the 1 Month USD-LIBOR-BBA on the declining notional amount. As of December 31, 2008,
the notional amount was $18,275,000 and the fair market value of the swap contract was {$327,654),
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The Overlake bonds mature in 2040, At December 31, 2008 the variable rates on the bonds was 1.20%. The
Letter of Credit will expire in 2010 and supports the variable rate bonds only. In 2010 the Autheority will either
convert all existing variable rate bonds to fixed bonds or refinance the project. Under the swap contract terms,
the Authority pays a fixed rate of 4.11% and receives a variable rate equal to 70% of the | Month USD-
LIBOR-BBA on the declining notional amount. As of December 31, 2008, the notional amount was
$22,925,000 and the fair market value of the swap contract was ($2,467,074),

The 2005 bond pool bonds mature in 2035, At December 31, 2008 the variable rate on the bonds was 1.20%.
The credit enhancement agreement is for a fixed term of 15 years and, upon maturity of the credit facility, the
Authority will either refinance the bond issue or obtain another credit enhancement. The Authority has entered
into three swap contracts with respect to the bonds. Under the swap contract terms, the Authority pays a fixed
rate of 3.87%; 3.459%; and 3.609% and receives a variable rate equal to the weekly weighted average of
SIFMA resets for the respective period on the applicable notional amounts. As of June 30, 2007, the notional
amounts were $23,725,000, $10,415,162, and $9,489,000 respectively and the aggregate fair market value of
the swaps was ($4,337,520).

NOTE 7-TAX CREDIT PROPERTIES

Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC)

The tax credit program is the result of Federal legislation, which allows investors certain tax incentives for
investing i low-income housing. Investors also are allowed to deduct any losses passed through to them from
the partnerships. Under terms of the tax code, the buildings must continue to serve the targeted population for
15 years. The Authority has the option to purchase them at the expiration of this compliance period.

The Authority currently is a general partner in the following tax credit parinerships: Cascadian (Bellevue),
Woodridge (Riverton), Fairwood (Renton), Laurelwood (Federal Way), the Rural Preservation projects
(Enumclaw and North Bend), Windsor Heights (Sea Tac), Heritage Park (Bothell), Colonial Gardens
{Shoreline), Alpine Ridge (Bothell), Somerset Gardens (Bellevue), Overlake Station (Redmond), Southwood
Square (Kent}, Arbor Heights (White Center), Harrison House (Kent) and Green River (aka Valley Park )
{Aubum)}, Seola Crossing (White Center), Egis (scattered sites), and Scosette Creek (Kent),

Typically, at the time of closing, the Authority will earn a developer’s fee for its role in bringing the project to
fruition. Developer fees are paid primarily from available cash flows and development proceeds. Under the
various partnership agreements, any outstanding developer fees are generally required to be paid within 10 to
15 years of the project’s placed-in-service date and may accrue interest on unpaid balances. Certain tax credit
projects also incur a management fee and sometimes a construction management fee owed to the general
partner. These incurred fees and nterest are reflected in the Authority’s operating income and totaled
$2,200,000 in fiscal year 2008.

The Cascadian, Woodridge Park and Fairwood Limited Partnerships were financed as a direct sale of property
to the partnerships. The Authority borrowed the funds to purchase the projects, lent the funds to the
partnerships that then purchased the buildings. The Authorify carries the related debt on its books, offset by
notes receivable from the partnerships. The partnerships make all payments on the bonds and other acquisition
debt although the Authority remains contingently liable for them. Both the debt inferest expense and an
offsetting amount of interest income are reflected on the Authority’s books and totaled $3,407,909 for the
fiscal year.

The financing for the remaining tax credit partmerships was structured as direct financing leases from the
Authority to the partnerships. Upon issuance of the bonds, the Authority purchases the projects. The
Authority retains ownership of the buildings, and leases them to the parinerships under terms of a long term
financing lease, which is treated as a sale for tax purposes. Payments from the partnerships are sufficient to
pay the ouistanding bonds, but the Authority remains contingently Hable for their payment, The debt interest
expense and an offsetting amount of interest income are reflected on the Authority’s books and total
$3,741,905 for the fiscal year.
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Although the bonds are the primary source of funds for the purchase of the developments, other funding is
usually required. Lines of credit, both taxable and non-taxable, are secured by the Authority to pay some of
the acquisition costs and most of the rehabilitation costs. These lines are retired primarily using proceeds from
the sale of Low Income Housing Tax Credits to the limited partners usually within two to three years of the
partnership’s inception. The Authority also may receive grant funds or other loans to assist in purchasing the
properties and in preserving affordability within the projects. Because of limitations posed by the Internal
Revenue Service, all such funds are lent to the partnerships. These advances are accounted for as part of the
financing lease if the proceeds are used for purchasing the property and are accounted for as notes receivable
from the partnerships if the proceeds are used for rehabilitating the property. A summary of the Authority’s
long-term debt is reflected in Note 5. A summary of notes receivable and investments in direct financing
leases with the partnerships is reflected in Note 3.

In February 2008 and August 2008, limited Hability corporations, Salmon Creek LLC and Eastbridge
Apartments LLC were formed respectively to receive the second Greenbridge housing development upon its
completion. No transactions occurred between the Authority and either the Salmon Creek LLC or Eastbridge
Apartments LLC in fiscal year 2008,

In April 2008, the Springwood Apartments were sold to the Soosette Creek LLC through a Low Income
Housing Tax Credit transaction. A summary of the transaction follows:

Financing
Lease
Gam On Sale Receivable
Springwood sale proceeds / {inancing kase § 24,675,000 $ 24,675,600
Net book value of Springwood assets sold (3,552,352} -
$ 21,122,648 $ 24,675,000

In addition, the Authority earned a $863,625 developer fee from the Soosette Creek transaction and received a
developer fee note receivable as consideration.
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Summarized partnership information for the year ended December 31, 2008 is as follows:

Alpine Ceolonial
Partnership Name Ridge Cascadian Gardens Cones Egis Faijrwood
Fiscal Year Acquired / Soid 1999 1994 1999 2003 2007 1095
ASSETS, LIABHITIES AND NET ASSETS:
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 60D0GE § 2,107469 3 874,760 § 588,764 § 12445982 § 889321
Receivables and other 68,273 154,843 101,153 14,514 1,148,005 114,309
Capital assets, net 3,246,078 8,031,370 5,648,486 9,624,536 69,230,270 5,237,224
Total Assets $ 3,914,421 $10,293,682 % 6,624,399 § 10,227814 § 828247257 § 6,240,854
LIABILITIES
Cusrent Habilities $ 214468 § 782,799 $ 350,800 § 194,766 § 1,837,203 § 334662
Long-term Habilities 2,857,392 6,329,983 4,634,739 5,385,193 71,781,618 4,252,995
NET ASSETS 842,561 3,180,900 1,638,860 4,647,853 9,205,436 1,633,197
Total Liabilities & Net Assets $ 39514421 $10,293682 §$ 6624399 § 10,227,814 $ 82824257 § 6,240,854
REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS:
OPERATING REVENUES $ 496,539 § 2,119,394 § 828828 § 828,797 & 1907472 § 1435131
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative 28,549 355,317 118,230 196,144 787,231 270,511
Operating and maintenance 218,086 651,846 307,640 266,077 986,033 760,350
Depreciation 126,600 233,110 200,418 300,545 1,187,160 167,740
Total Operating Expense 373,235 1,240,273 626,288 762,766 2,960,426 1,139,041
Total Operating Income 123,304 879,121 202,540 66,031 (1,052,954) 256,090
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Grant Revenue - » - - - -
Tuvestment income 23,170 75,585 21,496 10,757 612,876 35,445
Interest expense (139,270) (478,258) (260,251) (183,831) (1,862,116) (275,392)
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets - (6,674) - - - -
‘Fotal nonoperating
reverues {expenses) (136,100) (409,347 (238,755) (173,074) {1,249.140) (235.647)
Total Net Income (Loss} (12,796} 469,774 (36,215) (107,043} {2,302,094) 56,143
Contribations {distributions} - " - {5.464) 11,275,288 -
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS {12,796) 469,774 {36,215) (412,507) 8,977,194 56,143
Beginning Net Assets 855,357 2,711,126 1,675,675 4,760,360 228,242 1,377,054
Total Ending Net Agsets $  B42561 § 3,180,900 § 1638860 § 4,647853 $ 9205436 § 1,633,197
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Continued - Summarized partnership information for the year ended December 31, 2008:

Partnership Name
Fiscal Year Acquired / Sold

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Recetvables and other
Capital assets, net
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Long-term Habilities

NET ASSETS

Total Liabilities & Net Assets

REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS:

OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative
Operating and maintenance
Depreciation
Total Operating Expense

Total Operating Income

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Grant Revenue

Investment income

Interest expense

Gain (loss} on disposat of assets
Total nonoperating

revenues (expenses)

Total Net Income {(Loss)

Contributions (distributions)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
Beginning Net Assets

Tetal Ending Net Assets

Green Harrisen
River Greenbridge House Heritage Kona
Homes Foundation Apts. Park Village
2004 2007 2604 1599 1999
$ 403,124 § 719,543 § 500,514 § 875215 § 1,478,854
86,051 243,842 123,818 128,408 180,757
8,285,576 - 8,793,161 7,860,301 5,942,714 15,067,765
§ 8774751 $10,756,546 § 8,484,633 § 6,946,337 $16,727.376
$ 163,557 $ 226,522 § 184604 § 260,761 $§ 503,902
4,717,608 10,742,251 5,912,069 4,790,155 12,648,776
3,893,586 (212,227y 2,387,960 1,895,421 3,574,608
$ 8774751 $10,756,546 § 8,484,633 § 6,946,337 $16,727,376
$ 567,203 § 259920 % 589,301 § 806,113 % 1,721,359
188,232 80,766 199,252 129,608 307,346
159,550 128,307 140,505 241,007 583,802
391,424 256,876 411,866 198,811 430,599
739,206 466,949 751,623 569,426 1,321,747
{172,603) (207,029 {162,322} 236,687 399,612

- 130,560 - - -

- 15,188 - 21,487 30,601
(170,292) (111,071) {229,644} (230,712) (702,146}
{170,292) 34,677 {229,644} {209,225} {671,545}
(342,295) (172,352) (391,506} 27,462 (271,933}
(342,295) (172,352) {361,966) 27,462 {271,533)
4,235,881 (39,875) 2,779,926 1,867,959 3,846,631

$ 3893586 § (212,227) § 2387960 $ 1,895421 § 3574698
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Continued - Summarized partnership information for the vear ended December 31, 2008;

Overlake
Laurelwood TOD Rural
Partnership Name Gardens Nia Housing Housing Seatac
Fiscal Year Acquired / Sold 1997 2008 2000 1997 1998
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 876,224 § 125776 § 1,734,680 $ 732,313 2,977,072
Receivables and other 56,843 292,015 559,679 102,470 103,659
Capital assets, net 3,819,220 20,460,094 34452583 4,409,991 15,047,127
Total Assets $ 4,752,287 $20,877885 $36,746,942 $ 5,244,776 18,127,858
LIABILITIES
Current lisbilities $ 123,524 § 868,770 5 524401 § 252,951 1,100,802
Long-term Habilities 3,161,164 20,662,268 29,186,586 3,774,570 11,679,484
NET ASSETS 1,467,599 {653,153) 7,035,955 1,217,255 5,347,572
Total Liabilities & Net Assets $ 4752287 $20,877.885 $36,746,942 § 5,244,776 18,127,858
REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGEIN NET ASSETS:
OPERATING REVENUES % B24,574 § 136,786 3 3,190,807 $ 753,928 2,444,694
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative 171,473 238,538 513,060 224,841 304,251
Operating and maintenance 298,645 172,050 707,850 278,107 844,693
Depreciation 185,076 138,714 1,109,892 217,269 578,485
Total Operating Expense 655,194 549,302 2,330,802 720,217 1,927,429
Total Operating Income 169,380 (412,316) 860,005 33,711 517,265
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Grant Revenue - - - - -
Investment income - 9,352 33,707 12,314 85,851
Interest expense (156,767} (235489  (1,271,286) {142,008} (514,901)
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets - - - - -
Total nonoperating
revenues {expenses) {156,767) (226,137 (1,237,579 (129,694) {429,050)
Total Net Income {Loss) 12,613 (638,653) {377,574} {95,583 88215
Contributions {distributions) - (14,500) - - «
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 12,613 {653,153) €377,574) {95,983) 88,215
Beginning Net Assets 1,454,986 - 7,413,529 1,313,238 5,259,357
Total Bnding Net Assets $ 1,467,599 § (653,153} § 7035955 % 1217255 § 5347572
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Continued - Sumimarized partnership information for the year ended December 31, 2008:

Seouth-
Seola wood Woodridge GRAND
Partnership Name Cressing S guare Seesette Creek Park TOTAL
Fiscal Year Acquired / Sold 2067 2001 2008 1965
ASSETFS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 654,659 3§ 905,503 § 29437749 $ 1,051,555 % 66,019,187
Receivables and other 536,393 106,601 575,892 100,894 4,798,421
Capital assets, net 39,048,577 7,729,042 47,095,784 4,197 832 324,227,731
Total Assets $40,279,669 § 8741,146 $ 77,109425 § 5330281 $ 389045339
LIABILITIES
Current labilities & 333,080 § 316,646 % 4,782,305 $ 422,520 3 13,798,643
Long-term liabilities 18,358,920 5,988,723 69,671,050 4,531,893 301,067,439
NET ASSETS 21,587,669 2,435,777 2,656,070 396,268 74,179,257
Total Liabilities & Net Assets 540,279,669 $ 8,741,146 §  77,109425 § 5350281 § 389,045,339
REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGEIN NET ASSETS:
OPERATING REVENUES $ 1,585394 § 968,321 § 1,161,257 & 1,503,341 % 24,069,159
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative 276,750 207,578 543,780 322,67 5,664,573
Operating and maintenance 620,915 308,726 196,700 789,960 8,601,891
Depreciation 1,302,071 209,814 348 477 228,513 8,223,460
Total Operating Expense 2,199,776 726,118 1,088,957 1,341,149 22,489,924
Total Operating Income {614,382) 242,203 12,300 162,192 1,579,235
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Grant Revenue - - - - 130,560
Investment income 866 37,153 6% 32,057 1,058,974
Interest expense (1,069,594 {324,666) (372,862 {280,696} (9.031,252)
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets - - - - (6,674
Total nonoperating
revenues (expenses} (1,068,728) (287,513) {371,893) (248,63%) (7,848 302}
Total Net Income (Loss} (1,683,110) (45,310) {359,593) (86,447) (6,269,157}
Contributions (distsibutions) 13,197,820 {5,628} 3,015,663 - 27,467,179
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 11,514,710 (50,938) 2,656,070 (86,447) 21,198,022
Beginning Net Assets 10,072,959 2,486,715 - 482,715 52,981,235
Total Fading Net Assets $21,587.669 & 2,435,777 % 2,656,070 § 396,268 § 74,179,257
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NOTE § - SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Following are details of selected financial statement line items.

Otlser Revenue:
Portability administrative fee from other authorities 3 1,859,006
Developer fees 9,436,030
Cther 4,648,195 $ 1594323

Net Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Capitel Assets:
Net proceeds from property sales:

Public housing property to Egis, LP $ 872,064
Wiley Center to Greenbridge Foundation 548,022

Net disposal of fixed assets and other 11134,372 $ 19,154,457
Current Receivables:

Grants: HUD, Section 8 program $ 25,313

Grants: HUD, other programs 456,466

Grangs; Other 697,551

Notes and financing leases 62,728,637

interest: Notes and financing lease 3,899,322

Tenants 321,965

Cther — 511,853 $ 68,640,507
Other Current Asseis:

Prepaid insurance and other 8 185,790

Materials & mobile home inventory 285,665 b 471,454
Noncurreni Receivables:

Notes and financing leases $ 227,572,494

MNoncurrent inferest 4,477,261 $ 232,049,755
Other Noncurrent Assets:

Unamortized bond issuance costs 3 2,021,091

Envestment ie: tax credit properties and other 652,411 $ 2,673,502
ther Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 2,668,193

Interest payabie 2,152,534

Accrued compensated absences 1,559,679

Tenant security deposits 1,143,263

Accrued wages and benefits 902,564

Family Self Sufficiency escrow 591,742

Prepaid revenue and other 320,034 $ 9,338,009
Oiher Noncurrent Liabilities:

Contract retention $ 1,849,462

Deferred revenue 453,488

Noncurrent interest 235,204

Payment in lieu of taxes and other 2,795 $ 2,540,950

NOTE 9 - PENSION PLAN

Substantially all {district) full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one of the following
statewide retiretnent systems administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement Systems, under
cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee defined benefit and defined contribution retirement plans.
The Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department within the primary government of the State of
Washington, issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for each plan. The DRS CAFR may be obtained by writing
to; Department of Retirement Systems, Communications Unit, P.O. Box 48380, Olympia, WA 98504-8380.
The following disclosures are made pursuant to GASB Statements No. 27, decouniing for Pensions by State
and Local Government Employers and Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, an Amendment of GASB
Statements No. 25 and No. 27.
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Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) Plans 1, 2, and 3 Plan Description

PERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system comprised of three separate plans for membership
purposes: Plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans and Plan 3 is a defined benefit plan with a defined
contribution component.

Membership in the system includes: slected officials; state employees; employees of the Supreme, Appeals,
and Superior courts {other than judges currently in a judicial retirement system); employees of legislative
committees; community and technical colleges, college and university employees not participating in national
higher education retirement programs; judges of district and municipal couris; and employees of local
governments,

PERS participants who joined the system by September 30, 1977 are Plan 1 members. Those who joined on or
after October 1, 1977 and by either, February 28, 2002 for state and higher education employees, or August 31,
2002 for local government employees, are Plan 2 members unless they exercise an option to transfer their
membership to Plan 3. PERS participants joining the system on or after March 1, 2002 for state and higher
education employees, or September 1, 2002 for local government employees have the irrevocable option of
choosing membership in either PERS Plan 2 or PERS Plan 3. The option must be exercised within 90 days of
employment. An employee is reported in Plan 2 until a choice is made. Employees who fail to choose within
90 days default to PERS Plan 3. Notwithstanding, PERS Plan 2 and Plan 3 members may opt out of plan
membership if terminally ill, with fess than five years 1o five.

PERS defined benefit retirement benefits are financed from a combination of investment earnings and
emplover and employee contributions. PERS retirement benefit provisions are established in state statute and
may be amended only by the State Legislature,

PERS Plan I members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service. Pian 1 members are
ehigible for retivement after 30 years of service, or at the age of 60 with five years of service, or at the age of 35
with 25 years of service. The annual benefit is two percent of the average f{inal compensation (AFC) per year
of service, capped at 60 percent. (The AFC is based on the greatest compensation during any 24 eligible
consecutive compensation months.) Plan T members who retire from inactive status prior to the age of 65 may
receive actuarially reduced benefiis. The benefit is actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor
option.

A cost-of living allowance (COLA) is granted at age 66 based upon years of service times the COLA amount,
increased by three percent annually. Plan 1 members may also elect to receive an optional COLA amount that
provides an automatic annual adjustment based on the Consumer Price Index. The adjustment is capped at
three percent annually, To offset the cost of this annual adjustment, the benefit is reduced.

PERS Plan 2 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service. Plan 2 members may
retire at the age of 65 with five years of service with an allowance of 2 percent of the AFC per year of service.
(The AFC is based on the greatest compensation during any eligible consecutive 60-month period.) Plan 2
members who retire prior to the age of 65 receive reduced benefits. If retirement is at age 55 or older with at
jeast 30 years of service, a three percent per year reduction applies; otherwise an actuarial reduction will apply.
The benefit is also actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor option. There is no cap on vears of
service credit; and a cost-of-living allowance is granted (based on the Consumer Price Index), capped at three
percent annually.

Plan 3 has a dual benefit structure. Employer coniributions finance a defined benefit component, and member
contributions finance a defined contribution component. The defined benefit portion provides a benefit
catculated at one percent of the AFC per year of service. {The AFC is based on the greatest compensation
during any eligible consecutive 60-month period.) Effective June 7, 2006, Plan 3 members are vested in the
defined benefit portion of their plan after ten years of service; or after five years of service, if twelve months of
that service are camned after age 44; or after five service credit years eamed in PERS Plan 2 prior to June 1,
2003, Plan 3 members are immediately vested in the defined contribution portion of their plan. Vested Plan 3
members are eligible to retire with full benefits at age 63, or they may retire at age 55 with 10 years of service.
Plan 3 members who retire prior to the age of 65 receive reduced benefits. If retirement is at age 55 or older
with at least 30 years of service, a three percent per year reduction applies; otherwise an actuarial reduction
will apply, The benefit is also acmarially reduced fo reflect the choice of a survivor option. There is no cap on
years of service credit, and Plan 3 provides the same cost-of-living allowance as Plan 2.
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The defined contribution portion can be distributed in accordance with an option selected by the member,
either as a lump sum or pursuant to other options authorized by the Employee Retirement Benefits Board.

There are 1,190 participating employers in PERS. Membership in PERS consisted of the following as of
the Iatest actuarial valuation date for the plans of June 30, 2007:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Receiving Benefits 71,244

Terminated Plan Members Entitied fo but not yet Receiving Benefits 26,583

Active Plan Members Vested 105,447

Active Plan Members Non-vested 52,575

e - TOTAL | © 255,849
Funding Policy

Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 1 employer contribution rates, Plan 2 employer
and employee contribution rates, and Plan 3 employer contribution rates. Employee contribution rates for Plan
1 are established by statute at six percent for state agencies and local government unit employees, and at 7.5
percent for state government elected officials. The employer and employee contribution rates for Plan 2 and
the employer contribution rate for Plan 3 are developed by the Office of the State Actuary to fully fund Plan 2
and the defined benefit portion of Plan 3. All employers are required to contribute at the level established by
the Legislature. Under PERS Plan 3, employer contributions finance the defined benefit portion of the plan,
and member contributions finance the defined contribution portion. The Employee Retirement Benefits Board
sets Plan 3 employee contribution rates. Six rate options are available ranging from 5 to 15 percent; two of the
options are graduated rates dependent on the emplovee’s age. As a result of the implementation of the Judicial
Benefit Multiplier Program in January 2007, a second tier of employer and employee rates was developed o
fund, along with investment earnings, the increased retirement benefits of those justices and judges that
pasticipate in the program. The methods used to determine the contribution requirements are established under
state statute in accordance with Chapters 41.40 and 41.45 RCW.

The requlred contribution rates expressed as a percemage of carrent-year covered payroll, as of December 31,
2008" were as follows:

PERSPIanI o PERSPIanZ Lo PERSPlan3 -
Employer* 8.31%*# 8.31%%* 831 0p%%s
Employee 6.00%**** 5.450, % FRE

* The employer rates include the employer administrative expense fee currently set at 0.16%.

*# The employer rate for state elected officials is 12.39% for Plan 1 and 8.31% for Plan 2 and Plan 3.
*#% Plan 3 defined benefit portion only,

**%* The employee rate for state elected officials is 7.50% for Plan 1 and 5.45% for Plap 2.

BREkk Variable from 5.0% minimum to 15.0% maximum based on rate selected by the PERS 3 member.

# Please contact the Department of Retirement for participating and current rate information.
Both {authority) and the employees made the required contributions. The {anthority’s) required contributions
for the years ended December 31 were as follows:

PERS Plan 1 PERS Plan 2 ' PERS Plan 2 RS
2008 $ 66,324 $662,006 $109,401
2007 $65,139 $728,697 $92 655
2006 $37,119 $361,419 $46,174
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NOTE 10 - CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

The Authority has issued debt instruments for the purpose of providing capital financing for specific non-

governmental corporations that are not part of the Authority’s financial reporting entity.

any other revenues of the Authority.

In general, the
Authority issues such conduit debt, but the Authority is not responsible for the payment of the original debt.
That debt is secured solely by payments received by the Authority from the various non-governmental
corporations, and by the Deeds of Trust to the underlying properties, Cwners of the debt have no recourse to

Non-governmental Project Description Date of Dec 31
Corporation fssue Balance

Baptist Rest Home Refinancing of an existing 82 unit building known as  [May 1, 1997 | $3,790,000
Association Fred Lind Manor, located in Seatile, WA
Auburn North Purchase of land and construction of a 296-unit Decerber 1, | $11,445,000
Associates Limited complex for elderly or disabled, low-income persons in {1997
Partnership Auburn Washington, known as Auburn Court

Apartments,
Manufactured Housing i Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 93-unit mobile December 2, | $2,400,000°
Community home park in the city of Redmond, Washington, known 1997
Preservationisis as Avon Villa Mobile Home Park.
Seaview Apartments  :Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 72-unit multifamily |December I, | $2,180,000
Limited Partnership development in Des Moines, Washington. 1998
St. Andrews Housing | Acquisition of a 39-unit apartment complex located on |October 20, $2,840,176
Group Mercer Island, Washington, known sz Ellsworth 1999

House.
Vashon Island Construction of a 40-unit assisted living and 30-bed September 1,| $6,650,000
Community Care skilled mursing facility on Vashon Island to be known {2001

as Vashon Community Care Center.

*COriginal Issue Amount
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Continued — Conduit Debt Obligations:

Non-governmental Project Description Date of Dec 31
Corporation Issue Balance
Evergreen Court Acquisition and rehabilitation of 111-unit Washington |September 7,| $6,359,296
Associates Ltd Court assisted living in Bellevue to be rehabilitated 2001
into a 82-unit complex known as Evergreen Court
Angle Lake Apartments {Construction of an 80-unit independent living, senior  [November $5,000,000”
housing facility located in SeaTac. 14,2002
Radcliffe Place, LLC  |Construction of a 135 unit senior housing facility December | $10,029,269
located in Kent know as Radcliffe Place Senior 22,2004
Apartments
Wild Garden Housing |Refinancing of three affordable housing projects August 1, $7,249,645
LLC-DASH owned by DASH that comprise 4 fotal of 136 2065
apartment units in Bellevue known as Glendale,
Wildwood Court and Garden Grove.
Summerfield Acquisition of an existing 52 unit affordable apartment |September 1,{  $3,420,000
complex in the City of Bellevue known as 2005
Summerfield Apartments
Eernisse Apartments  |Construction of a 26 unit affordable rental townhouse [December $1,657,063
project on Vashon Island known as Bernisse 20, 2005
Apartments.
Young Women’s Acquisition, rehabilitation, or construction of housing  {Fune 27,2007} $15,040,000
Association of Seattle, [for persons of low income to be located on multiple
King and Snohomish  [sites within King County, Snohomish County, and the
County (YWCA) City of Seattle
280 Clark Limited To finance or refinance a portion of the costs of November 1,] $4,500,000
Partnership acquiring, constructing and rehabilitating the 280 Clark {2007
Apartments to provide housing for low-income persons
in King County

*Original Issue Amount

NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to perils commonly associated with the ownership and rental of real property. Perils
including bodily injury to individuals; property damage by fire and forces of nature; loss of assets from theft
and employee dishonesty; and liability for public officials’ and employees’ conduct are handled through a
combination of purchased commercial insurance, voluntary seff-insurance, participation in a risk-sharing pool
or group, and contractual risk transfer via indemnification agreements.

For Public Housing, the Authority secures third-party liability insurance primarily through the Housing
Authority Risk Retention Pool (MAARP), a public entity risk-sharing pool. The General Liability limit,
including Washington Stop-Gap or Employer’s Liability, is $2,000,000 per occurrence on an occurrence basis
with a $1,000 deductible. Contractor’s Pollution Liability limit is $1,000,000 claims-made basis with a
$10,000 per claim self-insured retention provided through CRC. Automobile Liability insurance is $5,008,000
total limits provided through Liberty Northwest Insurance Company. Property insurance inciuding Rental
Income coverage through HARRP has a standard limit of $3,000,000 repiacement cost basis, with higher limits
available upon request. Property deductible is $50,000 per loss. The Authority has secured Fidelity coverage
through HARRP for $100,000 per occurrence for all employees, and $3500,000 for empioyees with greater
exposure.
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Bond Financed Projects are covered for property insurance through HARRP. The general lability is covered
through the Housing Authority Risk Retention Group (HARRG) with $5,000,000 per occurrence limit,
Additionally, liability sub-limits are provided for fire damage liability and athletic sports liability, at $50,000
and $250,000, respectively.

Tax Credit Partnership properties are covered for general liability with total limits of $6,000,000 per
occurrence basis provided by Great American Specialty Insurance (51,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000
general aggregate) on the primary level, and $5,0600,600 aggregate limit on the umbrella level, with a $§10,000
self-insured retention. Lexington Landmark provides property insurance for building values on replacement
cost basis are provided with a $25,000 deductible, with Contents and Business Income including Exfra
Expense covered according to reported values.

Excess Liability over all of the above liability coverages is provided to raise the limits noted above to a total of
$10 million. This coverage is with Lexington Insurance Company.

Public Officials and Employment Practices Liability are provided on all properties with a $5 million limit with
a $75,000 Seli-Insured Retention with Lexington Insurance Company.

No closed claims are known to have exceeded the applicable limits of msurance secured from any of the
mentioned providers.

NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Pepper Tree Apartments

In April, the Authority purchased Pepper Tree Apartments for $2.4 million. The purchase was financed primarily
through a line of credit. Pepper Tree Apartments contains 30 housing tnits.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
SCHEGULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS
For the fighteen Months Ended December 31, 2008

FEDERAL O THER PASS CURRENT DEBT
C¥Ba m THROUGH YEAR LIABILITY
GRANTOR PRC GRAM TITLE NUMBER NUMBER EXPENDITURES BALANCE
PBIRECT ASSISTANCE
U.5. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL RENT AL HOUSING LOANS:
RAINIER T 10415  LOAN S8 427,980
RATNIER 1T 10415 LOAN - 596,883
ST VIEW 10415  LOAN - 172,437
TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRIC ULTURE - 1,197,380
U.$. DEFARTMENT OF JUSTICE
INSTITUTE OF LAW & FUSTICE:
PUBLIC HOUSING SAFETY INITIATIVE 16595 38,71 331,441 -
TOTAL - U.8. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 331,441 -
U.5. DEPARTMENT G F BO USING AND URBAN DEVELO PMENT (HUD)
SECTION 8 NEW CONSTRUCTION:
BURIEN PARK 14182 WA9-8023-047 938,930 -
NORTHLAKE HOUSE 14182 WALS-0049-002 341,662 -
NORT HWOOD 14182 WALS-8023-006 370,616 -
MULTIFAMILY HOUSING SERVICE COORDINAT OR:
SENIOR HOUSING (2002) 14391 WALSHSH0003 91,503 -
SENIOR HOUSING (2004) 14191 WAI9HS02005 139,376 -
SECTION 8 HAP PROGRAM SPECIAL ALLOCATIONS:
HIDDEN VILLAGE 14195 WALSMOODI84 636,665 -
NEWPORT 14195  WALOMOOGLTS 187,836 205,992
PARKWAY 14195 WAIOMOOO303 521,523 1,520,892
SPIRIT WOOD 14195 WAISMa00182 1,256,546 1,473,513
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT TNITIATIVE:
HUD TRANSPORT ATION GRANT EDI 14251 BOSNOWAI131 1,485,000 -
PUBLIC AND INDIAN HOUSING:
OPERATING SUBSIDY 14.850 12,604,388 -
SECTION § MODERATE REHABILITATION:
TITUSVILLE 14856 S0023K 118,958 -
REVITALIZATION SEVERLY DISTRESSED PUBLIC HOUSING:
HOPE VI 14866  WAISURDO02I101 3,056,691 -
RESIDENT OPPORTUNITY AND SELF SUFFICIENCY:
NEIGHBORHOOD NET WORKS (AUBURN) 14870 WAOOZRNNO4LAGDS 92,042 -
NEIGHBOREOOD NETW ORK (GREENBRIDGE) 14870 WADOGZENNGOSAGGE 141,315 -
NEIGHBORHOOD NETWORK (SPRINGWOOD) 14870 WADOZREF!SA006 117,306 .
REFUGEE W OMENS ALLIANCE 14870 WADOZREFO14A007 34,547 -
HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS;
HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS 14871 S023V 118,612,629 -
PUBLIC HOUSING CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM:
CFP - 2004 14872 WALOF00250104 406,609 .
CEP - 2008 14872 WAI9PG0250105 519,255 -
CEP - 2006 14872 WALOPO0230106 1,416,303 -
CFP - 2006 14872 WAISP00250206 159,438 -
CFP - 2007 14872 WALIPOC2Z50107 3,372,760 -
RHF - 2007 14872 WATOR00250108 132,780 .
CEP - 2008 14872 WALOPG0250108 555,246 -
MOVING TO WORK DEMONSTRATION PROGRAM:
BLOCK GRANT 14.881 3,735,514 -
TOTAL - U.5. DEPARTMENT O ¥ HO USING AND URBAN DEVELO PMENT (HUD) 151,357,434 3,200,397
SURTOTAL DIRFCT ASSISTANCE 151,688,875 4,397,697
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HOUSING AUTHCRITY OF THECOUNTY OF KING
SCHEDULE O F EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS
For the Righteen Months Ended December 31, 2088

FEDERAL O THER PASS CURRENT DEBT
CFDA e THROUGH YEAR LIABIIATY
GRANTO R PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER, NUMBER FENTITY EXPENDITURES BALANCYE
= 1 iST.
U5, DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELO PMENT (HUD)
CDBG ENTITLEMENT GRANT:
BELLEVUE HOUSING REP AIR (2046) 14.218 CDRBG 1599 3 148,081 -
BELLEVUE HOUSINGREPAIR (2007) 14.218 CDBG 209 H 451,206 -
BELLEVUE HOUSING REPAIR {2008) 14.218 CDBG 218 I 391,116 -
KING COUNTY HOUSING REPAIR (2003) 14218 Ce3461 2 122,835 -
TOTAL - US. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT (HUD) 1,113,241 -
U.5 BEPARTMENT O F ENERGY
WEATHERIZATION ASSIST ANCE FOR LOW INCOME PERSCGNS:
20067 31.042 F07-43103-413 DOE 3 329214 -
20608 81,042 FO8-43103-413 DOE 3 367,033 -
20607 21,042 F(7-446-413 BPA 3 78,558 -
TOTAL - 1.8, DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 774,805 -
U.S. DEFARTMENT O F HUMAN AND HEALTH SERVICES
LOW-INCOME HOME ENERGY ASSISTANCE:
2097 93.568 FO7-431-413 HHS 3 892,65% -
2008 93.568 F(5-43101-413 HHS 3 103,436 -
TOTAL U.S, DEPARTMENT O F HUMAN AND HEALTH SERVICES 996,095 -
AMERICORPS
AMERICORPS - (2006-2007) 94.006 ESD 07-010-G 4 8,353 -
AMERICORES - (2007-2008) 94,006 ESD K11 4 76461 -
AMERICORP S - (2008-2049) 94,006 ESD K501 4 39,779 -
TOTAL - AMERICORPS 124,593 -
SUBTOTAL PASS-THROUGH ASSISTANCE 1,068,734 -
TOTAL ASSISTANCE 154,697,669 $§  4,397.697

Pass Through Entity:
1 City of Bellevue, WA
2 King County, Washingion

NOTEI - BASIS OFACCOUNTING

3 Washington State Department of CTED

4 Washington State Employment Security Department

The Schedide of Financial Assistance is prepared on the same besis of accounting as the King County

Housing Authority ‘s financial statements. (Ses Note 1 in the Notes to the Financial Statements,)

NOTE2 - PROGRAM COSTS -

The amounts shows as current year expenditures represent only the federal portion of the program costs.
Entire program costs, including The Awthority’s portion, may be more than shown,
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POOLED HOUSING REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 1998A
A PROPRIETARY FUND OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
BALANCE SHEET

As of December 31, 20068

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7675521
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,246,160
Receivables, net 68,563
Restricted investments 3,291,340
Other current assets 235,873
Teotal Current Asseis 12,517.457
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Land, buildings and equipment, net 21,933,392
Other noncurrent assets 792,730
Total Noncurrent Assets 22,726,122
TOTAL ASSETS $ 35,243,579

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 116,171
Tenants' security deposits 371,064
Accrued interest payable 702,334
Other current liabilities -
Current portion of long-termm debt 785,000
Total Current Liabilities 1,974,568
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Deferred revenue -
Long-term debt, net
Notes payable 492,157
Bonds payable, net 25,138,750

Total Long-Term Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES 27,605,476
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets (4,482,515)
Restricted 4,166,436
Unrestricted 7,954,183
TOTAL NET ASSETS 7,638,104
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 35,243,579

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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POOLED HOUSING REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 1998A

APROPRIETARY FUND OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY CF THE COUNTY OF KING

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Eighteen Months Ended December 31, 2008

OPERATING REVENUES
Rent
Other
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative
Payrolt
Operating and mamtenance
Utilities
insurance
Depreciation
Amortization
Collection losses
Property management
Asset management
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss}

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
HUD contributions
Grant revenue
Investment income
Other nonoperating revenue
Interest expense

Net Nonoperating Revenue (Expense)

INCOME (LOSS} before transfers

Transfer of funds to agency

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Total Net Assets -- beginning

Total Net Assets — ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

$

$

9,639,234
613,496

10,252,730

557,651
1,243,260
2,747,198
1,418,741

155,184

849,460

59,151
53,108
386,647

7,462,395

2,790,331

636,665
52,534
752,360

(2,211,175}

(769,616)

2,020,716

(5,210,000)

(3,189,284)

10,827,388

7,638,104
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POCLED HOUSING REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 19984

A PROPRIETARY FUND OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Fighteen Months Ended December 31, 2008

CASH FL.OWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from tenants $ 5,956,854
Receipts from homeowners 201,693
Payments to employees {1,239,963)
Payments to suppliers of goods and services (5,432,993)
Other receipts (payments) -
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,485,591
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating subsidies from HUD 636,665
Grant revenue 45,662
Transfer of funds to agency {5,210,000)
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities {4,527,673)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal payments on capital debt (1,115,000}
Interest paid on capital debt (2,197,777

Net fixed asset transfers / (additions) -
Net proceeds capital asset disposal -

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (3,312,777
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Net withdrawals {deposits) to reserves 302,958
Net (purchase) sale of investments -
Investment income 759,743
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 1,062,701
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3,292,157
Cash and cash equivalents -- beginning 12,213,838
Cash and cash equivalents — ending $ 8,921,681

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) 2,790,331
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by (used in} operating activities:

Depreciation 849,460
Amortization 56,150
Change in assets and [iabilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables and other current assets {4,370)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (208,980)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities § 3,435,591

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
Pocled Housing Refunding Revenue Bends, Series 1998A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31,2608

The following notes are an integral part of the financial statements of the Housing Authority of the County of
King, Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A.

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
@) GENERAL

The Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A (the Fund) were issued in September 1998, by the
Housing Authority of the County of King (the Authority) to refinance five multifamily housing projects comprised
of 573 units and three mobile home parks comprised of 321 spaces. The projects are Walnut Park Apartments (140
units), Auburn Square Apartments (160 units), Woodland North Apartments (105 units), Parkwood Apartments (90
units), Hidden Village Apartments (78 units), Vantage Glen Mobile Home Park (164 spaces), Rainier View Mobile
Home Park (31 spaces) and Tall Cedars Mobile Home Park (126 spaces). The eight projects (the Projects) are
owned by the Authority and are located throughout King County, Washington. These financial statements represent
only the accounts of the Fund and are not intended to present fairly the financial position, results of operations and
cash flows of the Authority taken as a whole.

b} BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Accounting records are maintained according to the proprietary fund model that is similar to private business
enterprises,  The Authority applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
pronouncements and alf Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting
Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 36, 1989, unless those pronouncements
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. As zHowed by GASB
reporting standards, the Authority has elected not to apply FASE Statements and Interpretations, APB
opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins of the Commitiee of Accounting Procedures issued after
November 30, 1989,

¢j USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reposted amounts of income and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

dj REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Authority are tenant
revenues. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as non-operaling revenues and expenses.

The basis for recognition of revenues and expenses is the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned. Expenses are recorded when incurred. Revenue from operating subsidies and grants is classified
as non-operating revenue.
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e} CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash consists of Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurable deposits with original maturities
of less then three months. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash. Investments include deposits with original maturities exceeding three
months, and securities and other assets held by trustees. Most assets held by trustees are restricted for specific
uses including capital additions and improvements and debt service.

# RECEIVABLES

Receivables consist primarily of rents due from tenants. Annually, tenant receivables are analyzed and the
allowance for doubtful accounts are appropriately adjusted. No allowances existed at December 31 other than
the allowance for tenant accounts receivable.

&) CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost in the land, structores, and equipment accounts and at appraised
fair market value at date of receipt if contributed. The Authority defines capital assets as tangible items with
an initial individual cost of at Ieast $5,000 if the item is equipment and $100,000 if the item is real property or
a capital improvement. Capital assets are depreciated using the straighi-line method with depreciation
commencing in the acquisition year and ceasing in the disposal year. Capital project costs clearly associated
with the acquisition, development, and construction of a real estate project, inchuding indirect costs and
interest, are capitalized as a cost of that project. See Note 4 for the capital asset components and balances at
June 30, 2007 and fiscal year activity.

Depreciable lives for the capital asset categorics follow:

Land no depreciation
Buildings and land improvements 22-60 years
Personal property 3-10 years
Construction-in-progress no depreciation

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when incurred. Management reviews land, structures, and
equipment for possible impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate the carryving amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. If there is an indication of impairment, management prepares an estimate of future
cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. If these cash flows are less
than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognized to write down the asset to its estimated
fair value. Preparation of estimated expected future cash flows is inherently subjective and is based on
management’s best estimate of assumptions concerning expected future conditions.

k) TAX LIABILITY

The Authority is by law exempt from all federal, state, and local taxes and assessments. Several developments
make a Payment in Licu of Taxes (PILOT) based on contracts with local jurisdictions.

i) COMPENSATED ABSENCES

It is the Authority’s policy to pay 100% of accumulated annual leave when an employee terminates
employment from the Authority. As such, the value of annual leave earned but not used at year-end 18 accrued.
Sick leave does not vest and is only paid to those separating from the Authority as retirees as defined by the
state pension system. Because the amount of such payments is difficult to estimate, an accrual is made only
when the actual payment amount is known.
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J) ECONOMIC CONCENTRATIONS

The Projects are located in King County, Washington. Changes in the economic or other conditions in that
geographical area or the demand for housing could affect future operations.

NOTE 2 - INVENTORIES

Inventory consists of supplies purchased primarily for use in maintenance of the rental units, The perpetual
method is used to account for inventory. As such, purchases arc recorded into the inventory account and, as
items are used, the inventory account is reduced and the expense account is charged. Periodically throughout
the year, physical counts are taken of all supplies on hand and the inventory records are adjusted. The
weighted average method is used to value the inventory.

The mobile home inventory represents homes held for sale to eligible senior citizens under the Home
Ownership Program. The seniors purchase the homes and lease the underlying land from the Authority. The
buyers are obligated to sell the mobile home back io the Authority for the original purchase price net of
adjustments for improvements or deterioration.

NOTE 3 - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Authority is restricted in its cash deposits and investments to those allowed by RCW 35.82.070{6). In
general, deposits must be made with qualified financial institutions whose deposits are insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

Insurance and Collateralization

Deposits that are in excess of the $100,000 insured amount must be continuously and fully (100%) secured.
Collateral, comprised of identifiable U.S. Government securities as prescribed by HUD, are pledged or set
aside to secure these deposits. The Public Deposit Protection Act in effect in the State of Washington set up a
multiple financial institution collateral pool to insure public deposits. This protection is in the form of
securities pledged as collateral to the Public Deposit Protection Comumission (PDPC) by all qualified
depositories. In 1994, the Authority received a waiver from HUD that enabled it to make deposits in excess of
$100,000 in a qualified public depository because HUD determined that there were “adequate safeguards
against the foss of Public Housing Authority funds.”

Interest Rate Risk

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the Authority’s
investment policy limits the maximum maturity of an investment to not greater than three years. Exceptions
may be made for collateralization of repurchase agreements using investments not exceeding 30 years and for
the investment of reserve funds, which can be invested up to 30 years if matched to an anticipated future cash
flow.

Credit Risk

The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), Washington State law, and the Authority’s
investment policy all limit the instruments in which the Authority may invest. Not all Authority funds have
the same restrictions. Foliowing are some of the instruments in which any Authority funds, inchuding Federal
funds, may be invested:

Ty Direct obligations of the Federal government backed by the full faith and credit of the United States
a} U.S. Treasury Bills.
b) U.S. Treasury Notes and Bonds,
8) Obligations of Federal government agencies, such as.
a) QGovernment National Mortgage Association (GNMA) mortgage-backed securities.
b) GNMA participation securities.
¢} Maritime Administration Bonds.
d} Small Business Administration Bonds.
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9)  Securities of Government Sponsored Agencies, such as:
a) Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) notes and bonds.
b} Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) notes and bonds.
¢} Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) notes and bonds.
d) Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) notes and bonds.
e} Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA) notes and bonds.
10) Demand and savings accounts.
i1} Money Market Deposit accounts.
12} Certain mutual funds.

In addition to the above, non-federal funds and federal funds subject to the Authority’s Moving To Work
Agreement with HUD may be invested in the following which are allowed by the State of Washington:

1) Banker’s acceptances purchased on the secondary market.

2} Commercial paper.

3) Bonds of the State of Washington or any local government of the State of Washington that have one of the
three highest credit ratings of a nationally recognized rating agency,

4) General obligation bonds of a state other than the State of Washington and general obligation bonds of a
local government of a state other than the State of Washington that have one of the three highest credit
ratings of a nationally recognized rating agency.

5) Ultility revenues bonds or warrants of any city of town in the State of Washington.

6} Bonds or warrants of a local improvement district that is within the protection of the local improvement
guaranty fund law.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Authority diversifies ils investinents by security type and institution. The investment policy states: “With
the exception of U.S, Treasury securities, investment agreemenis for trustee held funds, and authorized pools,
no more than 15% of the Authority’s total investment portfolio will be invested in a single security fype or with
a single financial institution.

Other Information:
The Authority has established arrangements with the Bank of America for safekeeping of investments.

Valuation and Classification

Cash equivalents include deposits and investments that are readily convertible to cash. Instruments with an
original maturity date of over 3 months are classified as investments. Cash and investments held for the future
payment of long-term labilities are classified as non-current assets. Cash and mvestments legally or
contractually restricted as to use are classified as restricted.

Cash equivalents include an investment in a Local Government Investment Pool (the Pool). The Pool is not
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), but adheres to SEC Rule 2(a)}(7) of the
Investment Company Act of 1940 that requires portfolio diversification, divestiture considerations and action
if the market value of the portfolio deviates more than .5 percent from the amortized costs. Government pools
that adhere to the SEC rule can report their investments at amortized costs if the remaining maturities of the
debt securities are 90 days or less. As of December 31, 2008, the pool had an average days-to-maturity of 63
days and therefore is reported at cost. Government securities are reporied at fair vale,
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A summary of cash and investments at December 31, 2008 follows.

Unrestricted Restricted Tolal
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Uncategorized:
Cash on hand $ 1,250 $ - 3 1,250
Depository accounts 3,304,368 318,932 3,623,289
‘Westdeutsche Landesbank Coliateralized
Repurchase Agreement, 5.27% 4,369,004 - 4,369,504
V.8, Treasury - Money Market - 1,514 7,514
Other money market 919,714 919,714
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5 7,675,521 1,246,160 B 8,921,681
INVESTMENTS:
Westdeutshe Landesbank Gironzentrale, 5.42%, M1/2028 5 $ 2,269,307 3 2,269,307
Batk of America 6.1% 7/1/2028 1,022,033 1,022,033
TOTAL INVESTMENTS - 3,291,340 3,291,340
TOTAL $ 1.675,521.17 $4,537,499,76 $12,213,020.93
NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS
The components and fiscal year activity of land, structures and equipment follow.
Beginning .. Disposals / Ending
Balances Additions Adjustments Balances
NONDEPRECIABLE:
Land $ 6,299,523 3 - 3 - 3 6,299,523
Total Nondepreciable 6,299,523 - - 6,299,523
DEPRECIABLE:
Land Improvements 362,374 - 362,874
Buildings and improvements 24,957,006 - 24,957,006
Equipment 68,622 {15,260} 53,362
Total Depreciable 25,388,502 - (15,260} 25,373,242
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS: 31,688,025 - {15,260y 31,672,765
Accumulated depreciation {8,905,174) (849,460} 15,262 (9,739,373}
NET CAPITAL ASSETS § 22782851 § (8494600 & 2 § 21,933,392
NOTE 5 —-LONG TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS
The components of outstanding debt at June 30, 2007 and the fiscal year activity are stated below,
Beginning Retirements/ Ending Current
Balance Additions Payments Balance Portion
Notes $ 492,157 § - $ - $ 492,157 | § w
Series 1998A Bonds 26,967,458 - (1,043,708) 25,923,750 785,000
$ 27459615 § - $  (1,043,708) § 26415907 | % 785,000
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Notes

Deferred loans were obtained from the State of Washington and the City of Bellevue to acquire Hidden Viilage
Apartments. The amount due the State of Washington is $292,157 and is repavable commencing in the year
2024 for a twenty-year termt. Interest will not accrue until the year 2024 and the rate thereafter will be 5%. The
amount due the City of Bellevue is $200,000 payable commencing in the year 2012 for a thirty-year term with
interest at the rate of 5% commencing as of that date.

Series 1998A Bonds

In September 1998, the Authority issued its Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A with
principal amounts totaling $32,955,000. The Authority is required to make, and has made, all payments
required under the trust indenture. The bonds mature in varying amounts through July 1, 2028 and have stated
interest rates that vary from 3.85% to 5.25% per annum. The bonds were issued at 2 discount of $480,155.
The discount is amortized as interest expense over the life of the debt. The unamortized balance is reported as
a reduction to the outstanding bonds payable. The amortized discount charged to interest expense for the
period totaled $6,095. The bonds are secured with a deed of trust on the Projects’ rental property, equipment
and net operating income. Remaining debt service payments are due as follows:

Year Principal Interest
2009 $ 785000 % 1,394,546
2010 825,000 1,354,799
2011 870,000 1,312,505
2012 910,000 1,268,065
2013 965,000 1,221,479
20142018 5,620,800 5,297,620
20192023 7,405,000 3,629,325
2024-2028 9,595,000 1,439,156
TOTAL £ 26975000 % 16,917,895
Unamortized original issue discount {48,850

Unamortized deferred defeasance (1,002.399)

BALANCE OF QUTSTANDING DEBT $ 25,923,750

Due in one year or less $ 785,000

Due m over one year $ 25,138,750

The bond proceeds paid the cost of refunding all of the Authority’s outstanding revenue bonds that had been
previously issued to acquire the Projects. The purpose of the advanced refunding was to consolidate the
issues, reduce the overall interest raie, allow for a longer maturity and permit cross collateralization of the
Projects.

Deferred Defeasance

GASB Statement No. 23 states that in an advanced refunding of debt, the difference between the reacquisition
price of the new debt and the net carrying amount of the old debt be deferred and amortized as a component of
interest expense, a non-cash transaction, in a systematic and rational manner over the original remaining iife of
the old debt or the new debt whichever is shorter. The advanced refunding resulted in a deferred defeasance
loss of §1,827,791 in September 1998. The deferred defeasance loss of §$1,002,399 at December 31, 2008 is
reported on the Statement of Net Assets as a reduction from the new debt liability. Amortization of deferred
defeasance for the period was $48,573 and is included with interest expense. The current deferred defeasance
balance is amortized as follows:
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Fiscal Year Amortization

2009 44,433
2610 47,992
2011 50,658
2012 54,217
2013 58,165
2014-2018 353,003
2015-2023 393,929

$1,602,399

NOTE 6 - PENSION PLANS

Substantially all (district) full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one of the following
statewide retirement systems administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement Systems, under
cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee defined benefit and defined contribution retirement plans.
The Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department within the primary government of the State of
Washington, issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report {CAFR) that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for each plan. The DRS CAFR may be obtained by writing
to: Department of Retirement Systems, Communications Unit, P.O. Box 48380, Olympia, WA 98504-8380.
The following disclosures are made pursuant to GASB Statements No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State
and Local Government Employers and Statement No. 30, Pension Disclosures, an Amendment of GASB
Statements No. 25 and No. 27.

Public Employees’ Retivement System (PERS) Plans 1, 2, and 3 Plan Description

PERS is a cost-sharing muitiple-employer retirement system comprised of three separate plans for membership
purposes: Plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans and Plan 3 is a defined benefit plan with a defined
contribution component.

Membership in the system includes: elected officials; state employees; employees of the Supreme, Appeals,
and Superior courts (other than judges currently in a judicial retirement system); employees of legisiative
committees; community and technical colleges, college and university emplovees not participating in national
higher education retirement programs; judges of district and municipal courts; and employees of local
governments.

PERS participants who joined the system by September 30, 1977 are Plan ! members. Those who joined on or
after October 1, 1977 and by either, February 28, 2002 for state and higher education employees, or August 31,
2002 for local government employees, are Plan 2 members unless they exercise an option to transfer their
membership to Plan 3. PERS pariicipants joining the system on or after March 1, 2002 for state and higher
education employees, or September 1, 2002 for local government employees have the irrevocable option of
choosing membership in either PERS Pian 2 or PERS Plan 3. The option must be exercised within 90 days of
employment. An employee is reported in Plan 2 until a choice is made. Employees who fail to choose within
90 days defaunit to PERS Plan 3. Notwithstanding, PERS Plan 2 and Plan 3 members may opt out of pian
membership if terminally ill, with less than five vears to live,

PERS defined bemefit retirement benefits are financed from a combination of investment earnings and
employer and employee contributions. PERS retirement benefit provisions are established in state statute and
may be amended only by the State Legislature.

PERS Plan | members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service. Plan 1 members are
eligible for retirement afier 30 years of service, or at the age of 60 with five years of service, or at the age of 55
with 25 years of service. The annual benefit is two percent of the average final compensation (AFC) per vear
of service, capped at 60 percent. (The AFC is based on the greatest compensation during any 24 eligible
consecutive compensation months.} Plan I members who retire from inactive status prior to the age of 65 may
receive actuarially reduced benefits. The benefit is actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor
option.
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A cost-of living allowance {COLA) is granted at age 66 based upon years of service times the COLA amount,
increased by three percent annually. Plan | members may also elect to receive an optional COLA amount that
provides an automatic annual adjustment based on the Consumer Price Index. The adjustment is capped at
three percent annually. To offset the cost of this annual adjustment, the benefit is reduced.

PERS Plan 2 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service. Plan 2 members may
retire at the age of 65 with five years of service with an allowance of 2 percent of the AFC per year of service.
{The AFC is based on the greatest compensation during any eligible consecutive 60-month period.} Plan 2
members who retire prior to the age of 65 receive reduced benefits. If retirement is at age 55 or older with at
least 30 years of service, a three percent per year reduction applies; otherwise an actuarial reduction will apply.
The benefit is also actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor option. There is no cap on years of
service credit; and a cost-of-Hving ailowance is granted (based on the Consumer Price Index), capped at three
percent annually.

Plan 3 has a dual benefit structure. Employer contributions finance a defined benefit component, and member
contributions finance a defined contribution component. The defined benefit portion provides a benefit
calculated at one percent of the AFC per year of service. (The AFC is based on the greatest compensation
during any eligible consecutive 60-month period.) Effective June 7, 2006, Plan 3 members are vested in the
defined benefit portion of their plan after ten years of service; or after five years of service, if twelve months of
that service are earned afier age 44; or after five service credit years earned in PERS Plan 2 prior to June 1,
2003. Plan 3 members are immediately vested in the defined contribution portion of their plan. Vested Plan 3
members are eligible to retire with full benefits at age 65, or they may retire at age 55 with 10 vears of service.
Plan 3 members who retire prior to the age of 65 receive reduced benefits. If retirement is at age 55 or older
with at least 30 years of service, a three percent per year reduction applies; otherwise an actuarial reduction
will apply. The benefit is also actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor option. There is no cap on
years of service credit, and Plan 3 provides the same cost-of-living allowance as Plan 2.

The defined contribution portion can be distributed in accordance with an option selected by the member,
either as a lump sum or pursuant to other options autherized by the Employee Retirement Benefits Board.

There are 1,190 participating employers in PERS. Membership in PERS consisted of the following as of
the Iatest actuarial valuation date for the plans of June 30, 2067:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Receiving Benefits 71,244

Terminated Plan Members Entitled to but not yet Receiving Benefits 26,583

Active Plan Members Vested 105,447

Active Plan Members Non-vested 52,575

SR T TOTAL 255,849
Funding Policy

Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan | employer contribution rates, Plan 2 employer
and employee contribution rates, and Plan 3 employer contribution rates. Employee contribution rates for Plan
I are established by statute at six percent for state agencies and local government unit employees, and at 7.5
percent for state government elected officials. The emplover and employee contribution rates for Plan 2 and
the employer contribution rate for Plan 3 are developed by the Office of the State Actuary to fully fund Plan 2
and the defined benefit portion of Plan 3. All employers are required to contribute at the level established by
the Legislature. Under PERS Plan 3, employer contributions finance the defined benefit portion of the plan,
and member contributions finance the defined contribution portion. The Employee Retirement Benefits Board
sets Plan 3 employee contribution rates. Six rate options are available ranging from 3 to 15 percent; two of the
options are graduated rates dependent on the employee’s age. As a result of the implementation of the Judicial
Benefit Multiplier Program in January 2007, a second tier of employer and employee rates was developed to
fund, along with investment earnings, the increased retirernent benefits of those justices and judges that
participate in the program. The methods used to determine the contribution reguirements are established under
state statute in accordance with Chapters 41.40 and 41.45 RCW.
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The required contribution rates expressed as a percentage of current-year covered payroll, as of December 31,

2008" were as follows:

PERS Plan 1 PERS Plan 2 PERS Plan 3
Employer* 8.31%** 8.319%** 8.31%%¥*
Employee 6.00%**#* 5.45%F*** ook

* The employer rates include the employer administrative expense fee currently set at .16%.

*#* The employer rate for state elected officials is 12.39% for Plan 1 and 8.31% for Plan 2 and Plan 3.
**% Plan 3 defined benefit portion only.

**+* The employee rate for state elected officials is 7.50% for Plan 1 and 5.45% for Plan 2,

REXEX Variable from 5.0% minimum fo 15.0% maximum based on rate selected by the PERS 3 member.

# Please contact the Department of Retirement for participating and current rate information.
Both {authority) and the employees made the required contributions. The (authority’s) required contributions
for the years ended December 31 were as follows:

PERS Plan 1 ['PERS Planz -~ | PERSPlan2 . .
2008 T $ 66,324 $662,006 | §109.401
2007 365,139 $728,697 §92,655
2006 $37,119 $361,419 546,174

NOTE 7- RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to perils commonly associated with the ownership and rental of real property. Perils
inchuding bodily injury to individuals; property damage by fire and forces of nature; loss of asseis from theft
and employee dishonesty; and liability for public officials’ and employees” conduct are handled through a
combination of purchased commercial insurance, voluntary self-insurance, participation in a risk-sharing pool
or group, and contractual risk transfer via indemnification agreerents.

For Public Housing, the Authority secures third-party lability insurance primarily through the Housing
Authority Risk Retention Pool {HAARP), a public entity risk-sharing pool. The General Liability limit,
inchuding Washington Stop-Gap or Employer’s Liability, is $2,000,000 per occurrence on an occuirence basis
with a $1,000 deductible. Contractor’s Pollution Liability limit is $1,000,000 claims-made basis with a
$10,000 per claim self-insured retention provided through Rockhill Insurance Company. Automobile Liability
insurance is $5,000,000 total limits provided through Philadelphia Indemnity and Princeton E & 8. Property
insurance inchiding Rental Income coverage through HARRP has a standard limit of $2,000,000 replacement
cost basis, with higher limits available upon request. Property deductible is $30,000 per loss. The Authority
has secured Fidelity coverage through HARRP for §100,000 per occurrence for all employees, and $500,000
for employees with greater exposure.

Bond Financed Projects are covered for property insurance through HARRP. The general liability is coverad
through the Housing Authority Risk Retention Group (HARRG) with 35,000,000 per occurrence limit.
Additionally, liability sub-limits are provided for fire damage Hability and athletic sposts liability, at $50,000
and $250,000, respectively.

Excess Liability over all of the above Hability coverage is provided to raise the limits noted above 1o a total of
310 million. This coverage is with Iilinois Union.

Public Officials and Employment Practices Liability are provided on all properties with a $5 million fimit with
2 $75,000 Self-Insured Retention with Lexingion Insurance Company.

No closed claims are known to have exceeded the applicable limits of insurance secured from any of the
mentioned providers.
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NOTE 8 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There have been no material events subsequent to December 31, 2008 to report.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING

Appendix A
Fiscal Year 2008
PROPERTY LISTING
Year Built/ Number of Year Builty  Number of
Develapment Name Acquired Units Development Name Acquired Units
Federally Assisted Housing: E isted Locally B d Housingp!
Low Rent Public Housing: Tax-Exempr Rond Program:
1. Green River Homes 1958 60 I Carriage House 1991 236
2 Park Lake Homes It 1964 165 2. Cotionwood 1591 75
3. Cascade Apartments 1968 108 3 Newporter 1991 20
4. Valli Kee Homes 1568 114 4. Cove East 1562 190
5. Waylend Arms 1968 67 5. Parkwoed 1992 50
6. Bailinger Homes 1969 110 6. Timberwood 1992 246
7. Boulevard Manor 1869 K 1 Walnut Park 1992 140
2. Northridge House [ 1969 70 S Woodland Nerth 1992 165
9. Paramount House 1569 70 9. Aurburn Square 1953 160
10 Riverton Terrace 1569 30 10 Woodside East 1993 244
Riverton Terrace Sy 1962 30 " Aspen Ridge 1996 88
it Avondale Mapor 1970 0 2. Landmark Apartments 2001 191
12, Brisrwood 1970 kil 13 BeHepark East 2001 118
13, Brittany Park 1970 43 14, Meadows 2t Lea Hill 2006 60
14, Casa Juanita 1970 80 2,087
15.  Forest Glen 1970 40 Home QOwnership Program:
16, Mardis Gras 1970 61 1. Ventage Glen 1985 164
17 Souwthridge House 1970 50 2. Reister View 198G 3}
18 Yardley Ams 1970 67 3 Tall Cedars 1593 126
19, Burndele Homes 1971 50 4. Wonderland Estates 2008 169
28, Firwood Circle 1971 30 430
2L Munre Manar 197 &0 Miscell, Local Prog
22 Plaza Seventeen 1571 70 1. Campus Green 1981 15
23, Bastridge House 1972 40 2. Echo Cove 1981 4
24.  The Lake House 1972 70 3 Harbor Villa 1981 5
25, Casa Madrona 1973 i 4, Slater Park 1981 5
26, Novihridge Heuse If 1975 0 3 Brookside 1983 113
27, Eastside Terrace 1580 50 6. Shadrack 1984 £
28 Pickering Court 1980 30 7 Sheicor 1983 8
29, Cedarwood 1881 25 4. Nike 1990 31
30 College Place 1881 51 9, Ania Vista 1941 14
31, Evergreen Court 1581 30 i Federal Way Duplexes 1992 4
32 Forest Grove 1981 25 11 Avondale House 1992 16
33, Glenview Heights 1981 10 1z Sunnydale 1592 16
34 Kings Court 1981 30 B3 Vet's Housing 1997 6
35, Gustaves Manor 1982 35 4. Enumclaw 4-plex 2003 i6
36.  Juanita Court 1982 30 165
3 Greenleaf 1943 21 Memo: Tax Credit Developments:
38 Tuanita Trace 1583 39 1 Cascadian 1954 R4
39 Kirkwood Terrace 1583 28 % Woodridge 1995 201
49, Wellswood 1983 30 3 Fairwood 1993 i76
41, Campus Court 1991 13 4. Laurelwood Gardens 1997 93
42, Victorian Woods 1993 13 5. Rainier View [ 1997 43
43.  Federal Way Homes 1993 3 Rainter View [T 1997 36
44, Bellevee 8 1994 & 6. Si View 1997 20
43, Shoreham 1695 18 7. Windsor Heights 1998 326
46, Vista Heights 1995 30 8. Heritage Park 1959 7
47 Youngs Lake 1947 28 e Colonial Gardens 1999 72
48 Seela Crossing T 2007 40 10 Alpine Ridge 1959 42
49, Seola Crossing IF 2007 a7 i Somerset Village 1999 198
50, Nia Apartments 20068 40 iz, Qverlnke Station 2000 308
31, Pajeif Comt 2008 32 i3 Southwood Square 2001 104
2,539 14. Arbor Heights 2062 97
15, Hazrisen House 2004 54
Tenant Based Housing Choice Vouchers: 7,319 16. Valley Park 2004 60
i Seola Crossing 2007 42
Seciion § New Construction: 8. Seols Crossing T 2067 [ 33
I Northiake House 1981 38 9. Nia 2008 41
2. The Northwood 1983 34 2,299
3. Burien Park 1943 102
174 Summary
Proservation of Affordable Housing:
i.  Spiritwood Manor 1592 136 Total housing units owned or
2. Newport 1992 23 managed by the Anthority 7,966
3. Hidden Village 1992 TR
B Farkway Apartments 1995 41 Tenant based housing choice voucher 1,319
272
Households served 15,285

a) Public housing properties sold to the Egis LP in May 2007 under the tax credit program.
b} Public housing units ewned by the Seola Crossing LLC wnder the tax credit program.
¢} Exciudes tenanis transfersing, or "potting ia”, o the Authority from other jurisdictions,
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ABOUT THE STATE AUDITORSOFFICE

The State Auditor's Office is established in the state's Constitution and is part of the executive
branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the citizens of Washington and serves
four-year terms.

Our mission is to work in cooperation with our audit clients and citizens as an advocate for
government accountability. As an elected agency, the State Auditor's Office has the independence
necessary to objectively perform audits and investigations. Our audits are designed to comply with
professional standards as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state, and local laws.

The State Auditor's Office employees are located around the state to deliver our services effectively
and efficiently.

Our audits look at financial information and compliance with state, federal and local laws on the
part of all local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of
higher education. In addition, we conduct performance audits of state agencies and local
governments and fraud, whistleblower and citizen hotline investigations.

The results of our work are widely distributed through a variety of reports, which are availabie on
our Web site and through our free, electronic subscription service. We continue to refine our
reporting efforts to ensure the results of our audits are useful and understandable.

We take our role as partners in accountability seriously. We provide training and technical
assistance to governments and have an extensive quality assurance program.

State Auditor Brian Sonntag, CGFM
Chief of Staff Ted Rutt

Deputy Chief of Staff Doug Cochran

Chief Policy Advisor Jerry Pugnetti
Director of Audit Chuck Pfeil, CPA
Director of Special Investigations Jim Brittain, CPA
Director for Legal Affairs Jan Jutte, CPA, CGFM
Director of Quality Assurance Ivan Dansereau
Local Government Liaisen Mike Murphy
Communications Director Mindy Chambers
Public Records Officer Mary Leider

Main number (360) 902-0370
Toii-free Citizen Hotline (866) 902-3900
Web Site WWYW.SB0.Wa. 0oy

Subscription Service hittps: / /www.sao.wa.gov/EN/News/Subscriptions/

(SAD FACTS.DOC - Rev. 06/09)



DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

Approved by OMB

Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352 0348-0046
{See reverse for public burden disciosure.)
1. Type of Federal Action: 2. Status of Federal Action: 3. Report Type:
E a. contract *“ﬂ;]a bid/offer/application [, a. initiai filing
L—b. grant —b. initial award - b. material change
c. cooperative agreement c. post-award For Material Change Only:
d. loan year quarter
. loan guarantee date of last report
f. loan insurance

4, Name and Address of Reporting Entity:
] prime [ subawardee

Tier , ifknown:

Congressional District, if known: 4c

5. If Reporting Entity in No. 4 is a Subawardee, Enter Name
and Address of Prime:

Congressional District, i known:

6. Federal Department/Agency:
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

7. Federal Program Name/Description:
MTW Annual Plan

CFDA Number, if applicable:

8. Federal Action Number, if known:

9. Award Amount, if known:

$

10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Registrant
{if individual, iast name, first name, M/):

N/A

b. Individuals Performing Services {including address if
different from No. 10a)

{fast name, first name, M!):
N/A

11 fnformation requested through this form is authorized by title 31 U.S.C. saction
" 1352, This disclosure of iobbying activities is & material represemtation of fact
upon which reliance was piaced by the tier above when this transaction was made
or entered into. This disclosure is required pursuant lo 31 U.S.C. 1352, This
nformation will be avaiiabie for pubkc inspection. Any person who fals to file the
required disciosure shall be subject lo a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and

not more than 3100,000 for sach such failure.

Signature: ;/ / L"‘“‘"“‘“"‘“'

Step}{en Norman

Print Name:
“Titie: Executive Iﬁx-eaor

Date:  10-14-2009

| F_e'd'e'r:a:l Usé_ On ly:

Telephone No / 206-574-1100

Authorized for Local Reproduction
Standard Form LLL (Rev. 7-97)

AR
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Certification for
a Drug-Free Workplace

.S, Department of Housing
and Urban Development

Apglicant Name

King County Housing Authority

Program/Activity Receiving Federal Grant Funding

MTW Activities-Public Housing Capital Fund-Public Housing -Section 8 Housing Voucher-Section 8 Project-based programs

Acting on behalf of the above named Applicant as its Authorized Official, 1 make the following certifications and agreements fo
the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) regarding the sites listed below:

[ certify that the above named Applicant will or will continue
to provide a drug-free workplace by:

a. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the un-
lawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use
of & controiied substance is prohibited in the Applicant's work-
place and specifying the actions that will be raken against
employees for violation of such prohibition.

b. Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to
inform employees ---

(1} The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

{2} The Applicant's policy of maintaining a drug-free
workplace;

{3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and
employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees
for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace.

¢. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged
in the performance of the grant be given a copy of the statement
required by paragraph a.;

d. Notifying the employee in the statement required by para-
graph a. that, as a condition of employment under the grant, the
employee will ---

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her convic-
tion for a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in the
workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

e. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days
after receiving notice under subparagraph d.(2} from an em-
ployee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, includ-
ing position title, to every grant officer or other designee on
whose grant activity the convicted employee was working,
unless the Federalagency has designated a central point for the
receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the identification
number(s) of each zffected grant;

f. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar
days of receiving notice under subparagraph d.{2), with respect
to any employee who is so convicted ---

{1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an
employee, up to and including termination, consistent with the
requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfacto-
rily in & drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program ap-
proved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

g. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-
free workplace through implementation of paragraphs a. thru £,

2. Sites for Work Performance. The Applicant shall list (on separate pages) the site(s) for the performance of work done in connection with the
HUD funding of the program/activity shown above: Place of Performance shall include the street address, city, county, State, and zip code.
Identify each sheet with the Applicant name and address and the program/activity receiving grant funding.)

Chack here|  |ifthere are workplaces on file that are not identified on the attached sheets.

I hereby cestify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.
Warning: HUD will prosecute false ctaims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civii penaities.

(18 U.5.C. 1001, 1010, 1012, 31U.8.C. 3729, 3802)

Name of Authorized Oﬁxcxa
Stephen Norma

Title
i Executive Director

Sighature
P —

! Date

10-14-2009

Appendix C

form HUD-50070 (3/28)
ref. Handbooks 7417.1, 7475.13, 7485.1 & .3



Certification of Payments
to Influence Federal Transactions

OMB Approval No. 2577-0157 (Exp. 3/31/2010)

U.S8. Department of Housing
and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Hausing

Applicant Name
King County Housing Authority

Program/Activity Receiving Federal Grant Funding

MTW Program Activities - Public Housing Capitat Fund - Public Housing - Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers - Section 8

Project-based programs

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

{1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be
paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connec-
tion with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into
of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have
been paid or will be paid o any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL,
Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in accordance with its
ingtructions.

{3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this
certification be included in the award documents for all subawards
at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all
subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which
reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered
into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title
31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil peralty of not less than
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for cach such failure.

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided iz the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate,

Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Cenviction may resuit in criminat and/or civil penalties.

(18U.5.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.5.C. 3729, 3802)

Name of Authorized Official i Title

Stephen Norman Executive Direcior

Signature Date (mmiddiyyyy)

| 10-14-2009
1

form HUD 50074 (3/98)

Previous edition is obscldte ref. Handboooks 7417.1, 7475,13, 7485.1, & 7485.3
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